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PART |
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

This report includes forward-looking statementspénticular, statements about our expectationsefseplans, objectives, assumptions or
future events or performance are contained or parated by reference in this report. We have b#sesk forward-looking statements on our
current expectations about future events. Whildeleve these expectations are reasonable, suelfdiooking statements are inherently
subject to risks and uncertainties, many of whieghtseyond our control. Our actual results may diffi@terially from those suggested by tr
forward-looking statements for various reasonduiiag those discussed in this report under thelingd'Risk Factors" at page 28. Given
these risks and uncertainties, you are cautionetbrgace undue reliance on such forward-lookitagesnents. The forward-looking
statements included in this report are made onbf #ise date hereof. We do not undertake and speltyf decline any obligation to update
any such statements or to publicly announce thdteesf any revisions to any of such statementefiect future events or developments.

OVERVIEW

Gilead is an independent bio-pharmaceutical compiaclycated to discovering, developing, manufactuand commercializing proprietary
therapeutics for antiviral, anti-infective and ology applications. We currently derive revenue frimuar approved products and have five
products in development. We are adding to our ieggtortfolio of compounds through internal discgvand an active product acquisition
and in-licensing strategy. Our internal discovertnaties include identification of new moleculargets, target screening and medicinal
chemistry. We also have expertise in liposomal dielgvery technology that we use to develop drings &re safer, easier for patients to
tolerate and more effective. We have expanded osinbss and intend to continue to expand throughisition activities.

We have four products that are currently marketetthié U.S. and various other countries worldwide.

- AmBisome-Registered Trademark- is approved ft& 8842 countries for the treatment and preventiblife-threatening fungal infections.
We co-promote AmBisome in the U.S. with Fujisawalttecare, Inc.

- Tamiflu-TM- is sold by our corporate partner Hofinn-La Roche in 31 countries for the treatmenmfiienza and recently received U.S.
FDA approval for the prevention of influenza.

- VISTIDE-Registered Trademark- is approved foedsal21 countries for the treatment of CMV retimith AIDS patients.
- DaunoXome-Registered Trademark- is approveddts is 25 countries for the treatment of AIDS-rethKaposi's sarcoma.

We have a sales force of 30 in the U.S. who prorAat@8isome, VISTIDE and DaunoXome, and a sales fofc@5 in Europe and Australia
who promote AmBisome and DaunoXome. We also hawgotate partners and distributors promoting thesdyxts in over 30 countries.

We believe that our most advanced clinical candid@&nofovir DF, a once-daily pill taken as partombination therapy to treat HIV
infection, could address a significant unmet mediead. We recently announced preliminary data fasnongoing Phase I clinical trial
suggesting that 24 weeks of treatment with tenofo¥ reduced HIV levels in treatment-experiencetiepds by an average of approximately
75%, reduced viral levels to undetectable levekpproximately 45% of these patients,
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and improved patients' immune systems. We are gathdata from ongoing trials and anticipate filifog approval of tenofovir DF in the
U.S. and Europe in mid-2001. We have retainedaaimercial rights to tenofovir DF and, if we receimarketing approval, will promote it
through our U.S. and European sales forces.

We are studying adefovir dipivoxil in two Phasettials for the treatment of hepatitis B virus ictien, or HBV. We believe that adefovir
dipivoxil has the potential to address many oflitmitations of current HBV therapies, most notalilyig resistance associated with long-term
therapy. We are conducting a Phase Il program 2011 in relapsed ovarian cancer and small celf lcancer and are evaluating two
oncology compounds in preclinical studies.

OUR MARKETED PRODUCTS

The products that we have developed that are coniatligravailable include:

- AMBISOME: a drug for treating and preventing lifereatening fungal infections;
- TAMIFLU: a drug for treating and preventing infloza;

- VISTIDE: a drug for treating CMV retinitis in AlB patients; and

- DAUNOXOME: a drug for treating AIDS-related Kap'sssarcoma.

How these products are sold, and the indicatioasttiey are approved for, vary with each produdtiareach country or region where they
are sold.

In 2000, we earned revenues of approximately $1illomfrom sales of these products. Of this amogales of AmBisome generated
aggregate product sales and royalty revenues abzippately $155 million, or 79% of our total revessu We earned revenues from sales of,
and royalties on, these products in the U.S. ofiéBllon in 2000, $25 million in 1999 and $25 mdh in 1998. Outside of the U.S., we ear
revenues from sales of, and royalties on, thesgygts of $144 million in 2000, $125 million in 1988d $120 million in 1998. We did not
begin recognizing revenues from sales of Tamifltil @900.

AMBISOME

AmBisome is a liposomal formulation of amphoteriBinAmphotericin B is a powerful antifungal ageimat is known for its ability to attack
and kill a broad variety of life-threatening fungaflections, but it also has serious side effaéatduding kidney toxicity. The patients most
likely to suffer from these fungal infections araipnts with weakened immune systems, includingsipiant patients, patients infected with
the HIV virus, and cancer patients undergoing chtberapy. Studies show that by delivering amphoiteicin our proprietary liposomal
formulation, AmBisome reduces the rate and sevefisidney toxicity and injection-related reactioasd allows these patients to receive
higher and more effective doses of amphotericin B.

AmBisome is approved for sale in 42 countries,udglg the U.S., all of the European Union, moghefrest of Europe, Australia, Canada
and several countries in Latin America and Asia.Bdsome is primarily used for treating patients vare known to have life-threatening
fungal infections. AmBisome is also approved inth&. and 20 other countries to treat patients wkoause of certain symptoms, are
presumed to have fungal infections, either assa ¢inoice therapy (first line) or after traditiorahphotericin B has failed or cannot be use
the U.S., AmBisome also has been approved astdifiestreatment of acute cryptococcal meningitid\iDS patients. In addition, AmBison
is approved in five countries as a precautionagtment for preventing fungal infections in liveartsplant patients and is approved for
treating a rare parasitic infection called viscéeahmaniasis in several countries. In 16 of thentries where AmBisome is approved,
including the U.S., we are authorized to promoteBisome as a first line treatment for patients who
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are known to have a fungal infection. In the otb@icountries, AmBisome is approved for use aftditonal amphotericin B therapy fails or
when traditional amphotericin B cannot be usedeeord line therapy.

In the U.S., we co-promote AmBisome with Fujisaweakthcare through our domestic sales force. Owreagent with Fujisawa entitles us to
a percentage of revenues generated from theseasalgwovides that Fujisawa purchases AmBisome fremat our manufacturing cost. See
"Collaborative Relationships--Fujisawa." In the ordfuropean countries and in Australia, we sell AsoBie through our international sales
force. We also sell AmBisome through independesititiutors in a number of countries in Europe, h#@tmerica and Asia. Our corporate
partner, Sumitomo, is studying AmiBisome in cliditriéals in Japan. Sumitomo has the exclusive rigtgell AmBisome in Japan and we will
receive a percentage of any revenues that thewesfrem those sales. See "Collaborative RelatiggssiSumitomo." Most of our revenues
from AmBisome are in Europe and we expect thisedhe case for the foreseeable future. In mostmajoopean countries, we sell
AmBisome in the currency of that country and oweraies in U.S. dollars could therefore decreaeilvalue of those currencies were to
decrease relative to the value of the U.S. dollar.

Traditional amphotericin B is the most significaoimpetition for AmBisome. In many countries, AmBis® cannot be prescribed until
traditional amphotericin B therapy has failed anmat be used. In addition, there are other lipidelasformulations of amphotericin B that
compete with AmBisome. The most significant lipisled amphotericin B product that currently compwitis AmBisome is Abelcet, a drug
sold by Elan Corporation plc, a company with sigpaifitly greater resources than we have. Traditiangdhotericin B is significantly less
expensive than AmBisome, and Abelcet is also Igpemsive than AmBisome. We expect to face signiicmmpetition from new antifungal
products, including caspofungin a product develdpe®lerck that received marketing approval in Jap2801 and voriconazole, which is
being developed by Pfizer, Inc. Pfizer has filedagplication for marketing approval of voriconazdee "Competition."

TAMIFLU

Tamiflu is an oral pill for the treatment and pretien of influenza A and B. Tamiflu is in a new s$aof prescription drugs called
neuraminidase inhibitors that act by disablingcalihmon strains of the flu virus and preventingutias from spreading in a patient. Tamiflu
originally was approved by the FDA in October 1980the treatment of uncomplicated influenza inlagatients, and in November 2000
was approved by the FDA for the prevention of iafima in adults and adolescents 13 years and tddBecember 2000, Tamiflu was
approved in Japan for the treatment of influenzadults and in the U.S. for the treatment of cleifdas young as one-year old.

When used as approved for the treatment of inflaghamiflu has been shown to reduce the duratigheoflu in adults by an average of 1.3
days, and to reduce the severity of flu symptontstha incidence of secondary infections. When takeapproved for the prevention of
influenza, studies have shown that Tamiflu is up2é6 effective in preventing the development offtheThe most common side effects
associated with Tamiflu are mild nausea and vorgitin

Hoffmann-La Roche, our corporate partner who dgyedoTamiflu with us and who has the exclusive rigrgell Tamiflu, began selling
Tamiflu in the U.S. in November 1999. In May 198fffmann-La Roche submitted a Marketing AuthorisatApplication to the European
Commission seeking to have Tamiflu approved unigderccentralized procedure in the European Uniors Eairopean application was
withdrawn by Hoffmann-La Roche to enable HoffmaramRoche to submit additional data. This applicatias re-filed by Hoffmann-La
Roche in February 2001. We cannot be certain bigtpplication will be approved. We receive a patage of the net revenues that
Hoffmann-La Roche generates from sales of Tam#ke "Collaborative Relationships--Hoffmann-La Rothe
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There are several products that have been avataleat the flu for some time, but they havelme¢n shown to be as effective or as safe as
neuraminidase inhibitors. Relenza, an anti-flu dsalgl by GlaxoSmithKline, is the only other neuraidase inhibitor that has been approved
by the FDA. This drug, which is delivered as araield powder, is direct and significant competiionTamiflu. Tamiflu currently is the onl
FDA-approved neuraminidase inhibitor that is ava@éan a pill and we believe that this method divdy gives Tamiflu a competitive
advantage over Relenza. We are aware, however]dhason & Johnson is developing a neuraminiddsbitor that has the potential to be
delivered as a once-daily pill (Tamiflu is takeridevdaily for treatment of flu). When and if Johns® Johnson receives approval for this
product, it will also be direct and significant cpatition for Tamiflu. See "Competition."

Tamiflu is not being marketed as an alternativienfloenza vaccinations. Influenza vaccinations weéiinain the most effective method of
preventing the flu.

VISTIDE

VISTIDE is an antiviral medication for the treatmef CMV retinitis in patients with AIDS. CMV retitis is a condition caused by a viral
infection that is characterized by lesions thatfan a patient's retina. This condition affectsspas with weakened immune systems and is
most common in patients with AIDS. If left untredt€€MV retinitis can lead to blindness. VISTIDE waggproved by the FDA in June 1996
and by the European regulatory authorities in M@971based on clinical trials demonstrating thatdhey delays the progression of CMV
retinitis lesions in newly diagnosed patients amngrieviously treated patients who had failed otherapies.

We sell VISTIDE in the U.S. through our sales foof&0 therapeutic specialists and five regionegctors. These specialists promote
VISTIDE through direct contact with physicians, pitals, clinics, and other healthcare providers wt®involved in the treatment of patie
with CMV retinitis. We sell VISTIDE to wholesaleand specialty distributors who sell the produdhia U.S. to healthcare providers. See
"Marketing and Sales." Outside the U.S., Pharm&oigoration has the exclusive right to sell VISTIDESTIDE is approved for sale in all
15 countries of the European Union as well as e other countries throughout the world. Phaimm&orporation pays us a percentage of
revenues it generates from sales of VISTIDE. Sa#ldBorative Relationships--Pharmacia Corporation.”

There are several other products that competeWg IDE. Ganciclovir, which is sold by Roche Labtides, is the most widely prescribed
drug treatment for CMV retinitis. Ganciclovir isailable in injectable and oral formulations, and tral formulation is approved for both
preventing and treating CMV retinitis. There isevide that is marketed by Bausch & Lomb Incorpatdtet is implanted in a patient's
infected eye and releases ganciclovir directhhtibfected area. In addition, AstraZeneca sellsj@ctable drug for the treatment of CMV
retinitis called foscarnet, and CibaVision sellBMV retinitis drug called fomivirsen, that is infed directly into the eye. We believe that
sales of VISTIDE will be lower in future periodsdaeise the CMV retinitis market continues to dectine to the success of combination
antiretroviral drug therapies in treating HIV-infed patients.

The most significant side effect associated withube of VISTIDE is kidney toxicity. Due to thiglsieffect, certain precautions must be
taken when VISTIDE is used, and in certain circianses VISTIDE may not be used. Each time VISTIDgiven to a patient, the patient
must first be tested for warning signs of kidneyiciy. If the patient does not have warning sigfi&idney toxicity, VISTIDE may be given
to that patient but only in combination with centablutions that reduce the possibility of kidnexitity. In addition, VISTIDE may not be
given to patients who are receiving other drugs ¢ha cause kidney toxicity. Patients who are réogiother drugs that are known to cause
kidney toxicity must discontinue taking those dragsl then wait seven days before using VISTIDEdrain animal studies, cidofovir, the
active ingredient in VISTIDE, has caused canceesihside effects and dosing limitations are a ctithgedisadvantage of VISTIDE.
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We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patightts and related technology for cidofovir from IBREGA, and are obligated to pay 5%
of net revenues from sales of VISTIDE or any ofwaducts containing cidofovir to IOCB/REGA. See 1i@borative Relationships--
IOCB/REGA."

DAUNOXOME

DaunoXome is a liposomal formulation of the antmamagent daunorubicin. We have received approvséli DaunoXome in the U.S. and
24 other countries as a first line therapy fortirgapatients who suffer from HIV-associated Kafmsarcoma. Kaposi's sarcoma is a disease
characterized by widely disseminated lesions insttie, mucous membranes, lymph nodes and viscata#m be life threatening for patients
suffering from AIDS.

DaunoXome uses our proprietary liposomal technotogyeliver safer and more effective doses of dauwioin to the disease site. Studies
have shown that DaunoXome may actually locate andraulate in the patient's tumor and allow a patiemeceive higher concentrations of
daunorubicin at the disease site than could baratavith an equivalent dose of non-liposomal daubizin.

DaunoXome is marketed in the U.S. and abroad bylmrapeutic specialists and, in certain foreigantes, by distributors. We believe that
sales of DaunoXome will be lower in future peridxause the number of HIV-infected patients wheetigvKaposi's sarcoma has declined
significantly in recent years due to the succesafbination therapies in treating HIV patients.

OUR PRODUCTS IN LATE STAGE CLINICAL TRIALS

We have two product candidates that we are devadapilarge, late-stage human clinical trials: fena DF for treating patients with HIV
and adefovir dipivoxil for treating patients wittBN. If these Phase IlI clinical trials are succetsive will apply to the FDA and other
foreign regulatory agencies for approval to sedsthdrugs. Based on results to date, we expeppty o the FDA and the European Union
for approval of tenofovir DF in mid-2001. In additi, in January 2001 we acquired exclusive rightaaoket Cidecin-TM- in 16 European
countries. Cidecin is an antibacterial that is gadeveloped by Cubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. in ®hasnd Phase 11l clinical trials. If Cubist's
Phase llI clinical trials are successful, we widpdy for regulatory approval of Cidecin in Europ®e cannot, however, determine with any
certainty if any of these clinical trials will bescessful and, if they are successful, whetheoothre FDA or other regulatory agencies will
approve any of these drugs for marketing.

TENOFOVIR DISOPROXIL FUMARATE
Tenofovir DF is a nucleotide analogue reverse traptase inhibitor given once daily as part of camaltion therapy to treat HIV infection.

In February 2001, we announced preliminary 24-wasghk from study 907, a 48-week Phase 11l clinidal evaluating a 300 mg dose of
tenofovir DF as a component of combination therapy52 treatment-experienced patients at 70 gitéisd U.S., Europe and Australia. We
designed study 907 to provide us with conclusiva da the safety and efficacy of this dosage off@rir DF. In this study, patients were
randomly divided into two groups: one group of eats who had tenofovir DF added to their existiombination therapy (two-thirds of
enrolled patients), and one group of patients whoevgiven placebo in addition to their existingrépgy (onethird of enrolled patients). The
results suggest that, following 24 weeks of treatime

- Tenofovir DF reduced patients' HIV viral loads dny average of approximately 75% (-.61 log(10Qrimary endpoint of this trial.

- Tenofovir DF suppressed HIV viral loads to undédele levels in approximately 45% of patients, paned to 13% of patients who received
placebo.



- Tenofovir DF increased patients' CD4 cell cownltsle patients who received placebo had their CBIlaounts decrease. An increase in
CD4 cell count is an important indication that aiVidrug is improving a patient's immune system.

- The rate that patients discontinued the useraffte/ir DF (6%) was equivalent to the discontinaatrate for placebo.
- Tenofovir DF did not cause a significant increakeerious side effects relative to placebo.

In September 2000, we presented the results frdBraeek Phase Il dose ranging clinical trial ofafewir DF in 189 treatment-experienced
patients. In this study, patients received ondnde doses of tenofovir DF (300 mg, 150 mg or 7% engplacebo, in addition to their existing
combination therapy. At week 24, patients receiptaxebo were switched to the 300 mg dose. Thakghowed that, in this patient
population, following 24 weeks of treatment, higbeses of tenofovir DF were associated with loweels of HIV compared to placebo and
that at week 48, higher doses of tenofovir DF vassociated with lower levels of HIV compared todbag. At each measurement point, the
greatest reduction was observed in the 300 mg githg study also showed that 48 weeks of dosinkg teitofovir DF did not result in an
increase of serious adverse events.

These preliminary Phase Il results, combined with completed Phase Il results, support our bt tenofovir DF can be an important
treatment option for these difficult to treat pate We expect that data from these trials, togetilith data from other clinical trials, will form
the basis of marketing applications for treatinig thatient population that we expect to file in thé. and Europe in mid-2001.

In January 2001, we completed enrollment of 60fepts in study 903, a Phase lll clinical trial iakiate tenofovir DF for treating patients
who have not had prior HIV therapy. This study wiimpare the safety and efficacy of treatment wéttofovir DF in combination with
lamivudine (3TC) and efavirenz to the safety ariitafy of treatment with stavudine (d4T), lamivueliand efavirenz. This study will help us
determine the potential role of tenofovir DF fagating this patient population and, if successtuin the basis of a supplemental marketing
application for this use.

We cannot be certain that the data obtained fronclnical trials will support regulatory approvai tenofovir DF as the FDA and other
regulatory authorities could reject our marketipgléecation for a number of reasons including ifyttiequire a higher level of safety or
efficacy or more data than we anticipated, or dytklisagree with our design or interpretation esthtrials.

One of the major challenges in treating HIV-infecpatients is drug resistance. Because many axiséing therapies for treating HIV and
AIDS rely on similar drug processes, patients wheehdeveloped resistance to one drug often devegigtance to other drugs within its
class. We believe that tenofovir DF, if eventuapproved by the FDA, could be a very important dargreatment-experienced patients
because available data have shown that patientstddevelop rapid resistance to tenofovir DF arad tenofovir DF is effective in treating
patients who have developed resistance to othesles. We cannot be certain, however, that theteegxe data we may obtain upon
completion of our Phase Il clinical trials will v similar resistance characteristics to the prielary data from study 907 or the data we
obtained from the more limited Phase Il clinic#ls.

Another major concern in HIV treatment is convenenf dosing. The combination therapies that avéngaa very positive impact on the
health of HIV-infected patients require these pati¢o take numerous different drugs. Some of tesgs require multiple doses every day
and many have timing restrictions. This resultsordy in inconvenience for patients but also cdnmités to patients missing doses or not
adhering to their therapy. We believe that tenaf®k can be administered as a once-daily orabpila schedule that may be appealing to
HIV patients and their physicians. The low discouétion rate observed for tenofovir DF in study 80pports this belief.
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In December 1999, we discontinued developing adettpivoxil for treating HIV-infected patients. This decision followed a recomdagior
by an FDA Advisory Panel not to approve a 60 mgedafsadefovir dipivoxil for treating HIV due primigrto concerns of kidney toxicity that
developed late in the trials, as well as a desiradlditional evidence of treatment benefits. TeawfDF has a structure and activity similar to
adefovir dipivoxil. While tenofovir DF has not beagsociated with kidney toxicity and has shown sopéreatment benefits in our clinical
trials, we cannot be certain that the kidney tdyissues that occurred in the later stages oPtiese 111 clinical trials for adefovir dipivoxil
will not arise in the clinical trials for tenofovidF or that we will achieve adequate treatment fiene

We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patightts and related technology for tenofovir DF frt@CB/REGA and would be obligated
pay 3% of any net revenues from sales of tenofdfito IOCB/REGA in countries where the product patent protection. See
"Collaborative Relationships--IOCB/REGA."

ADEFOVIR DIPIVOXIL FOR HEPATITIS B

Hepatitis B is a highly contagious viral infectithrat can cause acute liver failure. Some patieengldp a chronic infection which over many
years can lead to complications (such as cirrhenrsiscancer) that can lead to death. The World Hé&adganization estimates that there
approximately 350 million people worldwide who a@méected with chronic HBV, including 1.25 milliorepple in the United States. Adefovir
dipivoxil is a nucleotide analogue reverse tranmgase inhibitor. Adefovir dipivoxil disables the NBrirus by interfering with the activity of
an enzyme known as HBV polymerase which is necedsathe HBV virus to replicate. In randomizeduthte-blind, placebo-controlled
Phase Il clinical trials, a 30 mg dose of adefalpivoxil reduced the median HBV viral load by 0\89% (approximately 4 log(10)) after
twelve weeks of treatment.

We have two separate Phase lll clinical trialsvial@ate the safety and effectiveness of adefopivdiil pills for treating patients with
chronic HBV infection. Both of our Phase Ill triakeere designed as randomized, double-blind, placentrolled studies and are being
conducted at clinical sites in the U.S., Canadaop®, Australia and Southeast Asia. One of thealks twhich is fully enrolled with 515
patients, is evaluating adefovir dipivoxil oncelgat 10 mg or 30 mg for treating patients who tesditive for the HBV "e" antigen, the most
common type of hepatitis. The other trial, whicluby enrolled with 185 patients, is evaluatingeéalir dipivoxil once daily at 10 mg for
treating patients with a type of HBV known as "mmecmutant hepatitis B." Precore mutant HBV is ntmshmon in countries of Southeast
Asia and the Mediterranean.

A vaccine is available that can prevent the trassion of HBV, but it does not cure patients whodme chronically infected with the virus

is expected that as this vaccine becomes more yvidglilable, the incidence of HBV will decreaseidfing therapies for treating patients
who are infected with HBV include the drugs EpikiBV (a form of lamivudine that is sold by GlaxoShifiine) and Intron-A (a form of
interferon alpha 2b that is sold by Schering PlQuflpivir-HBV is an orally-administered drug thaepents the virus from replicating in
patients. Intron-A is an injectable drug that caovfde a reduction in the amount of virus in theddl of some patients, but is often associated
with side effects. We believe that if the FDA appre adefovir dipivoxil, Epivir-HBV would be its mosignificant competition. Of course we
cannot be certain that adefovir dipivoxil will bppaoved for the treatment of HBV and we cannot ieiee if adefovir dipivoxil would be
competitive with Epivir-HBV. See "Competition."

As is the case with HIV, drug resistance is a serjgroblem with drugs that treat HBV. Availablealtd date has not demonstrated a
resistance-mutation associated with adefovir dixiia HBV suggesting that the development of resise to adefovir dipivoxil in HBV
patients may be slow and infrequent. We believettimresistance profile of adefovir dipivoxil cduhake adefovir dipivoxil an
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important drug for treating chronic HBV infectiole cannot be certain, however, that the resistdatiewe may obtain from the much
broader and longer term Phase 1l clinical triatsamlefovir dipivoxil will also show these resistartharacteristics.

As described above under tenofovir DF, we discagtihdevelopment of 60 mg doses of adefovir dipiMaxitreatment of HIV due to safety
and benefit concerns from the FDA. Studies havevahtbat adefovir dipivoxil is significantly morefettive against the HBV virus than
against the HIV virus, allowing us to use lower e®shat have not shown significant kidney toxiaityur clinical trials to date. We have
limited clinical data on the 10 mg dose of adefaipivoxil that we obtained from open label safstydies of adefovir dipivoxil in patients
with lamivudine resistant HBV who are either pre gost liver transplant patients or who are codtéd HIV/HBV. These studies have
demonstrated a decrease in HBV viral load thatsimslar to what has been seen with the 30 mg dogphase |l studies. We cannot be ce
that the broad, long term studies of adefovir digil’at 10 mg and 30 mg doses will demonstratéhéosatisfaction of the FDA and other
regulatory agencies, that adefovir dipivoxil canabgafe and effective treatment for chronic HBV.

Hepatitis B is most common in China and Southeagmcountries. In December 2000, we received append were granted a clinical
trials permit to initiate Phase | clinical trials China. We expect to commence these clinicaktiaR001. We have limited regulatory
expertise and no manufacturing or marketing capatiChina and Southeast Asia. Therefore, we wllf pn the assistance of third parties
these activities. It is also difficult to protectpnts in these countries and we could be adveasiegted if we were unable to obtain adequate
patent protection for adefovir dipivoxil in ChinacaSoutheast Asia. As part of our approval to comoadhase | clinical trials in China,
adefovir dipivoxil was granted Class | designatidrich would give us 12 years of market exclusivdy adefovir dipivoxil following any
regulatory approval in China.

We have an exclusive, worldwide license to patghtts and related technology for adefovir dipivdrdm IOCB/REGA, and would be
obligated to pay 3% of any net revenues from safleslefovir dipivoxil to IOCB/REGA in countries whethe product has patent protection.
See "Collaborative Relationships--IOCB/REGA."

CIDECIN

Cidecin (daptomycin for injection) is an investigatl antibacterial compound being developed byi§tutharmaceuticals, Inc. In January
2001, we entered into an agreement with Cubisttgrgus exclusive commercial rights to Cidecin iHuropean countries. Under this
arrangement, Cubist is responsible for the ongoiimical trials for the product and we are respblesfor European regulatory filings. We
believe that this arrangement represents a stcadggiortunity for us because Cidecin falls withur therapeutic focus of antifectives and i
a product that, if approved, could be sold throaghexisting European sales and marketing infrasire.

Laboratory tests have suggested that Cidecin maffbetive in rapidly killing most Gram-positive ¢taria, including those that have become
resistant to current therapies. Gram-positive adtimfections include complicated skin and sifstie infections, bacteremia, endocarditis or
infection of the valves of the heart, complicatemhary tract infections, pneumonia and osteomygetti infection of bone or bone marrow. As
is the case with HIV and HBV, resistance to exigtmti-bacterial therapy has become a significasiblpm in treating these infections. If
these laboratory tests are confirmed in clinidaldr Cidecin could be a very useful drug for tiegthese serious infections. There can be no
assurance, however, that these results will beireoed in clinical trials.

Cubist is currently evaluating Cidecin in multift@ase 1l trials for the treatment of complicat&ohsand soft tissue infection and community-
acquired pneumonia. If Cubist obtains data frons¢hieéhase Il clinical trials that show appropridéety and efficacy of Cidecin for these
uses, we would



file for marketing authorization in the Europeanidiand, if the application is approved, would $&tlecin through our European sales and
marketing infrastructure.

On March 14, 2001, Cubist announced preliminarga diam study 9901. Study 9901 is a pivotal phakelihical trial evaluating Cidecin for
complicated skin and soft tissue infection. Accogdio this announcement, a primary endpoint ofttiied, demonstrating equivalency to
comparable agents, was achieved.

We cannot accurately predict the outcome of thésial trials. If the trials being conducted by list are not successful, we may be
prevented from obtaining regulatory approval ofégid in Europe or may elect to conduct additionials ourselves or together with Cubist
and pay for all or a portion of the costs assodiatih those trials. Cubist does not have an olibgeto conduct or pay for additional clinical
trials.

Cubist is also evaluating Cidecin in a Phase IHical trial for the treatment of complicated uniparact infection and an open-label Phase I
clinical trial for the treatment of bacteremia, andy evaluate Cidecin for the treatment of endatiarand other infections. Our agreement
with Cubist does not require Cubist to continueamplete these trials but, if Cubist successfulignpletes Phase Il clinical trials for these
uses, we would seek regulatory approval for thegs in our territory and would have exclusive comuia¢rights to these indications in our
territory. We cannot predict the outcome of thdsegaal trials or if Cubist will evaluate Cidecimoif additional uses.

Cubist is also developing an oral formulation gptenycin. Our agreement with Cubist would give xslesive commercial rights in our
territory to any oral formulation of daptomycin the developed by Cubist.

We are required to pay milestone payments to Cilbis¢d upon certain development goals relatingealinical development and regulatory
approval of Cidecin and any oral formulation of tapycin. We are also required to pay royalties tdi€t based upon our sales of Cidecin
and any oral formulation of daptomycin. See "Cablattive Relationships--Cubist."

OUR ONCOLOGY PORTFOLIO

We are developing three investigational compoundsur oncology program. One of these product caadi] NX 211, is in Phase Il clinical
trials, and the other two product candidates, GBHZ%nd GS 7836, are in preclinical development.

NX 211

NX 211 is a liposomal formulation of lurtotecan, amt-cancer compound developed by GlaxoSmithKline. @&arithKline granted to us the
exclusive right to develop and commercialize NX 23&e "Collaborative Relationships--GlaxoSmithKi{inX 211."

Prior to granting us these development and commiération rights, GlaxoSmithKline conducted Phdsdihical trials on non-liposomal
lurtotecan as a treatment for various forms of eanthese Phase Il clinical trials showed thabli@tan has anti-cancer activity but we
believe that GlaxoSmithKline did not continue pumngudevelopment of non-liposomal lurtotecan becdhbsg were not convinced that these
Phase Il clinical trials showed sufficient treatrmbeanefits at safe doses when compared to othdebieaanti-cancer agents. We entered into
the development and commercialization relationshith GlaxoSmithKline because we believe that bynaeing lurtotecan in a liposome, we
may be able to increase the treatment benefitgrtaftecan and give patients doses that are sdéetieE and convenient.

Lurtotecan is in a class of compounds called cathptins. These compounds work by disrupting ascebility to use topoisomerase I, an
enzyme that is required for cells to replicate d&ts show



that the ability of these compounds to kill andpstioe spread of cancer cells is directly relatethélength of time that cancer cells are
exposed to the compound. We believe that by fortimgldurtotecan in a liposome, we may be able twéase its time of exposure and its
treatment benefits.

In 2000, we completed three Phase | single ag@nital trials that evaluated different doses ameatment schedules of NX 211. These
studies, which involved 108 patients, establishethaimum tolerated dose for NX 211 with hematolagtoxicity as the dose limiting factor.
We also observed anti-tumor or biological activityseven of these difficult to treat patients. Véamot be certain that the anti-tumor activity
was related to NX 211 since these trials were meighed to evaluate efficacy. One additional Phagggle agent trial is ongoing. NX211 is
also being evaluated in Phase | trials in combamesvith another cancer therapy.

Based on these Phase | results, we commenced a Pleéisical program evaluating NX 211 for treagipatients with ovarian cancer. In
November 2000, two ovarian trials were initiatedean patients who had failed fi-line chemotherapy and one in patients resistant to
topotecan. In addition, we initiated a separatesPhiaclinical trial in December 2000 that will duate NX 211 for the treatment of patients
with small-cell lung cancer after failure of initiherapy. We also expect to evaluate NX 211 ireottancer types. We cannot accurately
predict the outcome of these clinical trials.

We are required to pay milestone payments to GlatiKline if we achieve certain development goa&lsited to the clinical development
and regulatory approval of NX 211. We are not regflito pay any royalties or other payments to GmithKline based upon any sales of
NX 211. See "Collaborative Relationsf--GlaxoSmithKline--NX 211."

GS 7904L

GS 7904L is also a liposomal formulation of a conmbthat was developed by GlaxoSmithKline for tieatment of cancer. We acquired
exclusive worldwide rights to develop and commédizéathis compound from GlaxoSmithKline in DecemB600.

Prior to our acquiring these rights, GlaxoSmithl€limad discontinued development of this compounthdW@hase | clinical trials. As is the
case with NX 211, we hope that by delivering thenpound using our proprietary liposomal technologg,will be able to improve the safety
and efficacy profile of this compound.

This investigational compound is part of a classafipounds known as thymidilate synthase inhibjtord’S inhibitors. TS inhibitors act by
preventing the production of the thymidilate systhanzyme, an enzyme that is necessary for celltigrd his enzyme is expressed at
significantly higher levels in tumor cells thanhiralthy cells making it an appropriate target fameer therapy. Other TS inhibitors that have
been approved by regulatory agencies are used=fatirig colorectal and breast cancer. Our predirstudies to date indicate that the
liposomal formulation of the compound is associatitti significant tumor growth inhibition and mayprove the safety profile of the
compound.

If our preclinical studies are successful, we gtabegin Phase | human clinical trials of GS 79@4R001. We cannot be certain that our
preclinical studies will be successful. Even ifgaereclinical studies are successful, we cannotltain that we will be able to submit an
application to begin clinical testing in 2001, bat if commenced, these clinical trials would becassful.

We are required to pay milestone payments to GlextiKline if we achieve certain development goa&lsiting to the clinical development
and regulatory approval of GS 7904L. We are algoired to pay royalties to GlaxoSmithKline basedmupny sales of GS 7904L. See
"Collaborative Relationships--GlaxoSmithKline--GS0AL."
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GS 7836

Also in December 2000, we acquired exclusive, weide rights to GS 7836 (4'-thio-araC) from the $mub Research Institute, or SRI. We
are evaluating GS 7836 in preclinical studies fi@r potential treatment of cancer.

GS 7836 is in a class of compounds called nucleamnélogs. It is believed that nucleoside analoguebit tumor cell growth by preventing
the replication of DNA. FDA-approved drugs in tklass have been used to treat acute and chrokiertgas, pancreatic and non-small cell
lung cancer. GS 7836 has demonstratedaarteer activity against solid tumors in preclinisaldies conducted by SRI and Gilead. We ca
be certain that our preclinical studies will be cagsful.

We are required to pay milestone payments to SReifichieve certain development goals relatingécctinical development and regulatory
approval of GS 7836. We are also required to pgglties to SRI based upon our sales of GS 7836 Geltaborative Relationships--
Southern Research Institute.”

OUR SCIENCE

We have research scientists in Foster City andd$awas, California, and Boulder, Colorado engagethéndiscovery and development of
new molecules and technologies that we hope vl i® new medicines and novel formulations of éxgstirugs. Our therapeutic focus is in
the areas of infectious diseases and cancer.

NUCLEOTIDE ANALOGUES

Our scientists are working with our proprietary leatide analogues to develop treatments for viriedtions. These compounds treat viral
infections by interfering with the activity of caih enzymes that are necessary for the virus te.gfor example, VISTIDE, a nucleotide
analogue of cytosine, inhibits the activity of arzyme in the cytomegalovirus that is essentiattiat virus to spread. Tenofovir DF and
adefovir dipivoxil are nucleotide analogues thatkvoy inhibiting the activity of reverse transcape, an enzyme necessary for replication of
the HIV virus (tenofovir DF) and the HBV virus (edeir dipivoxil). Other viruses we are seeking tedt using nucleotide analogues include
the herpes and pox viruses. We are also evalus¢imgral nucleotide analogues in animals for agt&gainst cancer.

We believe that small molecule nucleotide analogaesoffer advantages as therapeutics. These adyeminclude:

- These molecules have demonstrated ability to woboth infected and uninfected cells. This coatdble us to develop drugs that not only
treat a patient who is infected with a virus buttban also prevent a healthy person from becomiegted in the first place; and

- Drugs developed with these molecules have beenwrsto have treatment activity in a patient fordenperiods of time than other available
drugs. This could enable us to develop drugs #xtire less frequent dosing and are thus more coeviefor patients.

Given the complexity of drug development, we carbtertain that any drug candidates we develdp this science will have any or all of
these advantages. Even if we do develop drug catedidvith some or each of these advantages, thedfidAther regulatory agencies could
reject marketing approval of these drug candidftesther reasons, including safety and beneficeons.

LIPOSOMES

We also have scientists who are focused on applyumgproprietary liposomal drug delivery technoldgydevelop safer, more effective and
more convenient drugs. Liposomes are sub-microscopi
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structures made of phospholipids, the basic commsre human cell walls. They are hollow spherés which drugs can be packed. We
believe that we can influence the way compoundsedeased and distributed in the body by placimgrtiin liposomes. This can, in turn,
improve the safety and treatment benefits of swchpounds. For example, we developed AmBisome byrporating amphotericin B in a
liposome. Pre-clinical studies have shown that AsoBie delivers amphotericin B in a manner that tesunlfewer side effects and improved
treatment benefits over conventional amphotericimBluding concentrating the drug at the sitehaf infection, extending the time the drug
remains in the blood stream to prolong the therpetffect and reducing kidney toxicity and inj@ctirelated reactions.

Our current strategy is to use our liposomal temowith compounds we develop internally and tentify appropriate compounds
developed by third parties for use with this tedbgg. Compounds developed by third parties thatgmropriate for our technology include
those that, like amphotericin B, have proven theudip benefits but suffer from significant sideeefts, or that suffer from dosing and
administration problems. We believe that we canaisdiposomal technology to improve the safetyhafse drugs while maintaining or even
improving their therapeutic benefits.

We have identified certain generic compounds (campgs that are not protected by patents) and ptapyieompounds owned by third
parties that may benefit substantially from ouosipmal technology, and we have begun formulatiodiss for these compounds. In addition,
we have discussed, and will continue to discudgloarative relationships with other companies ¢évalop liposomal formulations of their
compounds.

HIV PROTEASE INHIBITORS

We are evaluating a number of small molecule comgsiknown as "protease inhibitors" for the treathoériHIV. Protease inhibitors act by
interfering with the activity of protease, an enzythat, like reverse transcriptase, is necessamefiication of the HIV virus. We have
conducted a number of preclinical experiments esé¢hcompounds and have demonstrated that theypbést antiviral activity. Our
scientists are trying to increase the safety asatiinent benefits of and to reduce resistance cosedth these compounds before conducting
further preclinical development.

ADENOSINE RECEPTOR REGULATORS

We are working with the National Institute of Diab®, Digestive and Kidney Diseases at the Natibrsditutes of Health (NIH) to study
compounds known as adenosine receptor agonistardaagdonists for the treatment and prevention ofaurgenerative disorders (disorder
the brain and upper spine) associated with stddleealso intend to evaluate the use of these congsoumninflammatory and allergic
conditions. NIH researchers have developed a nuoflttese compounds, some of which have shown ket benefits in stroke.

DRUG DISCOVERY TECHNOLOGIES

We have a technology that we call the "SELEX pret#sat is used to identify potential drug candédaflhis process works by identifying
drug compounds, known as "aptamers", that tendhis o the molecule that is causing the diseaseaBge these aptamers tend to bind to the
disease molecules, we believe that they can beteiéefor treating disease at relatively low dos¢X.1838 is an example of an aptamer
identified with the SELEX process. See "CollabamtRelationships--EyeTech."
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MARKETING AND SALES

We established a U.S. sales force of therapeugicialists when we began selling VISTIDE in 1996.84%sult of our merger with NeXstar
July 1999, we also have marketing subsidiariehéntinited Kingdom, Germany, Italy, Spain, Franaati®yal and Australia and a marketing
operation in Greece. Our sales professionals ittle, Europe and Australia promote and sell AmBis@nd DaunoXome. AmBisome is
also sold by Fujisawa in the U.S. (where we co-prtenthe product) and in Canada. Pharmacia Corporatomotes and sells VISTIDE in
countries outside of the U.S. and Hoffmann-La Rquteenotes and sells Tamiflu everywhere it is sbidMarch 2000, we entered into a
promotion agreement with The Virco Group. We amelnitiés agreement in February, 2001. Under thisngement, our U.S. therapeutic
specialists will promote Virco's HIV resistance nitoring services to HIV-treating physicians througgime 2001.

Our U.S. sales force currently consists of apprexéty 30 sales representatives and five regiomatttirs who promote VISTIDE to
physicians, hospitals, clinics, and other healthgaoviders who treat AIDS patients, AmBisome tiedtious disease specialists, hospitals,
home health care providers and cancer speciaistsPaunoXome to cancer specialists and hospithis U.S. sales force is supported by a
managed care/national accounts team and by a riraykatd sales support staff of approximately 20ppebased at our headquarters in F
City, California.

Our international marketing subsidiaries are eaddbd by a general manager who oversees the gparatithe market(s) served by that
subsidiary. We currently have approximately 140ppedocated mainly in Europe, including medicahgfincial and human resources
personnel, who support our international salesraarketing operations. These subsidiaries alsotassibtaining regulatory approvals in the
countries where they are located.

In the U.S., we sell VISTIDE and DaunoXome to wisalers and specialty distributors who, in turnl, e products to physicians, hospitals,
clinics, pharmacies and other healthcare provideusside of the U.S., we have agreements with théndy distributors, including distributors
in certain of the countries where we have markebipgrations, to promote, sell and distribute AmBiscand DaunoXome. These
international distribution agreements generallyjae that the distributor has the exclusive righs¢ll AmBisome and DaunoXome in a
particular country or several countries for a sfiediperiod of time.

If tenofovir DF is approved for treatment of HIV/|aager sales force and additional marketing reszsiwvould be required in the U.S. and
Europe to expand our coverage of healthcare piiofesls treating HIV patients. It is our currentantion to retain the commercial rights to
adefovir dipivoxil for HBV in the U.S. and Europadsell it through marketing partners or distrilvatm Asia and the rest of the world. If we
do retain significant commercial rights to adefalipivoxil for HBV and the product is approved, weuld need to increase our sales force in
the U.S. and Europe and use additional marketisgurees to sell this product. If Cidecin is appibf@ marketing in Europe, we believe t
given the profile of the product and its target ke&rour existing sales force in Europe will befisignt to market Cidecin.

VISTIDE is returnable in its original, unopened taner up to one year beyond the expiration datd damaged when received by the
customer. Our customers may return AmBisome or DXome if the shelf life has expired or if the pratlis damaged or defective when i
received by the customer. AmBisome has an apprshreld life of 36 months in the U.S. and 30 monthsiost European countries.
DaunoXome has a shelf life of 52 weeks in the @r#l most European countries. Additionally, cerggomernmental agency customers are
entitled to discounts, and we are required to plevebates under state Medicaid programs. To dtens, rebates and discounts have not
been material. Fujisawa establishes the returtyédir AmBisome in North America, and Hoffmann-Ladhe establishes the return policy
for Tamiflu.
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COLLABORATIVE RELATIONSHIPS

As part of our business strategy, we establistabolations with other companies to assist in thécal development and/or
commercialization of certain of our products anddorct candidates and to provide support for owarsh programs. We also evaluate
opportunities for acquiring from other companiesducts or rights to products and technologiesdmaicomplementary to our business. Our
existing collaborative relationships are as follows

HOFFMANN-LA ROCHE

In September 1996, we entered into a collaboragmeement with Hoffmann-La Roche to develop andmeruialize therapies to treat and
prevent the flu. Under this agreement, we grantefiriinn-La Roche exclusive worldwide rights todllour proprietary influenza
neuraminidase inhibitors, including Tamiflu. In ©ber 1999, the FDA approved Tamiflu for marketimgl an November 1999, Hoffmann-La
Roche began selling Tamiflu.

As of December 31, 2000, we have received liceesgs &nd milestone payments from Hoffmann-La Roatadiig $39 million relating to the
execution of this agreement and to regulatorydgiand approvals for Tamiflu. Hoffmann-La Rochedimded all of the research and
development costs for Tamiflu, including reimbursento us of $28 million for the period from Januar 1997 through December 31, 2000.
In addition, under this agreement:

- Hoffmann-La Roche is responsible for pricing,mpaiding and selling Tamiflu on a worldwide basis;

- Hoffmann-La Roche pays us a percentage of itsevenues from sales of Tamiflu. In certain circtanses, the amount that Hoffmann-La
Roche pays to us may be reduced, for examplegi€tist of materials they use to manufacture Tamifiteases. We receive payments and
recognize revenue from Hoffmann-La Roche in thetgudiollowing the quarter when the sales were madd

- Hoffmann-La Roche will make milestone paymentsdaf and when Tamiflu is approved in Europe.
The agreement with Hoffman-La Roche terminates ooumtry-by-country basis after the later of:

- the expiration of patent coverage for Tamiflu; or

- ten years from first commercial sale.

Hoffmann-La Roche has the right to terminate theagent in its entirety or on a country-by-courttagis prior to expiration at any time
upon 12 months notice.

FUJISAWA

In 1991, we entered into an agreement with Fujispreaiding that:

- We have the exclusive right to promote and setBdsome in all countries, except the U.S. and Canad
- Fujisawa has the exclusive right to promote aibAmBisome in Canada;

- We have the right to co-promote AmBisome withiajyva in the U.S., where Fujisawa has primary nesibdity for promoting and selling
AmBisome;

- We receive approximately 17% of the net reveritea sales of AmBisome in the U.S. for our co-prdimo efforts;
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- We receive payments and recognize revenue frgisavea in the month following the month when Fujisés sales are made;

- We would be required to pay Fujisawa 4% of owermies in connection with sales of AmBisome in i§icgmt Asian markets, including
Japan, Korea, Taiwan, China and India; and

- We manufacture AmBisome for all sales and Fujsgarchases AmBisome from us for sale in the U.8§.mice equal to our cost to
manufacture the product and for sale in Canadaaatcbst plus a specified percentage.

Our agreement with Fujisawa terminates when thieplatent covering AmBisome in the U.S. or Japariresp
IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, we entered into agreements WI@B/REGA relating to nucleotide compounds discosterethese institutions. In
December 2000, we paid IOCB/REGA $11 million toueel the royalties payable upon any sales of temolifv and adefovir dipivoxil by
2% to a royalty rate of 3%. Under these agreenmsmisamendments to these agreements:

- We received from IOCB/REGA the exclusive righttanufacture, use and sell the nucleotide compocodsred by these agreements;

- In countries where there is patent protectionawerequired to pay to IOCB/REGA 3% of the neerawes generated from any sales of
tenofovir DF and adefovir dipivoxil, and 5% of angt revenues generated from sales of VISTIDE agdb#rer products containing these
compounds, subject to minimum royalty payments; and

- In countries where there is no patent protectiomare not required to pay royalties to IOCB/ REféAsales of tenofovir DF and adefovir
dipivoxil and are required to pay 2.5% of any retanues generated from sales of VISTIDE and angrgioducts containing these
compounds.

We are currently making quarterly payments to IORBBGA based upon a percentage of sales of VISTIRiEaaa obligated to pay additional
amounts upon any commercial sales of adefovir dighor tenofovir DF. We will amortize the $11 midh payment made in December 2000
over the estimated commercial lives of tenofovir &tel adefovir dipivoxil, which will reduce any reped earnings on these products.

The agreements with IOCB/REGA terminate on a cqubyrcountry basis after the later of:
- expiration of patent coverage for any productiised under the agreements; or
- ten years from first commercial sale.

IOCB/REGA may terminate the licenses under theseeagents for a particular product in key marketsdfdo not make any sales of that
product within 12 months after regulatory apprawahose countries.

CUBIST

In January 2001, we entered into an agreement®@ithist giving us exclusive commercial rights inElropean countries to all oral and
injectable formulations of Cubist's investigatioaatibacterial compound daptomycin. These formaitegtinclude Cidecin, an intravenous
formulation of daptomycin currently in Phase llinital trials for treatment of bacterial infectiongnder this agreement:

- Cubist is required to complete ongoing clinicéls for Cidecin;
- We are responsible for all regulatory filings fonducts in our territory;
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- If Cidecin is approved for marketing in our tésry, we are responsible for marketing Cidecinum rritory;

- We paid an upfront fee to Cubist of $13 millidrttze time we signed this agreement and may bareztjto make additional payments to
Cubist of up to $31 million if certain goals reldt® the clinical development and regulatory appt@f Cidecin and an oral formulation of
daptomycin are achieved,;

- We are required to pay to Cubist a percentagrinfevenues from sales of products in our tegrijtor

- If Cubist desires to grant commercial rights moogal or injectable daptomycin-related producténtain other countries including any
country that joins the EU, Cubist must offer usrsaommercial rights on a priority basis; and

- Cubist is obligated to continue the preclinicaldlopment of an oral formulation of daptomycin amalld have an obligation to pursue
clinical development of that formulation if appragie.

This agreement expires on a country by countrysbaih respect to each product developed uporétiee bf:
- Ten years after first commercial sale of suctdpot in such country; or

- The date that there is no patent coverage fdr puaduct.

GLAXOSMITHKLINE--NX 211

In May 1998, we entered into agreements with Glaxiti¥line giving us rights to GlaxoSmithKline's gméetary compound lurtotecan and
granting GlaxoSmithKline rights to use our SELEXgess to identify aptamers for therapeutic useBdeember 2000, GlaxoSmithKline
waived its right to participate in the commerciation of NX 211 and its rights to royalties basedany sales of NX 211 in exchange for our
agreement to increase milestone payments upon thaglapprovals of NX 211.

Under the agreement relating to lurtotecan, wedaxeloping NX 211, a liposomal formulation of Iugoan. This agreement provides that:
- We have the exclusive right to develop and consrabre NX 211; and

- We may be required to make one time milestone paysrto GlaxoSmithKline if we achieve certain gaelated to the clinical developme
and regulatory approval of NX 211.

PHARMACIA CORPORATION

In August 1996, we entered into an agreement whitdriacia Corporation relating to VISTIDE. Undestagreement we received $10
million on signing and $10 million upon approva\dfSTIDE for marketing in Europe. In addition, umdhis agreement:

- Pharmacia Corporation has the exclusive rigmaoket and sell VISTIDE in all countries outsidettod U.S. and a right of first negotiation
for any competitive products we own;

- We are responsible for maintaining the patentgidofovir;
- We are required to sell bulk cidofovir to PharfaaCorporation;

- Pharmacia Corporation will pay to us a percent#ges net sales of VISTIDE and any other produtggeloped under the collaboration
agreement. We receive payments and recognize reMfesma Pharmacia Corporation in the quarter follogvihe quarter when the sales were
made; and
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- Pharmacia Corporation holds 2,267,572 sharesio€@mmon stock that it purchased in connectioh wits agreement. Pharmacia
Corporation may not sell their shares or acquiditamhal shares of our stock without our approwatiluwJune 2002.

Our agreement with Pharmacia Corporation expirea ocountry-by-country basis as patent coverag®f8mIDE expires or ten years from
first commercial sale of VISTIDE in countries whehe product is not covered by a patent.

In addition, Pharmacia Corporation may terminageagreement:

- upon six months notice; or

- upon notice on a country-by-country basis, thmamths before applying for marketing approval abanpetitive product.
GLAXOSMITHKLINE--GS 7904L

In December 2000, we entered into an agreement®l@RoSmithKline giving us rights to GS 7904L, avabanti-tumor compound. Under
this agreement;

- We have the exclusive worldwide right to devedo commercialize GS 7904L for all indications,estthan malaria;
- We are developing GS 7904L in a liposome anceaeduating it in preclinical studies for oncology;

- We paid an upfront fee to GlaxoSmithKline at timee we signed this agreement and may be requirethke payments to GlaxoSmithKline
if we achieve certain goals related to the clind@elopment and regulatory approval of GS 7904id; a

- If we successfully commercialize the product,weaild be required to pay to GlaxoSmithKline a petage of our net sales.

This agreement expires, on a country by countryshah respect to each product developed upotetiee of:

- Ten years after first commercial sale of suctdpod in such country; or

- The date that there is no patent coverage fdr puaduct.

SOUTHERN RESEARCH INSTITUTE

In December 2000, we entered into an agreementSRihgiving us rights to GS 7836, a novel anti-turmompound. Under this agreement:
- We have the exclusive worldwide right to devedoy commercialize GS 7836 for all indications;

- We are evaluating this compound in preclinicabi&s for oncology;

- We paid an upfront fee to SRI at the time we sijthis agreement and may be required to make pagrtee SRI if we achieve certain goals
related to the clinical development and regulatggroval of GS 7836; and

- If we successfully commercialize the product,waild be required to pay to SRI a percentage ohetisales.
This agreement expires on a country by countrysbaih respect to each product developed uporétiee bf:

- Ten years after first commercial sale of suctdpot in such country; or

- The date that there is no patent coverage fdr puaduct.
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SUMITOMO PHARMACEUTICALS CO., LTD.

In 1996, we entered into an agreement with Sumit®tmarmaceuticals Co., Ltd. that gave Sumitomo Xetusive right to develop and marl
AmBisome in Japan. Sumitomo paid to us $7 milliotha time we entered into this agreement and $8min March 1998 when Sumitomo
made a regulatory filing in Japan. Under the teofrithis agreement:

- Sumitomo is required to make a payment of $4iomlto us if AmBisome is approved for sale in Jgpan
- Sumitimo is required to pay to us a percentagengfrevenue they generate from sales of AmBis@mne;

- If AmBisome is approved in Japan, we would maotifee AmBisome for sale by Sumitomo in Japan. Tiigeghat we would charge
Sumitomo for the supply of AmBisome and the peragetof revenues that they would be required tatpar would be determined by the
price of AmBisome in Japan.

This agreement terminates on the later of:

- Ten years after Sumitomo begins selling AmBisamé&apan; or
- The date the last patent for AmBisome in Japdoires.
EYETECH PHARMACEUTICALS

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement withiTegh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to NX 1838.rééeived a $7 million up-front
licensing fee from EyeTech upon execution of theeament. Under the terms of the agreement:

- EyeTech received the exclusive right to develog @mmercialize NX 1838;

- We are entitled to additional cash payments fEyaTech of up to $25 million if and when EyeTecaadlges certain NX 1838 development
milestones; and

- If the product is successfully commercializedeEgch will pay us royalties on worldwide salesha product.

As part of this transaction, we received a fiverygarrant to purchase 833,333 shares of EyeTedtssBrconvertible preferred stock,
exercisable at a price of $6.00 per share, the @tavhich the stock was issued to other invesfsgequired by our license agreement with
the University Technology Corporation, we trans#drb% of this warrant to the University Technold@grporation (the right to acquire
41,666 shares) and therefore currently hold a watcapurchase 791,667 shares. In addition, weealgi@ provide clinical supplies of the
product to EyeTech for an initial one-year period.

This agreement expires upon the later of:

- Ten years after first commercial sale of any pidieveloped; or
- The date the last patent expires under the agreem

VIRCO GROUP

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement wighinco Group relating to Virco's HIV resistance mitoring services. Under this
agreement:

- We help to promote Virco's HIV resistance mornitgrservices; and
- Virco pays to us a fixed fee for this promotion.
This agreement will terminate in June 2001.
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PROLIGO L.L.C.

We own a 49% interest in Proligo L.L.C., a comp#mt manufactures oligonucleotides. We also haveemgents with Proligo and SKW
Americas, Inc. (the owner of the remaining 51% wfligo) relating to the ownership, operations amading of Proligo. Under these
agreements:

- We contributed a total of $4.9 million to Proligmfund its operations in late 1999 and early 28060 we have no further funding obligations
to Proligo;

- SKW Americas will have the right to purchase owmnership interest in Proligo for a 90-day periegjinning on July 29, 2001 for the
amount they would have been required to pay fdritharest had they purchased it in 1999;

- Over the next three years, SKW Americas is oltdiddo pay to us approximately $300,000; and

- Proligo agreed to manufacture oligonucleotidesiand we would pay them an amount equal to thairufacturing cost plus a pre-
determined percentage.

Proligo will dissolve and any remaining assets tdldistributed to its owners in August 2028, usitb® owners of Proligo at that time decide
to extend the term. The agreement relating to theufacture and supply of oligonucleotides expine&ugust 2008.

GLAXOSMITHKLINE--SELEX

At the time we entered into the agreement with G&mithKline relating to NX 211, we also enteresiah agreement giving
GlaxoSmithKline the non-exclusive right to use 8#LEX technology for five years to identify aptaser

- GlaxoSmithKline would be required to pay to uga at the time we enter into an additional agregme

- GlaxoSmithKline would be required to make paymdntus based on achieving certain goals relatirie regulatory approval of any
product they develop based on the aptamer; and

- GlaxoSmithKline would be required to pay to usesicentage of any revenues they may generate faten of any product they develop
based on the aptamer.

This agreement terminates on May 27, 2003 except:

- GlaxoSmithKline can extend this agreement for tolaial one year periods in which case GlaxoSmith&livould be required to pay to us
appropriate fee; and

- GlaxoSmithKline can terminate this agreementiedt any time on 90 days notice to us.
SOMALOGIC, INC.

In November 1999, we entered into an agreement3athalogic, Inc., a company formed by Larry Gohd founder of NeXstar, relating to
our SELEX technology. Under this agreement:

- We gave Somalogic the exclusive right to useSEEEX technology to make and sell in vitro diagimoptoducts (diagnostic products that
are not used in a person or animal);

- We assigned and sold to Somalogic certain paterdanaterials relating to in vitro diagnosticglirding robotic SELEX machines;

- We have the right to use the other drug discoteeiinology that is the subject of this agreemetetrnally to study diseases and in our drug
development and clinical trial programs; and
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- Somalogic paid to us the first installment oka ft the time we entered into the agreement aedand and final installment in November
2000.

This agreement terminates on the later of:

- On a country by country basis as patent covei@agenis drug discovery technology expires; or
- November 2024.

INTERNATIONAL DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENTS

We have various agreements with distributors irogar Asia, South America, the Middle East and Afticat grant these distributors the
exclusive right to sell AmBisome, and in some cd3asnoXome, in a particular country or countriesdspecified period of time. Most of
these agreements also provide for collaborativeresfbetween us and the distributor for obtainiegutatory approval for the product in the
particular country and for marketing the producttia country. Most of these agreements establfsica that the distributor must pay for our
product and require us to deliver quantities ofphmduct ordered by the distributor.

ACADEMIC AND CONSULTING RELATIONSHIPS

To supplement our research and development effistpart of our regular business we enter intanggaents with universities and medical
research institutions. These arrangements ofteviggas with rights to patents, patent applicatiand technology owned by these instituti
in return for payments and fees relating to ourafgbese rights.

UNIVERSITY TECHNOLOGY CORPORATION

We have an ongoing collaborative arrangement ngldat our SELEX technology with the University Teokogy Corporation, a technology
holding company for the University of Colorado aiulider. Under this arrangement:

- The University of Colorado at Boulder has giveall of its present and future rights to:

- inventions covered by patents and patent appiicatfor SELEX technology;

- improvements to SELEX technology it makes or oN&s's;

- oligonucleotides or other molecules it makes giSELEX technology;

- results of certain research; and

- computer software related to SELEX technology.

- We are required to pay to the University of Caltw at Boulder:

- 2% of the revenues we generate from our sal&EbEX-derived products;

- 15% of any amounts we receive from a third ptrat are based upon sales by those third parti8&bEX-derived products; and

- 5% of other payments we receive from third partis a result of certain arrangements we havethate third parties to develop and sell
SELEX-derived products.

MANUFACTURING
AMBISOME AND DAUNOXOME

We manufacture AmBisome and DaunoXome in commeggiahtities in two separate but adjacent faciliteSan Dimas, California. The
Medicines Control Agency of the United Kingdom has
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approved both of these facilities to manufactureBisome and DaunoXome for commercial use. The FDAdpproved both these facilities
to manufacture AmBisome but only one of these it&esl to manufacture DaunoXome for distributiorthie U.S. To import AmBisome and
DaunoXome into the European Union, we own a marnufg facility in Dublin, Ireland where we perforquality control testing, final
labeling and packaging for the European Union dsevéhere.

We use commercially available materials and equigrteemanufacture these products. Currently, waiolihe amphotericin B, daunorubic
HCI and cholesterol that we use to manufacture AsaBie and DaunoXome from single approved suppliers.

AmBisome is currently freeze dried at our San Dimaufacturing facility and is sold as a freezeedipproduct. Given our demands and
projections for growth in AmBisome use, we are ently using two different third parties to freezgy dome of the product and are evalua
the feasibility of installing additional freeze @y capacity in San Dimas. If we are unable to te@ppropriate third parties or install and
validate additional freeze drying capacity in Samas, our ability to increase AmBisome sales wdddliminished. Manufacturing
liposomal products is a particularly complex pracasd any new liposomal product we develop wilbiegjunique and complex variations in
our manufacturing process.

ANTIVIRAL PRODUCTS

We hire third parties to manufacture our antivaalgs for clinical and commercial purposes, inahgdVISTIDE, adefovir dipivoxil tablets
and tenofovir DF tablets. Hoffmann-La Roche mantufies Tamiflu. We have no commercial-scale manufagy facilities for our antiviral
products that are qualified under the FDA's curf@odd Manufacturing Practices, and we have no ntiglans to establish these facilities. In
using third parties, we cannot be certain that thiyperform their obligations effectively and antimely basis. If these third parties do not
perform effectively and timely, our clinical triats regulatory filings could be delayed or we cobélunable to deliver our products to
customers on a timely basis, and this would adiieeféect our operating results.

We have one supplier that has been approved biylideand EMEA to manufacture the cidofovir used ilsVIDE and a single FDA
approved supplier for the final drug product, arelvave submitted information on a second cidofsupplier to assure our supplies. We
manufacture the active ingredient in tenofovir DSMall quantities at our own facilities and irglar quantities through two contract
manufacturers. The final tenofovir DF and adefdairlets used in our clinical trials are manufaadusetwo contract manufacturing sites. If
manufacturing at any of these sites we use weeerinted for any reason, our ability to complete dinical trials or ship our products would
be impaired, and this would adversely affect us.

For our antiviral products in particular, we wiked to develop additional manufacturing capaldiiad establish additional third party
suppliers in order to manufacture sufficient quizegiof our product candidates to complete clinidals and to manufacture sufficient
guantities of any candidates that are approveddommercial sale. If we are unable to develop martufang capabilities internally or contre
for large scale manufacturing with third partiesameeptable terms for our antiviral products, dailityt to conduct large-scale clinical trials
and meet customer demand for commercial productdddme adversely affected.

We believe that the technology we use to manufaatur products and compounds is proprietary. Foaativiral products, we have
disclosed all necessary aspects of this techndtmggntract manufacturers to enable them to matwiathe products and compounds for us.
We have agreements with these manufacturers thamtended to restrict them from using or reveating technology, but we cannot be
certain that these manufacturers will comply withge restrictions. In addition, these manufactureudd develop their own technology
related to the work they perform for us that we magd to manufacture our products or compoundsc®iiel be required to enter into
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an agreement with that manufacturer if we wanteasethat technology ourselves or allow anotherufzaturer to use that technology. The
manufacturer could refuse to allow us to use ttegihnology or could demand terms to use their telclyy that are not acceptable.

We believe that we are in compliance with all mateenvironmental regulations related to the maaiwfiee of our products.
PATENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

Patents and other proprietary rights are very itgmto our business. If we have a properly desigmal enforceable patent it can be more
difficult for our competitors to use our technolagycreate competitive products and more diffiéoftour competitors to obtain a patent that
prevents us from using technology we create. Asgfasur business strategy, we actively seek paisstection both in the U.S. and
internationally and file additional patent applioat, when appropriate, to cover improvements incmmpounds, products and technology.
We also rely on trade secrets, internal know-h@ehmnological innovations and agreements with thadies to develop, maintain and protect
our competitive position. Our ability to be comtigg will depend on the success of this strategy.

We have a number of patents, patent applicatiodgights to patents related to our compounds, przdand technology, but we cannot be
certain that issued patents will be enforceablerovide adequate protection or that pending patpplications will result in issued patents.
The following table shows the actual or estimategiration dates in the U.S. and Europe for the prinpatents and for patents that may i
under pending applications that cover the compoimdsir marketed products and our product candidate

U.S. PATENT EX PIRATION EUROPEAN PATENT EXPIRATION
PRODUCTS
AMBISOME......ccoevveeeeiiiiin, 2016 2008
Tamiflu........cooevveeeeennnn.. 2016 2016
VISTIDE......cccoeeeiiineeins 2010 2012
DaunoXome..........ccccvvvvennenns 2009 2008
PRODUCT CANDIDATES
tenofovir DF...........ccccvnee 2017 2017*
adefovir dipivoxil................. 2014 2011
NX 211, 2013* 2012*
NX 1838.....ccccvvieeeirieeenn, 2012* 2016*
GS 7904L.....uvveeeeciiineeins 2015 2011
GS 7836...cccvvvveeciiieneeinns 2019* * 2019**
Cidecin.....ccocoeeevivieeeeenns N/A* ** 2019**

* Applications for these patents are pending. tepés from these applications do not issue, we @vaot have patent protection through the
dates indicated and would instead rely on othegratthat expire earlier. For example, if this patn tenofovir DF does not issue, we have
patents that expire in 2006 and 2013 that providéeption.

** These are method of use patents. In generalhotkdf use patents do not provide the same levetaiection as composition of matter
patents.

*** \We do not have commercial rights to Cidecintire United States.

Patents covering VISTIDE, tenofovir DF and adefalipivoxil, lurtotecan (the active ingredient in N41), Cidecin, GS 7904L and GS 7¢
are held by third parties. We acquired exclusigats to these patents in the agreements we haligheise parties. See "Collaborative
Relationships." Patents do not cover the activesidignts in AmBisome and DaunoXome. Instead, wd patents to the
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liposomal formulations of these compounds and pistect these formulations through trade secretsd@/not have patent filings covering
adefovir dipivoxil in China or in certain other Asi countries, although we do have applications ipgrid various Asian countries, including
China, that relate to specific forms and formulasiof adefovir dipivoxil. Asia is a major market #dBV therapies.

We may obtain patents for our compounds many yesficre we obtain marketing approval for them. Tinists the time that we can prevent
other companies from developing these compoundstendfore reduces the value of the product. Howeve can apply for patent term
extensions. For example, extensions for the patenis|STIDE have been applied for or granted inth8. and a number of European
countries, compensating in part for delays in olit@g marketing approval. Similar patent term exiems may be available for other products
that we are developing, but we cannot be certaiwiNebtain them.

It is also very important that we do not infringetents or proprietary rights of others and thatleaot violate the agreements that grant
proprietary rights to us. If we do infringe pateatsviolate these agreements, we could be prevdraeddeveloping or selling products or
from using the processes covered by those pateaigreements, or we could be required to obtaicems$e from the third party allowing us
use their technology. We cannot be certain thagdtiired, we could obtain a license to any thiagyptechnology or that we could obtain one
at a reasonable cost. If we were not able to olatagquired license, we could be adversely affected

Patents relating to pharmaceutical, biopharmacaidicd biotechnology products, compounds and psesesuch as those that cover our
existing compounds, products and processes and thaswe will likely file in the future, do notvahys provide complete or adequate
protection. Future litigation or reexamination predings regarding the enforcement or validity af@xisting patents or any future patents
could invalidate our patents or substantially redtieir protection. In addition, our pending pai@nplications and patent applications filec
our collaborative partners may not result in tleigce of any patents or may result in patentsdihabt provide adequate protection. As a
result, we may not be able to prevent third paftes developing the same compounds and produatsath are developing. Also, in the U,
patent applications are generally maintained imexgcuntil patents are issued so we cannot beioehat we are the inventor of technologies
covered by our pending patent applications orweatvere the first to file patent applications foose inventions.

We also rely on unpatented trade secrets and ireprents, unpatented internal know-how and techncdd@nanovation. In particular, a great
deal of our liposomal manufacturing expertise, whca key component of our liposomal technologyat covered by patents but is instead
protected as a trade secret. We protect theses mghinly through confidentiality agreements withr oarporate partners, employees,
consultants and vendors. These agreements prdatialt confidential information developed or mé&se®wn to an individual during the
course of their relationship with us will be kephfidential and will not be used or disclosed tiodiparties except in specified circumstances.
In the case of employees, the agreements provadathinventions made by the individual while eoy#d by us will be our exclusive
property. We cannot be certain that these partigsemply with these confidentiality agreementsat we would have adequate remedies for
any breach, or that our trade secrets will notmwtisee become known or be independently discoveyeaub competitors. Under some of our
research and development agreements, inventioosvdieed in certain cases become jointly owned bgnasour corporate partner and in
other cases become the exclusive property of oms.dt can be difficult to determine who owns atigalar invention, and disputes could
arise regarding those inventions.
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COMPETITION

Our products and development programs target a aupfldiseases and conditions, including fungadtibns, viral infections and cancer.
There are many commercially available productgtese diseases, and a large number of companigssitdtions are spending
considerable amounts of money and resources tdageadditional products to treat these diseases.cOuent products compete with other
available products based primarily on:

- product performance;

- safety;

- tolerability;

- acceptance by doctors;

- patient compliance;

- patent protection;

- ease of use;

- price;

- insurance and other reimbursement coverage;
- distribution;

- marketing; and

- adaptability to various modes of dosing.

Any other products we market in the future willatompete with products offered by our competittireur competitors introduce data that
shows improved characteristics of their productgrove or increase their marketing efforts or siriper the price of their products, sales
of our products could decrease. We also cannoetiaio that any products we develop in the futuittaempare favorably to products
offered by our competitors or that our existinduwiure products will compare favorably to any newducts that are developed by our
competitors. Our ability to be competitive also elegls upon our ability to attract and retain quadifpersonnel, to obtain patent protection or
otherwise develop proprietary products or proceasesto secure sufficient capital resources forstitestantial period that it takes to devel
product.

In markets where AmBisome has been approved astdifie therapy, it competes against traditiomaphotericin B, which is made by
Bristol-Myers Squibb Company and numerous generic manugastuVe expect to face significant competitiomfroew antifungal product
including caspofungin, a product developed by Méahek received marketing approval in January 2G@l\ericonazole, which is being
developed by Pfizer, Inc. Phizer has filed an aion for marketing approval for voriconazole. fiéhes also a number of other lipid-based
amphotericin B products that have been approvéideiJ.S. and throughout Europe, including Abeledtich is sold by Elan Corporation,
and Amphotec, which is sold by InterMune Pharmdcals, Inc. These products compete against AmBisasrgoth primary and secondary
therapy and have been offered at prices that asetl@an AmBisome's price.

Tamiflu competes with Relenza, an anti-flu drug ibasold by GlaxoSmithKline. Relenza is a neuradage inhibitor that is delivered as an
orally-inhaled dry powder. In addition, Johnson@hdson and Biocryst are developing a neuraminigdsbitor anti-flu drug that will
represent significant competition when and if tieAFapproves it. This drug may be administered asae-daily pill, as opposed to Tamiflu,
which must be taken twice daily. We cannot be aettzat Tamiflu will compare favorably to this drbgsed on performance, price, length of
dosing, side effects or any other criteria. John&dlmhnson is in advanced clinical trials with to@mpound, but it is unclear if or when this
product may be on the market.
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VISTIDE competes with a number of drugs that ateatt CMV retinitis. These drugs include:

- Ganciclovir, a drug that is sold in intravenousl @ral formulations by Hoffman La-Roche and asamar implant by Bausch & Lomb
Incorporated;

- Foscarnet, an intravenous drug sold by AstraZanecd
- Formivirsen, a drug that is injected directlyoirthe eye that is sold by CibaVision.

If approved, tenofovir DF will face substantial goetition. A number of drugs to treat HIV infectiand AIDS are currently sold or are in
advanced stages of clinical development, includi@groducts currently sold in the U.S. Among thmpanies that are significant
competitors in the HIV/ AIDS market are GlaxoSmithi€, Bristol-Myers Squibb, Hoffmann-La Roche, RfizMerck and DuPont Pharma.

Lamivudine is a drug that was developed by Glaxdsiine in collaboration with Biochem Pharma. Lamniline is sold in the U.S., China
and several other countries and has been showa effdctive in treating patients with HBV. If adefiodipivoxil is approved to treat HBV,
lamivudine will be significant competition.

There are drugs that have been approved, or aréragvapproval, for the treatment of Kaposi's sanedn the U.S. and Europe, including one
that is sold in a liposomal formulation. These dregmpete or are expected to compete with DaunoXome

A number of companies are pursuing the developmitechnologies competitive with our research paogs. These competing companies
include specialized pharmaceutical firms and lgrigermaceutical companies acting either indepengentiogether with biopharmaceutical
companies. Furthermore, academic institutions, gowent agencies and other public and private orgdions conducting research may seek
patent protection and may establish collaborativerggements for competitive products and programs.

We anticipate that we will face increased compmtiin the future as our competitors introduce newdpcts to the market and new
technologies become available. We cannot deterih@easting products or new products that our cotitpes develop will be more effective
or more effectively marketed and sold than any weatlevelop. Competitive products could renderteahnology and products obsolete or
noncompetitive before we recover the money anduress we used to develop these products.

GOVERNMENT REGULATION

Our operations and activities are subject to extenggulation by numerous government authoritiethe U.S. and other countries. In the
U.S., drugs are subject to rigorous FDA regulatiime Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and dtderal and state statutes and
regulations govern the testing, manufacture, saédfgctiveness, labeling, storage, record keempgroval, advertising and promotion of our
products. As a result of these regulations, prodagelopment and the product approval processrisesgpensive and time consuming.

The FDA must approve a drug before it can be sottié U.S. The general process for this approvas illows:
PRECLINICAL TESTING

Before we can test a drug candidate in humans, ust study the drug in laboratory experiments anahimals to generate data to support
drug's potential safety and benefits. We submdt daita to the FDA in an investigational new druglization, or IND, seeking their approval
to test the compound in humans.
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CLINICAL TRIALS

If the FDA accepts the investigational new drugl@ggion, we study the drug in human clinical tsié determine if the drug is safe and
effective. These clinical trials involve three segta phases which often overlap, can take manyyaat are very expensive. These three
phases, which are themselves subject to consigerefllation, are as follows:

- Phase I. The drug is given to a small numbereafithy human subjects or patients to test for gafletse tolerance, pharmacokinetics,
metabolism, distribution, and excretion.

- Phase II. The drug is given to a limited patigmpulation to determine the effect of the drugré@ating the disease, the best dose of the drug,
and the possible side effects and safety riskaefitug.

- Phase lll. If a compound appears to be effeaive safe in Phase Il clinical trials, Phase llhicial trials are commenced to confirm those
results. Phase lll clinical trials are long-termyalve a significantly larger population, are coothd at numerous sites in different geographic
regions and are carefully designed to provide b&iand conclusive data regarding the safety andfiie of a drug. It is not uncommon for a
drug that appears promising in Phase Il clinidaldrto fail in the more rigorous and reliable Rh#l§ clinical trials.

FDA APPROVAL PROCESS

If we believe that the data from the Phase lllichhtrials show an adequate level of safety afecéfeness, we will file a new drug
application, or NDA, with the FDA seeking approtalsell the drug for a particular use. The FDA wélview the new drug application and
often will hold a public hearing where an indepertdedvisory committee of expert advisors asks amtht questions regarding the drug. This
committee makes a recommendation to the FDA thadtidinding on the FDA but is generally followeglthe FDA. If the FDA agrees that
the compound has a required level of safety arettfieness for a particular use, it will allow osstll the drug in the U.S. for that use. Itis
not unusual, however, for the FDA to reject an mpion because it believes that the drug is nfet eaough or effective enough or because it
does not believe that the data submitted is rediablconclusive.

At any point in this process, the development dfwy could be stopped for a number of reasons dimdusafety concerns and lack of
treatment benefit. We cannot be certain that argsPM, Phase Il or Phase Il clinical trials th&t ave conducting, including those for
tenofovir DF for HIV and adefovir dipivoxil for cbnic HBV, or any that we conduct in the future,lsié completed successfully or within
any specified time period. We may choose, or thé Ry require, us to delay or suspend our clinidals at any time if it appears that the
patients are being exposed to an unacceptablehtresdtor if the drug candidate does not appeératee sufficient treatment benefit.

The FDA may also require us to complete additisesting, provide additional data or informationpitmve our manufacturing processes,
procedures or facilities or require extensive poatketing testing and surveillance to monitor taiety or benefits of our product candidates
if they determine that our new drug applicationglnet contain adequate evidence of the safety andfits of the drug. In addition, even if
the FDA approves a drug, it could limit the useshef drug. Approvals can also be withdrawn if tfAFdoes not believe that we are
complying with regulatory standards or if probleans uncovered or occur after approval.

In addition to obtaining FDA approval for each drtlie manufacturing facilities for any drug we siitluding those of companies who
manufacture our drugs for us as well as our owrstrba approved by the FDA and are subject to periodpections by the FDA. Foreign
establishments that manufacture products to beisdlte U.S. must also be approved by the FDA ardsabject to periodic regulatory
inspection. Manufacturing facilities located in @@inia, including our San Dimas facility and Fas@ty facility, also must be licensed by
State of California in compliance with local regoly requirements.
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Drugs that treat serious or lithreatening diseases and conditions that are mafuadely addressed by existing drugs may be ddsidjaa fas
track products by the FDA and may be eligible foofity six month review and accelerated approfaligs receiving accelerated approval
must be monitored in post-marketing clinical trislorder to confirm the safety and benefits of dineg. Tenofovir DF for HIV has qualified
as a fast track product and may be eligible foekated approval. We have not determined if weleveaek "fast track” status of any other
products if they qualified or the impact of thiatsis on the timing or likelihood of approval of asfythese potential products or those of our
competitors.

We are also subject to other federal, state aral legulations regarding workplace safety and ptaia of the environment. We use
hazardous materials, chemicals, viruses and varaiisactive compounds in our research and devedopactivities and cannot eliminate
risk of accidental contamination or injury from seematerials. Any misuse or accidents involving¢heaterials could lead to significant
litigation, fines and penalties.

Drugs are also subject to extensive regulationideisf the U.S. In the European Union, there ismtralized approval procedure that
authorizes marketing of a product in all countifethe European Union (which includes most majarntdes in Europe). If this procedure is
not used, under a decentralized system an appiroeak country of the European Union can be usexdbtain approval in another country of
the European Union under a simplified applicatioocess. After approval under the centralized prosedoricing and reimbursement
approvals are also required in most countries. UD&ETwas approved by the European Union under th&rakzed procedure. Tamiflu and
tenofovir DF will be reviewed under the centralizgdcedure, but neither drug has been approvedrogde.

PRICING AND REIMBURSEMENT

Insurance companies, health maintenance organigali®VOs), other third-party payors and some gawemts seek to limit the amount we
can charge for our drugs. For example, in certaiaifin markets, pricing negotiations are often nexglto obtain approval of a product, an
the U.S. there have been, and we expect that wireontinue to be, a number of federal and spatgosals to implement drug price control.
In addition, managed care organizations are beapmiore common in the U.S. and will continue to slegler drug prices. The
announcement of these proposals or efforts careqaursstock price to lower, and if these propoasdsadopted, our revenues would decre

Our ability to sell our drugs also depends on thalability of reimbursement from governments amhgite insurance companies. These
governments and insurance companies often demaateseor predetermined discounts from list prigés.expect that products we are
developing, particularly for AIDS indications, whble subject to reimbursement issues. We cannotibairc that any of our other products that
obtain regulatory approval will be reimbursed bggh government and insurance companies.

Regulatory approval of prices is generally requirethost foreign countries. In particular, certasuntries will condition their approval of a
product on the agreement of the seller not totketl product for more than a certain price in gw@intry and in the past have required price
reductions after or in connection with product awat. We cannot be certain that regulatory authesrin the future will not establish lower
prices or that any regulatory action reducing theepof our products in any one country will not/bahe practical effect of requiring us to
reduce our prices in other countries.

EMPLOYEES
As of February 28, 2001, we had more than 850tfiole employees. We believe that we have good oglativith our employees.
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RISK FACTORS

In evaluating our business, you should carefullysider the following risks in addition to the otlieformation in this report. Any of the
following risks could materially and adversely affeur business, operating results and financiatiitmn.

ANY SIGNIFICANT REDUCTION IN AMBISOME SALES WOULD S IGNIFICANTLY REDUCE OUR OPERATING INCOME
AND COULD REQUIRE US TO SCALE BACK OUR MANUFACTURIN G OPERATIONS AND REDUCE OUR SALES FORCE.

AmBisome sales for the years ended December 3B, 488 2000 were approximately $129 million, or 7&#tg $141 million, or 72%, of o
total revenues. We expect that revenues from séldsmBisome will continue to constitute a substahthajority of our total product revent
at least through 2001.

Accordingly, for the foreseeable future, we expghat we will continue to rely on sales of AmBisotoesupport our existing manufacturing
and sales infrastructure and to provide operatiagme to offset a significant portion of our adretrative, research and development
expenditures. Any significant reduction in sale®\afBisome, whether as a result of the introductbnompetitive products or otherwise,
would hurt our business, and we would have to deaté& our manufacturing operations and reduce aesdorce. There are several products
on the market that compete with AmBisome and aregaly priced lower than AmBisome. We expect tefaignificant competition from
new antifungal products, including caspofunginredpct developed by Merck that received marketimgraval in January 2001, and
voriconazole, which is being developed by Pfizec, IPfizer has filed an application for marketimpgpeoval of voriconazole.

TAMIFLU IS A NEW DRUG, AND IT MAY NOT GAIN SIGNIFIC ANT MARKET ACCEPTANCE.

Most people who become infected with the flu usereitie-counter drugs to treat the flu symptomsrahdon their immune system to fight
the infection. Tamiflu is in a new class of preptidn drugs designed to prevent and treat thePflitients may be reluctant to visit a physician
or seek a prescription drug for the flu, physiciaresy be reluctant to prescribe a flu drug, and gowent reimbursers and private insurance
companies may refuse to pay for an anti-flu dragorider for Tamiflu to be successful, our marketyagtner Hoffmanr-a Roche will need t
increase awareness and acceptance of this newaapi@ preventing and treating the flu. The 1990e2flu season was the first flu season
that Tamiflu was commercially available. To date tincidence of flu for the 2000-2001 flu seasonlieen very low. It is too early to
determine if Tamiflu will achieve significant matkacceptance.

WE HAVE A HISTORY OF LOSSES, EXPECT TO OPERATE AT A LOSS FOR THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE AND MAY
NEVER BE PROFITABLE.

We have never been profitable on a full-year ba#is.may never become profitable. At December 30026ur accumulated deficit was
approximately $506 million. Our losses have resbifiencipally from expenses associated with oueaesh and development programs and,
to a lesser extent, from sales, general and adimgtiie expenses. Our product sales and royaltymees are derived from sales of
AmBisome, VISTIDE and DaunoXome and royalty arrangats related to Tamiflu, AmBisome and VISTIDE.

WE DEVELOP DRUGS TO TREAT HIV AND AIDS AND RELATED CONDITIONS, AND THEREFORE CHANGES IN THE
REGULATORY AND COMMERCIAL ENVIRONMENT FOR HIV AND A IDS THERAPIES COULD HARM OUR BUSINESS.

Several of our products and products in developraddtess HIV and AIDS or related conditions. Thaselucts include VISTIDE for CMV
retinitis, tenofovir DF for HIV and AIDS, and DauXdome for HIV-associated Kaposi's sarcoma. We dgv#iose products based upon
current
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policy and the current marketplace for HIV and Al@rapies, as well as our prediction of futurdqyoand the future marketplace for these
therapies. Our business is subject to substaiglabecause these policies and markets changelyguaic unpredictably and in ways that
could impair our ability to obtain regulatory appaband commercial acceptance of these products.

OUR OPERATIONS DEPEND ON COMPLIANCE WITH COMPLEX FD A AND COMPARABLE
INTERNATIONAL REGULATIONS. FAILURE TO OBTAIN BROADAPPROVALS ON A TIMELY BASIS OR TO ACHIEVE
CONTINUED COMPLIANCE COULD DELAY COMMERCIALIZATIONOF OUR PRODUCTS.

The products that we will develop and sell musapproved and will be subject to extensive regutakip the FDA and comparable agencies
in other countries. We are continuing clinicallsitor AmBisome for currently approved and addiibnses. We are also conducting clinical
trials for three other products: tenofovir DF, amlaf dipivoxil and NX 211. We anticipate that wellionduct a variety of clinical trials and
file for marketing approval of additional produciger the next several years. These products mbtpfegceive marketing approval on a
timely basis, or at all. We also cannot be certia@t we will file an NDA for tenofovir DF in mid-ys 2001, or at all, as unexpected results of
ongoing clinical trials or unexpected requests ftomFDA for additional data could delay or previmatt filing. In addition, tenofovir DF m:
not be granted priority review by the FDA, whichane that any NDA would not be reviewed within 6 ti@nof submission. In addition,
these products may receive marketing approvalgptaat limitations on their uses. These failuresags or limitations, as well as other
regulatory changes, actions and recalls, couldydsdenmercialization of any products and adversécaour results of operations.

In addition, even after our products are marketteel products and their manufacturers are subjemtitinual review. Later discovery of
previously unknown problems with our products, own manufacturing or the production by third-partgnufacturers may result in
restrictions on our products or the manufactureusfproducts, including withdrawal of the produictsn the market. If we fail to comply wi
applicable regulatory requirements, we could bgesmtlo penalties including fines, suspensionsgfifatory approvals, product recalls,
seizure of products and criminal prosecution.

RESULTS OF CLINICAL TRIALS AND APPROVAL OF PRODUCTS ARE UNCERTAIN, AND WE MAY BE DELAYED IN OR
PROHIBITED FROM SELLING OUR PRODUCTS.

We have a number of potential products that haaehred the development stage. These potential piothatude tenofovir DF, adefovir
dipivoxil, NX 211, GS 7904L and GS 7836. We will tegjuired to demonstrate the safety and effects®onéthese and any other product:s
develop in each intended use through extensivdipiead studies and clinical trials in order to alst regulatory approval of these products.
The results from preclinical and early clinicaldies do not always accurately predict results tier)darge-scale clinical trials for several
reasons, including:

- preliminary results may not be indicative of effeeness;
- further clinical trials may not achieve the dediresult; and

- further clinical trials may reveal unduly harmgitle effects or may show the drugs to be lesstffethan other drugs or delivery systems
for the desired indications.

Even successfully completed large-scale clinidgaldmay not result in marketable products for saiweasons, including:
- the potential products are not shown to be safeedfective;

- regulatory authorities disagree with the resaitdesign of our studies and trials; or

- the potential products are too difficult to dea@into commercially viable products.
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In November 1999, an FDA Advisory Committee recomdesl against approval of our application to app@8® mg dose of adefovir
dipivoxil to treat HIV. Kidney toxicity associatesith this 60 mg dose, as well as a desire for &atthil data, were the major concerns of this
committee. Following this recommendation, we werfermed by the FDA that they would not approve application unless we obtained
additional data that satisfied the concerns ralgetthis committee. Based on these discussionsemarated our development of adefovir
dipivoxil for the treatment of AIDS. We are using and 30 mg doses of adefovir dipivoxil in our RhHkclinical trials of adefovir dipivoxil
for HBV. We believe that these lower doses will regult in the kidney toxicity experienced with 8@ and that adefovir dipivoxil can be
effective in treating HBV at these lower doses. ¥danot be certain, however, that these lower dedkbe both safe enough and have
sufficient treatment benefits to receive FDA ap@doirenofovir DF is in the same class of drugsdefavir dipivoxil. While we have not yet
observed kidney toxicity in our clinical trials t#nofovir DF, the kidney toxicity in our clinicalials of adefovir dipivoxil for HIV did not
arise until the later stages of our clinical triddée cannot be certain that similar toxicity issués not arise later in our clinical trials of
tenofovir DF. A number of companies in our indudtave suffered similar setbacks in advanced cliniGas despite promising results in
earlier trials. In the end, we may be unable toettgy additional marketable products.

DELAYS IN PATIENT ENROLLMENT FOR CLINICAL TRIALS CO ULD INCREASE COSTS AND DELAY REGULATORY
APPROVALS.

The rate of completion of our clinical trials wilepend on the rate of patient enroliment. Therebeilsubstantial competition to enroll
patients in clinical trials for our drugs in devoent. This competition has delayed our clinical$rin the past. In addition, recent
improvements in existing drug therapy, particulddyHIV, HBV and certain cancers, may make it mdificult for us to enroll patients in

our clinical trials as the patient population méaypase to enroll in clinical trials sponsored byasthbompanies or choose alternative therapies.
Delays in planned patient enroliment can resuih@neased development costs and delays in regylafprovals.

OUR PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT EFFORTS MAY NOT YIELD MARKE TABLE PRODUCTS DUE TO RESULTS OF STUDIES
OR TRIALS, FAILURE TO ACHIEVE REGULATORY APPROVALS OR MARKET ACCEPTANCE, PROPRIETARY RIGHTS
OF OTHERS OR MANUFACTURING ISSUES.

Our success depends on our ability to successiellop and obtain regulatory approval to market pparmaceutical products. A
significant portion of the research that we wilhdaict will involve new and unproven technologiesvBlopment of a product requires
substantial technical, financial and human resauesen if the product is not successfully completed

Our potential products may appear to be promisingudous stages of development yet fail to redehrarket for a number of reasons,
including:

- lack of sufficient treatment benefit or unaccépeaoxicity during preclinical studies or clinicizials;

- failure to receive necessary regulatory apprqvals

- existence of proprietary rights of third partiasd

- inability to develop manufacturing methods that efficient, cost-effective and capable of meestghgent regulatory standards.

MOST OF OUR PRODUCT SALES OCCUR OUTSIDE THE U.S., AND CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS MAY IMPAIR OUR
FINANCIAL RESULTS.

A significant majority of our sales is denominatedoreign currencies. Increases in the value efuhS. dollar against these foreign
currencies in the past have reduced, and in theduhay reduce,
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our U.S. dollar return on these sales and negstivgbact our financial condition. We hedge withpest to foreign accounts receivable, but
we do not hedge our exposure to the impact ofdliitg foreign exchange rates on forecasted datesign currency fluctuations will
continue to affect our future results.

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT EXPENSES CAN CAUSE OUR OPERATING EXPENSES TO FLUCTUATE FROM QUARTER TO
QUARTER.

The clinical trials required for regulatory apprbwhour products are extremely expensive. It fiialilt to accurately predict or control the
amount or timing of these expenses from quartguerter. Uneven and unexpected spending on thegegons causes our operating resul
fluctuate from quarter to quarter.

WE DEPEND ON RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHER COMPANIES FOR RESEARCH FUNDING, CLINICAL DEVELOPMENT,
SALES AND MARKETING PERFORMANCE AND REVENUES. FAILU RE TO MAINTAIN THESE RELATIONSHIPS WOULD
NEGATIVELY IMPACT OUR BUSINESS.

We rely on a number of significant collaborativiat®nships with major pharmaceutical companiesofarresearch funding, clinical
development and/or sales and marketing performdnese include collaborations with Fujisawa Heatle¢ GlaxoSmithKline, Hoffmanha
Roche, Pharmacia Corporation, EyeTech Pharmacétina., and Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co. Inc.&fge only rely on international
distributors for sales of AmBisome in certain caoigg. In addition, we recently entered into a dmdlation agreement with Cubist
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. to commercialize Cubist'hanterial drug Cidecin in several European coestfollowing regulatory approval. Under
this agreement, Cubist is responsible for the amgolinical development of Cidecin. Accordingly, wél have no control over but will rely
on Cubist's clinical trials for our regulatory fifjs for Cidecin. If these ongoing clinical trials dot support regulatory approval, Cubist is not
required to conduct additional clinical trials amd may choose to conduct these trials ourselvearaéxpense. Reliance on collaborative
relationships poses a number of risks, including:

- we will not be able to control whether our comgterpartners will devote sufficient resources togrograms or products;
- disputes may arise in the future with respet¢hé&ownership of rights to technology developedwitrporate partners;

- disagreements with corporate partners could teattlays in or termination of the research, dgwelent or commercialization of product
candidates, or result in litigation or arbitration;

- contracts with our corporate partners may fapitovide significant protection or may fail to biéeetively enforced if one of these partners
fails to perform;

- corporate partners have considerable discreti@teicting whether to pursue the development ofaatdjtional products and may pursue
alternative technologies or products either onrtbein or in collaboration with our competitors;

- corporate partners with marketing rights may ot devote fewer resources to the marketing opmducts than they do to products of
their own development; and

- there are risks related to the ability of outtrilimitors and corporate partners to pay us.

Given these risks, there is a great deal of unicgyteegarding the success of our current and &tallaborative efforts. If these efforts fail,
our product development or commercialization of ipaducts could be delayed or revenue from exigtiroglucts, including Tamiflu and
AmBisome, could decline.
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OUR RIGHTS TO MARKET AMBISOME IN THE U.S. AND CANAD A ARE LIMITED BY AN AGREEMENT WITH FUJISAWA.
FAILURE OF FUJISAWA TO EFFECTIVELY MARKET AMBISOME = MAY REDUCE OUR REVENUES.

Our rights to market AmBisome in the U.S. and Cana subject to an agreement with Fujisawa. Utideterms of this agreement, we h
sole marketing rights to AmBisome in all countrie€ept the U.S. and Canada but must pay royattiesrnnection with sales in most
significant Asian markets, including Japan. We cormote AmBisome with Fujisawa in the U.S. We mantiiee AmBisome for sale in the
U.S. and Canada and sell AmBisome to Fujisawasitindhe U.S. and at cost plus a specified peaggnin Canada. Fujisawa collects all
revenues from AmBisome sales in the U.S. and paypproximately 17% of net sales. The success didome in the U.S. will be
dependent primarily on the efforts of Fujisawa, anG@anada the success of AmBisome will dependeainton Fujisawa. If Fujisawa fails in
its efforts, potential revenues from the sales wiBdssome may be substantially reduced.

FAILURE OF HOFFMANN-LA ROCHE TO EFFECTIVELY MARKET  TAMIFLU WOULD REDUCE OUR POTENTIAL
REVENUES.

Hoffmann-La Roche has sole responsibility for prémgpand selling Tamiflu on a worldwide basis angl mave no control over their
activities. Therefore, we are relying on the eBat Hoffmann-La Roche for any revenues we reckiwm the sale of Tamiflu. If Hoffmann-
La Roche does not dedicate sufficient resourc#isa@romotion of Tamiflu, or if Hoffmann-La Rochailf in its marketing efforts, the
royalties we receive from the sale of Tamiflu wodktrease and we would be adversely affected.

INABILITY TO ESTABLISH FUTURE SUCCESSFUL COLLABORAT IVE RELATIONSHIPS MAY IMPAIR OUR FINANCIAL
RESULTS.

We may seek future collaborative relationships withporate partners to fund some of our researdtdamelopment expenses and to develop
and commercialize some of our, or their, potemqraducts. Further, we anticipate that our reveritgs collaborative agreements will
continue to be affected by existing agreementsjadlsas by the timing of drug development prograrheur corporate partners. We may not
be able to negotiate acceptable collaborative gearents in the future, and any arrangements wesdotiate may not be successful. If we

to establish additional collaborative relationshiwe will be required to undertake research, dguekent, marketing and manufacturing of our
proposed products at our own expense or discontnueduce these activities.

OUR EXISTING PRODUCTS AND PRODUCTS UNDER DEVELOPMENT MAY NOT BE ACCEPTED BY PHYSICIANS,
INSURERS AND PATIENTS.

Many of our products in development, if approvedrf@arketing, would have no established market. dihity of these products to achieve
and sustain market acceptance will depend on tr@pteand scope of regulatory approvals and wheathaot government authorities and
managed care organizations will adequately reimbpadients who use these products.

In addition, we need to convince the medical arttepaadvocacy community of:
- the effectiveness of these products in treatisgabe;

- the safety of these products when administergrhtients; and

- the advantages of these products over compeptivducts.

Physicians, patients, patient advocates, payorgtenthedical community in general may not accepiserany products that we may develop.
If our products are not accepted, our results efatons will suffer.
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MANY OTHER COMPANIES ARE TARGETING THE SAME DISEASE S AND CONDITIONS AS WE ARE.
COMPETITIVE PRODUCTS FROM OTHER COMPANIES COULD SIG NIFICANTLY REDUCE THE MARKET ACCEPTANCE
OF OUR PRODUCTS.

Our products and development programs target a aupfldiseases and conditions, including viral étifens, fungal infections, bacterial
infections and cancer. There are many commerciaigilable products for these diseases. Certaihasiet products are well-established
therapies and have generated substantial saleddition, a large number of companies and institigiare conducting well-funded research
and development activities directed at developiagtments for these diseases. Products currentlyeomarket and those under development
by our competitors could make our technology amtipcts obsolete or noncompetitive. We expect thatpetition for the treatment of these
diseases will increase in the future as new pradeister the market and advanced technologies beawailable. We will also be competing

to license or acquire technology from other comeani

Most of our competitors and potential competitcaisdnsubstantially greater resources than we dos@ hesources include superior product
development capabilities and financial, scientifignufacturing, marketing, managerial and humaouregs. These competitors may achieve
superior patent protection, obtain key technolaggeive regulatory approval or achieve product centmlization earlier than us.

THE SIGNIFICANTLY GREATER RESOURCES OF THE MARKETIN G ORGANIZATIONS OF LARGE PHARMACEUTICAL
COMPANIES COULD HINDER OUR ABILITY TO COMPETE SUCCE SSFULLY.

Our products compete, and the products we may deaek likely to compete, with products of othemganies that currently have extensive
and well-funded marketing and sales operationsaBse these companies are capable of devotingismtify greater resources to their
marketing efforts, our marketing or sales efforssymot compete successfully against the effortbese other companies.

OUR EXISTING PRODUCTS ARE SUBJECT TO REIMBURSEMENT FROM GOVERNMENT AGENCIES AND OTHER THIRD
PARTIES. PHARMACEUTICAL PRICING AND REIMBURSEMENT P RESSURES MAY REDUCE PROFITABILITY.

Successful commercialization of our products depeimdpart, on the availability of governmental dhidd party payor reimbursement for the
cost of such products and related treatments. Gavent health administration authorities, privateltieinsurers and other organizations
generally provide reimbursement. Government autilesrand thirdsarty payors increasingly are challenging the poicmedical products at
services, particularly for innovative new produatel therapies. This has resulted in lower averalgs prices. For example, a majority of our
sales of AmBisome, VISTIDE and DaunoXome are sulifgceimbursement by government agencies, reguitisignificant discounts from
list price and rebate obligations. If Tamiflu ispapved for sale in Europe, its success will alspetel largely on obtaining government
reimbursement in Europe because in many Europaamtres, including the United Kingdom and Francaijents are reluctant to pay for
prescription drugs out of their own pocket. We agpect that the success of our products in dewsdop, particularly in Europe, will depend
on the ability to obtain reimbursement. Even ifmbursement is available, reimbursement policies atersely affect our ability to sell our
products on a profitable basis.

In addition, in many international markets, goveemts control the prices of prescription pharmacaigi In these markets, once marketing
approval is received, pricing negotiation can takether six to twelve months or longer. Productsahttempts to gain market share or
introductory pricing programs of our competitorsilcbrequire us to lower our prices in these coestrivhich could adversely affect our
results of operations.
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WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN EFFECTIVE PATENTS TO P ROTECT OUR TECHNOLOGIES FROM USE BY
COMPETITORS, AND PATENTS OF OTHER COMPANIES COULD R EQUIRE US TO STOP USING OR PAY FOR THE USE
OF REQUIRED TECHNOLOGY.

Our success will depend to a significant degreewmability to:
- obtain patents and licenses to patent rights;

- preserve trade secrets; and

- operate without infringing on the proprietaryhig of others.

We have rights to U.S. and foreign issued patemishave filed and will continue to file patent a@pgtions in the U.S. and abroad relating to
our technologies. There is a risk, however, thégma may not issue from any of these applicat@rthat the patents will not be sufficient to
protect our technology. Patent applications inh®. are generally confidential until a patentrarged. As a result, we may not know if our
competitors filed patent applications for technglagvered by our pending applications. We also oabe certain that we were the first to
invent the technology that is the subject of ouepgapplications. GS 7836 and Cidecin are protelsyemethod of use patents that generally
do not provide the same level of protection as amsitipn of matter patents. Competitors may haelfjpatent applications or received
patents and may obtain additional patents and f@tapy rights that block or compete with our pasent

We do not have patent filings covering adefovinigil in China or in certain other Asian countri@dthough we do have applications
pending in various Asian countries, including Chitet relate to various forms and formulationgdé&fovir dipivoxil. Asia is a major market
for HBV therapies, one of the potential indicatidosadefovir dipivoxil. We may obtain patents frartain products many years before
marketing approval is obtained for those produBétause patents have a limited life, which maymémirun prior to commercial sale, the
commercial value of the product may be limitedatidition, patents may not provide adequate pratedti certain countries in Africa and
Asia, including China.

Our competitors may file patent applications cavgrour technology. If so, we may have to parti@gatinterference proceedings or litigat
to determine the right to a patent. Litigation amerference proceedings are expensive even ifesstal.

Our success depends in large part on our abiligpgrate without infringing upon the patents orotbroprietary rights of third parties. If we
infringe patents of others, we may be preventemhfcommercializing products or may be required t@ioblicenses from these third parties.
We cannot be certain that we would be able to otahernative technologies or any required liceEsen if we were to obtain such
technologies or licenses, we cannot be certainttteaterms would be reasonable. If we fail to abfaich licenses or alternative technologies,
we may be unable to develop some or all of our petsd

For example, we may decide to use an assay meathmat idrug screening programs. ICT Pharmaceuti@dspatents that may cover parts of
this program. ICT Pharmaceuticals has offered msraexclusive license under these patents as part imdustry-wide licensing program. If

it is determined that we need these patents femttugram, we would need to obtain this licenséemelop or acquire alternative technologies
for this program. We cannot be certain that we wdid able to obtain this license on reasonablesemthat alternative technologies could
serve our needs for future drug development. Intiadd Ohio State University holds a patent thatmey need to develop and commercialize
NX 211. Ohio State University has offered us a-exclusive license under this patent, and we hatered into an option with Ohio State
University to enter into this license. Should wecglto enter into an agreement with Ohio State &hsity under this option, we will be
required to pay fees and a product royalty on NX.21
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In addition, we use significant proprietary tectogyl and rely on unpatented trade secrets and ptapyiknow-how to protect certain aspects
of our production and other technologies. Our treglerets may become known or independently disedvey our competitors.

MANUFACTURING PROBLEMS COULD DELAY PRODUCT SHIPMENT S AND REGULATORY APPROVALS.

For VISTIDE, adefovir dipivoxil and tenofovir DF,emely on third parties for the manufacture of bditlag substance and final drug product
for clinical and commercial purposes. Hoffmann-LacRe is responsible for manufacturing Tamiflu, &ritley encounter problems in this
process, our revenues from the sales of Tamiflidcdecrease. We depend on these third partiesrtorpetheir obligations effectively and

a timely basis. If these third parties fail to penfi as required, our clinical trials or submissidproducts for regulatory approval may be
delayed. These delays could impair our ability @ébveer commercial products on a timely basis andaampair our competitive position.

We manufacture AmBisome and DaunoXome at our feslin San Dimas, California. Our only formulatiand manufacturing facilities are
in San Dimas, California; although we own a manufiacg facility in Ireland that performs certainality control testing, labeling and
packaging, and we use third parties as alternateraat suppliers to fill and freeze dry certaindbests of product. In the event of a natural
disaster, including an earthquake, equipment fjlsirike or other difficulty, we may be unabledplace this manufacturing capacity in a
timely manner and would be unable to manufacturd&saeme and DaunoXome to meet market needs.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO OBTAIN MATERIALS NECESSARY TO MANUFACTURE OUR PRODUCTS.

Many of the materials that we utilize in our operas are made at only one facility. For example depend on single suppliers for high
quality amphotericin B, daunorubicin HCI and higlatity cholesterol, each of which is used in thennfacture of one or more of our
liposome products. Because the suppliers of keypoorents and materials must be named in the newappiication filed with the FDA for
product, significant delays can occur if the quedifion of a new supplier is required. If suppliesm our suppliers were interrupted for any
reason, we could be unable to ship AmBisome, VISt DaunoXome, or supply any of our products imediepment for clinical trials.

WE HAVE LIMITED EXPERIENCE IN MANUFACTURING PRODUCT S AND MAY NOT BE ABLE TO DEVELOP ADEQUATE
MANUFACTURING CAPACITY.

For some of our potential products, we will needéwvelop further our production technologies fog na a larger scale in order to conduct
clinical trials and produce such products for corruia sale at an acceptable cost. We cannot beindtat we will be able to implement any
of these developments successfully.

The manufacturing process for pharmaceutical prisdsdighly regulated, and regulators may shutrdavanufacturing facilities that they
believe do not comply with regulations. The FDAsrent Good Manufacturing Practices are extensgelations governing manufacturing
processes, stability testing, record-keeping aradityustandards. In addition, our manufacturingratiens are subject to routine inspections
by regulatory agencies and similar regulationsraedfect in other countries.

OUR BUSINESS MAY GIVE RISE TO PRODUCT LIABILITY CLA IMS NOT COVERED BY INSURANCE OR INDEMNITY
AGREEMENTS.

The testing, manufacturing, marketing and use oBfsome, VISTIDE and DaunoXome, as well as prodirctievelopment, involve
substantial risk of product liability claims. Thedaims may be made directly by consumers, heakhgeoviders, pharmaceutical companies
or others. A successful product liability claim et us could require us to pay substantial amouvtigch could impair our financial
condition and our ability to clinically test andnmarket our products.
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Additionally, we are required by governmental regiains to test our products even after they haes lseld and used by patients. As a result
of such tests, we may be required to, or may déterthat, we should recall products already inrttagket. Subsequent testing and product
recalls may increase our potential exposure toymbliaibility claims.

OUR USE OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, CHEMICALS, VIRUSES AND RADIOACTIVE COMPOUNDS EXPOSES US TO
POTENTIAL LIABILITIES.

Our research and development involves the contteite of hazardous materials, chemicals, virusévanous radioactive compounds.
Although we believe that our safety procedureshordling and disposing of such materials complyhie standards prescribed by state and
federal regulations, we cannot completely eliminthterisk of accidental contamination or injuryrfreghese materials. In the event of such an
accident, we could be held liable for significaatthges or fines.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters, including our prinog@cutive offices and certain of our researcHifaed, are located in Foster City,
California. At this location, we lease approximgt260,300 square feet of space in eight proximdtedgted buildings. One of the subleases
covering 59,039 square feet of space in this gafupildings expires in December 2003 and therenareenewal options. The remaining
leases expire in March and September 2006 and wedraoption to renew all of these leases for tdditaonal five-year periods.

In Boulder, Colorado, we lease a facility of appnoately 11,000 square feet of office space, whiehuse as administrative offices. This le
expires in February 2005 and has an option to rdoetwo additional five-year periods. We also keapproximately 60,000 square feet of
space, which we use both as research laborataorieasaadministrative offices. This lease expire®dtober 2001, but we have an option to
renew the lease for two successive five-year psriod

We also occupy facilities in San Dimas, Califoraiader leases that expire in May and November 2@08,two five-year renewal options.
These facilities cover 102,500 square feet of spackhouse research and development activitiesyfaeturing and certain administrative
functions. In 2000, we also leased a warehousétfaatjacent to these facilities that we use foyduct distribution and administrative
functions. This facility has 53,000 square feespdce and the lease expires in April 2006, with agditional five-year extensions.

In addition, we lease approximately 48,000 squee¢ éf space for our sales and marketing, regylditmance, information technology and
human resource operations in Europe and Austiattading a prepaid, 999-year lease for our 13 $fare foot manufacturing and
distribution facility in Ireland. The other leadasve various expiration dates.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 11, 1997, we entered into a settlemetiit Blian Corporation (the successor to The Lipos@ompany, Inc.) in which we each
agreed to dismiss all legal proceedings involviatepts related to our liposomal formulation of awtghicin B. In the settlement agreement,
Elan agreed not to sue us in connection with thddwade production and sales of AmBisome and gaveghts to use some of their patents.
Under the terms of the settlement Agreement, weeageired to make payments based on AmBisome eatsthe next several years.

We are also a party to various other legal actibasarose in the ordinary course of our busin@&sdo not believe that any of these other
legal actions will have any significant impact air dusiness.
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ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITI ES HOLDERS

A Special Meeting of Stockholders was held on Fety@, 2001 in Redwood City, California. Of the PA1,488 shares of Gilead Common
Stock entitled to vote at the meeting, 75,644,888 as were represented at the meeting in persoy roxy, constituting a quorum. The
stockholders approved an amendment to Gilead'#fiCat¢ of Incorporation to increase the authorimedhber of shares of Common Stock
from 100,000,000 shares to 500,000,000 shareseMere 59,152,774 votes cast for the proposal 516600 votes cast against, 60,264

abstentions, and no broker non-votes.
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PART Il
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON STOCK AND RE LATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Our common stock is traded on The Nasdaq Stock élankder the symbol "GILD." The following table sébrth for the periods indicated
the high and low intra-day sale prices per sha@uofcommon stock on The Nasdaq Stock Market. Thases represent quotations among
dealers without adjustments for retail mark-upstkydowns or commissions, and may not represenegprid actual transactions.

HIGH LOW

2000

First Quarter.....cccoooveevvvvieeeeiieeeeeeeeee $42.50 $22.38
Second QUANer.....ccccvvveeeeiiiieeeeccieeeeeeee . $38.25 $21.63
Third Quarter...... et $59.06 $33.00
Fourth Quarter........ccocovvvveviveeecieeeeeee $55.38  $30.47
1999

First QUarter.......cocooveevveeviieeeeeeeees $28.75 $17.63
Second QUAmEr.....cccccevveeviieeiieeceeeeeee $27.06 $17.94
Third Quarter.......ccoceevvvvvee e $46.69 $25.31
Fourth Quarter........cccccovveeeevivneeceeceees $37.88 $18.50

On February 22, 2001, the Company implemented afdwone stock split in the form of a stock dividendl gtiare and per share amounts
all periods presented in this Form 10-K have bestated to reflect the split.

As of February 28, 2001, we had 94,353,314 shdresromon stock outstanding held by approximatel9 stbckholders of record. We have
not paid cash dividends on our common stock sincénzeption and we do not anticipate paying anthanforeseeable future.

On December 13, 2000, Gilead issued $250 millioB%fconvertible subordinated notes due Decembe20®/ in a private offering to J.P.
Morgan & Co., Lehman Brothers and Morgan StanlegD@/hitter, which resold the notes to private sthnal investors.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA(1)
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA)

2000
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:
Total revenues..........ccceeeeeeeieeenne $195,55
Total costs and expenses.. 247,87
Loss from operations...................... (52,31
Loss before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle............c..... (43,10
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle(2) (13,67
Net loss......... ... (56,77
Basic and diluted loss per common
share:(3)
Loss before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle............... $ (04

Cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle .

NetloSS.....ocvvviiiiiiieeeeeee,

Common shares used to calculate basic and
diluted net loss per common share(3).... 91,05

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash, cash equivalents and marketable

SECUMLIeS...ceeiveiiiieeiieene $512,878
Working capital 535,560
Total assets.................. 678,099
Long-term obligations................. 2,238
Convertible subordinated debt......... 250,000
Accumulated deficit................... (506,008)
Total stockholders' equity(4)......... 351,124

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1999 1998 1997 1996

5 $168,979 $151,119 $132,258 $122,121
3 239,838 230,631 220,480 181,403
8) (70,859) (79,512) (88,222) (59,282)
6) (66,486) (44,758) (72,893) (45,614)

0 - - - -
6) (66,486) (44,758) (72,893) (45,614)

7) $ (0.78) $ (0.55) $ (0.92) $ (0.61)

I

-2) $ (0.78) $ (0.55) $ (0.92) $ (0.61)

0 85,652 82,030 78,864 75,282

DECEMBER 31,

1999 1998 1997 1996

$294,394 $348,743 $387,361 $ 338,354
324,104 359,555 396,810 332,352
436,808 487,764 516,989 450,540
5253 8,883 9,658 18,120
79,533 80,000 80,000 -
(449,232) (382,746) (337,988) (265,095)
297,292 333,609 357,726 374,649

(1) Periods prior to the year ended December 339 tawve been restated to reflect the merger witkstse Pharmaceuticals, Inc. on July 29,

1999, which was accounted for as a pooling of et

(2) Gilead adopted Staff Accounting Bulletin No110REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS",n the fourth quarter
of 2000. The effect of the change was recordeti@sumulative effect of a change in accountingqgipie effective as of the first quarter

2000.

(3) On February 22, 2001, the Company implementsebafor-one stock split in the form of a stock dividendl| gliare and per share amot

for all periods presented have been restated lectehe split.

(4) No cash dividends have been declared or path@&ompany's common stock.



ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FIN ANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW

Gilead Sciences, Inc. ("Gilead" or "we") was inamgted in Delaware on June 22, 1987, and is arpemient biopharmaceutical company
that seeks to provide accelerated solutions faeptst and the people who care for them. We discaearelop, manufacture and
commercialize proprietary therapeutics for challaggnfectious diseases (viral, fungal and bactaliseases) and cancer. Gilead also has
expertise in liposomal drug delivery technologyri@uatly, we market AmBisome-Registered Trademaf@mfphotericin B) liposome for
injection), an antifungal agent, DaunoXome-Regedefrademark- (daunorubicin citrate liposome ingggt a drug approved for the
treatment of Kaposi's Sarcoma, and VISTIDE-Regestdirademark- (cidofovir injection) for the treatmef cytomegalovirus ("CMV")
retinitis. Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. markets TamifldMT (oseltamivir phosphate) for the treatment ofuiiefiza, under a collaborative
agreement with Gilead. In addition, we are develggiroducts to treat diseases caused by human iogefiniency virus ("HIV"), hepatitis
virus ("HBV"), bacterial infections and cancer.

On February 22, 2001, Gilead completed a two-far-stock split, effected in the form of a stock deuid, to stockholders of record as of
February 2, 2001. Accordingly, all share and parslamounts for all periods presented have beésiedgo retroactively reflect the split.

In the year ended December 31, 2000, Gilead addpte8ecurities and Exchange Commission's Stafbieting Bulletin No. 101,
REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, resluitg in a cumulative effect of a change in accouppninciple.

On July 29, 1999, Gilead entered into a businestbamation with NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("N&X4. The business combination has
been accounted for as a pooling of interests amdhifiorical consolidated financial statements &l for all periods prior to the business
combination have been restated to include the @i@hposition, results of operations and cash flofvsle Xstar.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassifiesbnform to the current presentation.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND RISK FACTORS

The following discussion contains forward-lookirtgtements that involve risks and uncertaintiese&lls actual results could differ
materially from those discussed in any forward-iogkstatements. Factors that could cause or cemdrito such differences include, but are
not limited to, those discussed in this sectionyael as under the caption "Business," includingskRFactors" in Part |. All forward-looking
statements included in this document are basedformation currently available to Gilead, and wsuase no obligation to update any such
forward-looking statements. The following discussstould be read in conjunction with the consogddtnancial statements and notes
included elsewhere in this report.

AMBISOME SALES. We rely on sales of AmBisome fosignificant portion of our operating income. Thare lower priced products that
compete with AmBisome; a product that was recemplgroved that will compete with AmBisome; and pretdibeing developed that could
compete with AmBisome in the future. If these otperducts achieve further market acceptance, tbeiproducts in development become
commercially available, revenues from sales of AsoRie would likely decrease, resulting in a reductiboperating income.

REGULATORY PROCESS. The U.S. Food and Drug Admiatgin ("FDA") and foreign agencies could rejectionit the
commercialization of our products for a numberessons including: if they disagree with the resaitdesigns of our clinical trials; if they
believe our products have unacceptable efficacycity or tolerability; or if they believe our prodts can not be safely and efficiently
manufactured on a commercial basis. If these agsmeject or limit the commercialization of our gwats, our
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financial results would be adversely affected. Tlwical trials required for regulatory approvalair products are extremely expensive, a
is difficult for us to accurately predict or conttbe amount or timing of these expenses from guaot quarter. In addition, regulatory
agencies could require us to conduct additionahtici@ated clinical trials on our products, the tocakwhich could be substantial.

MARKET ACCEPTANCE OF PRODUCTS. The ability of ourgglucts to achieve and sustain market acceptaricdepend on a number of
factors, including: the receipt and scope of regulaapprovals; the availability of public and pate insurance and reimbursement for our
products; safety, efficacy, tolerability and cokbar products; and how our products compare topsgitive products. If our products do not
achieve and sustain market acceptance, our refudigerations will suffer. Tamiflu is in a new ctasf drugs that represent a new approach to
treating the flu. In order for Tamiflu to achieverket acceptance, our marketing partner, Hoffmaambche, Inc., must change attitudes
toward the treatment of influenza.

COLLABORATIONS. We depend on collaborations for theerelopment and commercialization of certain potsland for revenue, includi
the collaboration with Hoffmann-La Roche, Inc. sades of Tamiflu worldwide and the collaboratiorthwrujisawa Healthcare, Inc.
("Fujisawa") for sales of AmBisome in the Unitecits and Canada. These collaborations could fad faamber of reasons, including if our
partners do not devote sufficient resources tathelopment, commercialization or marketing of praducts, or if disputes arise with our
partners. We will also seek additional collabonagiolf our collaborations fail or if we are unabdeestablish additional collaborations, our
financial results would be adversely affected.

FOREIGN CURRENCY FLUCTUATIONS. A significant majtyiof our product sales is denominated in foreigrrencies. Increases in the
value of the U.S. Dollar against these foreignencies in the past have reduced, and in the futagereduce, our U.S. Dollar return on these
sales and negatively impact our financial conditMfe do not hedge our exposure to the impact ofdlating foreign exchange rates on
forecasted sales. We do hedge accounts receivalaledes denominated in foreign currencies, whialinmzes our exposure to currency
fluctuations between the date a sale is recordddtendate that cash is collected.

UNCERTAIN FINANCIAL RESULTS. We expect that our fincial results will continue to fluctuate from qgiesrto quarter and that such
fluctuations may be substantial. The fluctuatioas be caused by many factors that are beyond airatoincluding the risk factors listed
above. We have never been profitable on a full-yeats and we may never achieve or sustain prdfitalf\s of December 31, 2000, our
accumulated deficit was $506.0 million.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
REVENUES

We had total revenue of $195.6 million for the y2@00, $169.0 million for the year 1999 and $15tillion for the year 1998. Included in
total revenue are net product sales, royalty incantecontract revenue, including research and dpwednt ("R&D") collaborations.

Net product sales revenue was $149.7 million f@@@ompared with $139.9 million for 1999 and $21willion for 1998. Our revenues &
primarily derived from sales of AmBisome, which repented 94% of total product sales in 2000, 92%taf product sales in 1999 and 91%
of total product sales in 1998. Reported salesroBsome were $141.1 million in 2000, an increas@%fover AmBisome sales of $129.2
million in 1999. Excluding the impact of the dedim foreign currencies relative to the U.S. doita2000, sales of AmBisome in 2000 wo
have increased 21%. A significant majority of Gilsgproduct sales is denominated in foreign curesn®Ve do not hedge our exposure tc
impact of fluctuating foreign exchange rates oreéaisted sales. We do hedge
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accounts receivable balances denominated in foigencies, which minimizes our exposure to cuydtuctuations between the date a
is recorded and the date that cash is collectdds ®& AmBisome were $103.4 million in 1998. Thergase in AmBisome sales in 1999
compared with 1998 was not materially affected hgrges in foreign currency rates.

In 2000, Gilead also recognized product sales nexef $4.4 million from sales of DaunoXome and $#iftion from sales of VISTIDE. In
1999, DaunoXome sales were $4.8 million and VISTHaEes were $5.9 million. In 1998, we reported {ome sales of $4.7 million and
VISTIDE sales of $6.1 million. We expect combinades of DaunoXome and VISTIDE in the future to éase slightly compared to 2000
levels.

We reported royalty revenue of $24.6 million in 206ompared with $10.4 million in 1999 and $7.3limil in 1998. During this three-year
period, the most significant source of royalty mawe was from sales of AmBisome in the United SthieBujisawa under a co-promotion
arrangement with Gilead. During the fourth quaaet999, we began recognizing royalty revenues fRaujisawa's sales of AmBisome in the
month following that in which the related produates occur. Prior to the fourth quarter of 1999 re@gnized this royalty revenue in the
month the sales occurred. Royalty revenue fronsBuja was $13.5 million in 2000, compared with $8ilion in 1999 and $4.8 million in
1998. The 1999 amount represents royalties froomddths of Fujisawa sales of AmBisome.

We also reported royalty revenue of $9.6 millior2G00 related to sales of Tamiflu. Tamiflu is aallyradministered compound developed to
treat and prevent viral influenza in humans. Gileadleveloped Tamiflu with F. Hoffmann-La Roche Lagid Hoffmann-La Roche Inc.
(collectively, "Roche"). Roche owns the worldwidsmamercial rights to Tamiflu, and is required to fizafead a royalty on net sales of the
product. In October 1999, the FDA approved Tanfifiuthe treatment of influenza in adults, and Robbgan selling the product
commercially. We record royalty revenue from Roohthe quarter following the quarter in which tiedated Tamiflu sales occur.
Accordingly, Gilead began recognizing royaltiesnfirdamiflu in the first quarter of 2000. We expeetliflu royalties to increase in 2001 a
result of broader market penetration and additioeglilatory approvals received during the secotidofi2000. During that time period
Tamiflu was approved in the U.S. as a prophylapis\(entive) in adults and as a treatment for imfizein children, and approved in Japan as
a treatment for influenza in adults.

Substantially all of the remaining net royalty reue recognized in 2000, 1999 and 1998 represeyddties from sales of VISTIDE by
Pharmacia S.A. ("Pharmacia") outside the UnitedeStdn future periods, royalties from sales of MISE are expected to be relatively flat or
decline slightly.

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Cssioni issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (‘B5A01"), REVENUE
RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS. Among other thgs, SAB 101 describes the SEC Staff's positiotherrecognition of
certain nonrefundable ujpent fees received in connection with collaboratagreements. We previously recognized nonrefuedaichnolog
access fees received in connection with collabamedgreements as revenue when received or whegctbility was probable, and when the
technology had been transferred. Effective Jantiap00, we changed our method of accounting fesdHees to recognize them as the
related manufacturing obligation is fulfilled or arstraight-line basis over the term of the relag=garch and development collaboration,
manufacturing or supply arrangement, as appropratéhis method best matches the effort providéel believe the change in accounting
principle is preferable based on guidance providesiAB 101. The cumulative effect of the changadeounting principle was recorded in
the fourth quarter of 2000, retroactively effectagof January 1, 2000, as deferred revenue thidteviecognized as contract revenue ove
remaining term of the research and developmentufaaturing or supply arrangements, as appropriaiethe year ended December 31,
2000, the impact of the cumulative change in actingmprinciple was to increase the net loss by $h3illion. We recognized additional
contract revenue of $2.9 million in 2000, in ac@rde with SAB 101, related

42



to up front fees which had been received in priarg. The $2.9 million was related to three coltabee arrangements: $1.6 million relate
an initial licensing fee from Sumitomo; $0.7 milioelated to an initial licensing fee from Roched&0.6 million related to an initial license
fee from Pharmacia. The remaining $10.7 milliomed&ted deferred revenue at December 31, 2000tsefsoin the Sumitomo and Pharmacia
collaborations, and is expected to be recognizembagact revenue over the next twelve years. Tisene remaining deferred revenue related
to the Roche initial license fee as of Decembe2BD0. The pro forma results included in the Cadstéd Statements of Operations in Part
IV reflect amounts that would have been reportadéfchange in accounting principle had been agppé&oactively.

Total contract revenue was $21.3 million in 200@mpared with $18.7 million in 1999 and $29.6 miilim 1998. The single most significant
source of contract revenue in each of these theaesywas payments from Roche relating to the dpwedat of Tamiflu under an R&D
collaboration agreement between Gilead and Rocleeréabrded contract revenue from Roche of $11.Romiin 2000, $14.9 million in 199
and $16.4 million in 1998. The $11.2 million of ¢@ct revenue from Roche in 2000 included $9.6iamlin milestone payments related to
Roche completing regulatory filings and approvalsTamiflu in the U.S. and Japan, $0.9 million &M expense reimbursements, and $0.7
million resulting from the adoption of SAB 101 dasalissed above. The 1999 amount included $12.&mibf milestone payments and $2.1
million of R&D reimbursements. The $16.4 milliorcorded during 1998 represented reimbursements @ B¥penses, and included $5.2
million attributable to R&D expenses incurred i flourth quarter of 1997, which were subject to & approval as of December 31, 1997.
Such expenses were approved for reimbursementeandmized as revenue in 1998. R&D reimbursemeais RRoche in 2000 decreased
compared to 1999, and reimbursements in 1999 sipnideacreased relative to 1998, as Tamiflu develepnefforts ramp down while Roche's
commercialization activities increased. As of Deben31, 2000, Gilead is entitled to additional stitee payments of up to $11.6 million
upon Roche achieving certain developmental andaémy milestones. While we may earn milestonesypayts under the Roche agreement
in 2001, we expect expense reimbursements undé&dbke agreement to continue to decline in 200th $eimbursements will approximate
our actual related costs incurred.

In March 2000, we entered into an agreement withiTegh Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to Gileadippetary aptamer NX 1838. Currently
in early clinical trials, NX 1838 is an inhibitof @ascular endothelial growth factor, or VEGF, whis known to play a role in the
development of certain ophthalmic diseases. Urttetdrms of the agreement, EyeTech received watlelwights to all therapeutic uses of
NX 1838, and, if the product is successfully coneiadized, EyeTech will pay us royalties on worldeisiales of the product. EyeTech ¢

will be responsible for all research and developneests. We will provide clinical supplies of theoduct to EyeTech through March 2001.
We received a $7.0 million up-front licensing feerh EyeTech in April 2000, which is being recogunizes revenue ratably over the one-year
supply agreement period. Accordingly, $5.2 millmfithe license fee was recorded as contract revender the agreement in 2000, and the
remainder of the license fee will be recognizedeagnue in the first quarter of 2001. We are afttiled to additional cash payments from
EyeTech of up to $25.0 million if and when EyeTeehches certain NX 1838 development milestonesitidddlly, Gilead received a
warrant to purchase 833,333 shares of EyeTechs$romnvertible preferred stock, exercisable ai@mf $6.00 per share, the price at wi
the stock was issued to other investors. We aiigated to transfer 5% of the total shares subgettié warrant to the University of Colorado
at Boulder under a collaborative agreement withuhigersity, and we expect to retain the remainiif,667 shares. We did not recognize
revenue related to the warrant as there was ndyatlerminable fair value at the time of the saation.

In November 1999, Gilead and Somalogic, Inc. edtér® an agreement under which Gilead assign&bitoalogic a sole and exclusive
license to certain intellectual property, includpatents and patent applications. Under the tefrtteecagreement, Somalogic was required to
pay Gilead a total of
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$2.5 million in two nonrefundable installments. Texond installment totaled $1.0 million and wasieed in November 2000 and recorded
as contract revenue upon receipt. The first insitit of $1.5 million was received and recognizedasgract revenue in November 1999.
Contract revenue recognized in 1999 also includgdl.@ million performance-based milestone paymecgived from SKW Americas, Inc.
("SKW"). SKW is the 51% owner of Proligo L.L.C. (f®igo"), an entity in which we hold the remainid§% ownership interest.

In 1998, we recorded as contract revenue a $3lmihilestone payment from Sumitomo Pharmacewdi€a., Ltd. related to a license of
AmBisome rights in Japan. Also in 1998, we enténéd an agreement with Isis Pharmaceuticals, [isis() under which we sold to Isis the
holdings of our antisense patent estate, inclugatgnts and patent applications. Under the terniseoAgreement, Isis is required to pay
Gilead a total of $6.0 million in four installmenthe total sale price of $6.0 million was includeatontract revenue in 1998.

Contract revenue for 1998 also includes reimbursemiresearch expenses under our collaborativeeagents with GlaxoSmithKline,
formerly Glaxo Wellcome Inc. ("Glaxo") and ScheriaAds. ("Schering™). Under the agreement with Sagrielated to the discovery and
development of aptamers as IN VIVO diagnostic ag€t8chering Research Agreement"), we recognizedl #dlion of contract revenue in
1998. The Schering Research Agreement expired98,18ut a related license agreement remains ictefur collaborative agreement with
Glaxo was related to its code blocker program. amhtrevenue recognized in connection with the Glgreement was $1.8 million in 1998.

COST OF GOODS SOLD

Cost of goods sold was $33.5 million in 2000, coragawvith $29.5 million in 1999 and $23.4 million1998. As a percentage of product
sales revenue, cost of goods sold was 22% in Z008,in 1999 and 20% in 1998.

In connection with most of our European producésalve price our products in the currency of thenby into which the products are sold
("Payment Currencies"). A significant majority afrananufacturing cost is in U.S. Dollars. A declinghe value of the Payment Currencies
relative to the U.S. Dollar will negatively impaptoss margins since our manufacturing costs willai@ approximately the same while our
revenues, which are reported in U.S. Dollars, @deitline. In 2000, the gross margin was negativelyacted by these factors, as discussed in
the product sales section under the caption "Reagnabove. Excluding the impact of foreign excharages on reported sales revenue, cost
of sales as a percentage of sales would have Ippeaxdmately 20%, down slightly from 1999 primardye to larger production quantities in
2000 absorbing our fixed costs. Our cost of saégsgmtage on an annual basis has been in the 22284aange in recent years. Except for
the potential impact of unpredictable and uncotdabi¢ changes in Payment Currencies relative t&Jtle Dollar, we expect the cost of sales
as a percentage of sales revenue in 2001 to remstirially consistent with the 2000 rate. In futyears, changes in the nature or mix of our
product sales could impact this relationship.

OPERATING EXPENSES

Research and development ("R&D") expenses for 2080@ $131.6 million, compared with $110.2 milliar .999 and $124.8 million for
1998. Major development projects in 2000 includefevir DF for HIV and adefovir dipivoxil for hepitis B virus ("HBV"). We incurred
increased costs for both of these programs whieliraPhase Ill clinical trials. Additionally, we m@ up-front payments in the fourth quarter
of 2000 to in-license two oncology products fronaxd and Southern Research Institute. These in@easee than offset significantly lower
expenses in 2000 for the development of adefopiivdkil for HIV, a program we discontinued in theufth quarter of 1999. We expect R&D
expenses in 2001 to be approximately 20% to 30%emithan 2000 due to increased spending on théncewt late-stage development of
tenofovir DF for HIV and adefovir dipivoxil for HBV
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The decrease in R&D expenses in 1999 comparedI® @as primarily attributable to reduced reseaugtlvities at our Boulder, Colorado
facility. In August 1998, we transferred our Bouldmsed NeXstar Technology Products division tdifopour equity investee. In addition,
in October 1998, we reduced our R&D workforce iruBier by 47 employees and recorded an expense.@idillion related to severance
packages for the discharged employees. In 1999edigced the R&D workforce in Boulder by 30 emplay/epon completing the merger
with NeXstar. Finally, Gilead had a reduced leviaheolvement in the development of Tamiflu in 198&@mpared to 1998. These decreases
were offset in part by greater levels of expenstdia9 for the development programs for adefovindigil for HBV and tenofovir DF for

HIV, as well as an adjustment of $2.9 million tdifueserve our supply of adefovir dipivoxil for MI This adjustment was made as a resL
our decision to discontinue the development of pinigluct candidate in the United States after atinegrecommendation from an FDA
advisory panel.

Selling, general and administrative ("SG&A") expessvere $82.8 million in 2000, compared with $100illion in 1999 and $82.4 million
in 1998. The major factor contributing to the desein 2000 from 1999 levels was the inclusion@&8 of $18.3 million of merger-related
expenses in 1999. Excluding merger expenses, SG{Arses in 2000 were essentially flat compared ¥880. Higher general and
administrative ("G&A") expenses in 2000 were offegtsavings in sales and marketing expenses. Thedsed G&A spending included cc
to implement new and upgraded information technplkystems; legal costs incurred in connection wétv collaboration agreements and
various corporate projects; and expenses to meetrglecorporate reporting requirements. Sales aatteting expenses in 1999 included
costs to expand our sales and marketing capaciyticipation of the then-planned commercial lauathdefovir dipivoxil for HIV, which
was discontinued in the fourth quarter of 1999. ifiddally, 2000 sales and marketing expenses reflest savings in the U.S. from the
elimination in the second half of 1999 of duplicptesitions and functions within the combined Gilead NeXstar organization. In 2001, we
expect SG&A expenses to be 25% to 40% higher tiB@0 Eevels, primarily due to the activities necegsa prepare for the anticipated U.S.
and European commercial launch of tenofovir DF.

The increase in SG&A expenses in 1999 compared 1888 was due to merger expenses of $18.3 millkaoluding the merger expenses,
SG&A spending was flat from 1998 to 1999. Durin@29we recorded $2.3 million of compensation exparetated to a NeXstar stock
option plan that requires the use of variable plecounting. This charge was substantially offsetdst savings related to the elimination of
duplicate selling, general and administrative poisg and functions within the combined Gilead areKtar organization in the second hal
1999.

Merger expenses of $18.3 million are included Balt8§ G&A expenses for 1999. These expenses priynaoitsisted of transaction costs,
including professional fees, filing fees and prgticosts; employee severance costs; and the vaiterdf certain NeXstar property and
equipment that was not expected to be used indudperations. Total employee severance costs 8fritlion relate to the termination of 70
employees, the majority of which were from our Btar| Colorado facility. As of December 31, 1999 eahployees for whom severance
costs were accrued had been terminated. The batéutice accrued liability was $2.5 million at Dedaen 31, 1999 and substantially all
remaining accrued severance costs were paid tcefoemployees by December 31, 2000. We do not expeetlize any further cost savings
resulting from staff reductions that occurred after merger.

LITIGATION SETTLEMENT AND RELATED EXPENSES

We incurred litigation settlement and related exggsmof $1.4 million in 2000, $1.5 million in 1998da$1.3 million 1998. In 1997 we reached
a settlement with Elan Corporation, plc ("Elan’e guccessor company to The Liposome Company) iohiioth companies agreed to
dismiss all legal proceedings involving AmBisoméle@&d's liposomal formulation of amphotericin B.dém the terms of the settlement
agreement, we made an initial payment to Elan & #dillion and are required to
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make additional payments through 2006, based onidone sales. The payments are subject to certaiimmuim and maximum amounts. A
$10.0 million accounting charge was recorded in71@presenting the net present value of all futiimum payments we are required to
make. We record an expense each quarter basee diffdrence between all future minimum payments tie amount previously accrued.
These amounts have not been significant. We dexmmct the difference between the future minimuchrmaximum payments to Elan to be
material.

GAIN ON SALE OF SUBSIDIARY

In 1998, we recognized a $22.1 million gain onghke of our 51% interest in our newly establishdosgliary, Proligo, a Delaware limited
liability company, to SKW. Proligo was formed inyJd998 and initially consisted of the assets af NeXstar Technology Products division,
a manufacturer of oligonucleotides and specialgnuicals for the pharmaceuticals industry. As payif@mnthe sale of our interest in Proligo,
we received $15.0 million and a 49% interest inSegtive Biosystems GmbH, a company in Hamburg, @aymwhich specializes in the
manufacture of nucleoside phosphoramidite mononer@ddition, SKW agreed to pay us $3.0 milliorgimaranteed payments and up to
$20.5 million in performance-based milestones tghoR003. As part of the transaction, we contribiiéd® million and our 49% interest in
PerSeptive Biosystems GmbH to Proligo. The 49% ésten PerSeptive Biosystems GmbH had a fair vafuspproximately $5.5 million.
SKW contributed $5.1 million and the remaining 5&¢4°erSeptive Biosystems to Proligo.

INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE

We reported interest income of $17.6 million in @06ompared with $16.4 million in 1999 and $21.8iom in 1998. The increase in 2000
over 1999 was due to higher interest rates onrugstment portfolio, as well as slightly higher mage balances of invested funds. The
decrease in interest income in 1999 compared t8 #8& due to both a declining balance of invesssth @s well as slightly lower investm:
returns in 1999. We expect interest income in 2@0hcrease from 2000 levels due to higher cashnoals as a result of our $250.0 million
5% convertible subordinated notes financing congpléh December 2000.

We incurred interest expense of $4.4 million in @@@mpared with $6.5 million in 1999 and $7.2 roifliin 1998. The decrease in 2000 from
1999 occurred primarily because we incurred integgpense on our 6.25% convertible debenturestbnbugh August 1, 2000, when they
were converted to common stock. Interest expenssher debt, including capital leases, decreassyl due to continually declining
outstanding balances as we repay the debt. Thieaee, however, was offset by interest on our &0 million 5% convertible
subordinated notes issued in December 2000. Intexpense decreased in 1999 compared to 1998 jisirdae to the repayment of debt
obligations including capital leases. We expedriesgt expense in 2001 to increase to approximttede times the 2000 expense level as we
incur a full year of expense on the $250 million B&fivertible subordinated notes.

EQUITY IN LOSS OF UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATE

In 2000, Gilead recorded $2.9 million as our eqirityhe loss of our unconsolidated affiliate, Rgoli This represented our 49% share of
Proligo's loss for the thirteen-month period enBedember 31, 2000. During the fourth quarter of®@roligo changed its fiscal year-end to
December 31 from November 30. For 1999, we reco$ded million equity in the loss of Proligo for Figm's fiscal year ended November
1999. In 1998, we recorded $1.1 million as our Bgini the loss of Proligo for the period from Augds$, 1998 (Proligo's inception date)
through November 30, 1998. We expect to continuedognize losses on our equity investment in oadiuring 2001.
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Our investment in Proligo is reported in other nament assets on our consolidated balance sheetcdrnying amount of this investment was
$6.9 million at December 31, 2000 and $7.6 mill@mecember 31, 1999. In the three-year periodedaEember 31, 2000, we funded
Proligo with a total of $9.8 million to maintain opercentage ownership interest in Proligo. We havéurther commitments to provide
additional funding to Proligo, and we do not expegbrovide any.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securit@edo$512.9 million at December 31, 2000, up f&284.4 million at December 31, 1999.
The increase of $218.5 million was due to the met@eds of $241.8 million from our $250.0 millio¥%=onvertible subordinated notes
financing in December 2000. Other major sourcesumas of cash included proceeds from issuancasak ander employee stock plans,
offset by cash used to fund operating activitied eapital expenditures.

Significant changes in working capital during 200€luded an increase in accrued clinical and pnesail expenses of $4.5 million, primarily
due to the advanced and accelerated Phase litalitrials for tenofovir DF for HIV and adefovirgivoxil for HBV. Other accrued liabilities
increased $4.3 million in 2000, the largest compbié which was an unrealized loss on foreign ergeacontracts of $1.7 million at
December 31, 2000. This unrealized loss was plgrtffiset by unrealized foreign exchange gains ceoants receivable balances at that ¢
however the gain on receivables is included inatt@unts receivable balance on the balance shietr Gomponents of the increase in other
accrued liabilities during 2000 included higher keding accruals and various other accruals dukddiming of invoice receipts, and higher
foreign tax liabilities primarily in Italy. Anothesignificant change in working capital in 2000 veasincrease in accounts payable of
approximately $2.1 million, primarily due to thening of payments to vendors.

Our accounts receivable balance at December 3D, 288 $48.8 million compared to $45.6 million atBmber 31, 1999. The growth was
primarily due to increased receivable balance®imtries in which payments tend to be relativebyslin certain cases, these slow payment
practices reflect the pace at which governmenttitienreimburse our customers. Sales to customersuntries that tend to be relatively s
paying have in the past increased, and in thedunay further increase, the average length of tiraeaccounts receivable are outstanding.
This, in turn, may increase the financial risk tethto certain of our customers. In certain coestin which payments have been slow,
particularly Greece, Spain and Italy, our accoueteivable are significant. At December 31, 20Q0,past due accounts receivable for
Greece, Spain and ltaly totaled approximately $181Bon, of which approximately $10.9 million wasore than 120 days past due. At
December 31, 1999, past due receivables for thmsetries was $15.8 million, of which approximat&h.0 million was more than 120 days
past due. To date, we have experienced only méatests with respect to the collection of our act®ueceivable and believe that the past
due accounts receivable for Greece, Spain anddtalgollectible. We continually seek to improve oaollection process to ensure that we
fully collect amounts due to us based on our prbdates and that collections are timely.

Other noncurrent assets increased to $29.1 miiiddecember 31, 2000 from $13.4 million at Decen8igr1999. The increase was prima
due to $11.4 million of long-term prepaid royaltresorded in the fourth quarter of 2000 relatedagments made to IOCB/REGA. These
prepayments will be amortized to royalty expenser die expected commercial life of tenofovir DF aagfovir dipivoxil when and if FDA
approval is obtained and sales of the products cemem Also included in other noncurrent assetseaeber 31, 2000 is $8.2 million of
deferred debt issuance costs related to the $250mB% convertible subordinated notes financiognpleted in December 2000. These ¢
are being amortized to interest expense over thgadual term of the notes. These increases ier atbncurrent assets were offset by a $2.0
million decrease due to a receivable from Isisteeldo a payment due to us in December 2001. Tdianbe was reclassified to current assets
as of December 31, 2000. Additionally, other nonentr assets as of December 31, 1999 included deferr
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debt issuance costs of $1.4 million related to@A6% subordinated debentures which were convéstedmmon stock in August 2000; th
costs were reclassified to additional paid-in apipon the conversion.

Long-term deferred revenue at December 31, 208Q0s7 million. This balance represents up-frontrpegts received under two
collaboration agreements that are being recogragazbntract revenue over the life of the relatsgaech and development collaboration,
manufacturing or supply arrangement. Upon our adopif SAB 101 effective January 1, 2000, a tofe$13.7 million of previously
recognized contract revenue was recorded as ddfezvenue, of which $2.9 million was recognize@astract revenue in 2000.

We made capital expenditures of $15.6 million i0@0512.5 million in 1999 and $11.0 million in 199hese expenditures were primarily
for facilities improvements to accommodate our gigvas well as for laboratory and manufacturingigepent. We expect our capital
spending to continue at the 2000 level or higheh@nfuture, particularly to accommodate our expahetsearch and development activities.

In August 2000, we redeemed our 6.25% convertibboslinated debentures at a cash price of $1,0881p@00 principal amount of
debentures outstanding, plus accrued interest,hwhis the redemption price provided for in the inajdebentures indenture. Upon
redemption, the entire $79.5 million in principah@unt of the debentures outstanding at that time seaverted into 3,567,578 newly issued
shares of Gilead common stock by August 15, 20@0eided debt issuance costs of $1.6 million relsbetthe debentures were charged to
additional paid in capital in connection with thengersion of the debentures into common stock.

On December 13, 2000, we issued $250 million ofce¥tvertible subordinated notes due December 15/ 208 private offering. The notes
are currently convertible into a total of up to&M058 shares of Gilead common stock at $49.125hmme. The $49.125 conversion price
higher than our common stock price at the notegaisce date. The notes are redeemable in whatepari, at our option, at any time on or
after December 20, 2003, at specified redempti@epiplus accrued interest. Debt issuance cosi8.8fmillion incurred in connection with
the issuance of the notes were recorded as otlmeunent assets, and are being amortized to intexpense on a straight-line basis over the
contractual term of the notes.

We maintain a $10.0 million unsecured line of créldat bears interest at a floating rate with aonfipancial institution. Under the terms of
the line of credit, we are required to maintairt@ierfinancial ratios and there are limitationsaam ability to incur additional debt or to eng

in certain significant transactions. The line cddit, which includes a foreign exchange facilitypiees on April 16, 2001. We currently do 1
intend to renew this line when it expires, but wit maintain the foreign exchange facility. As oeBember 31, 2000, we had no outstanding
borrowings under the line.

We believe that our existing capital resourcespirmpented by net product revenues and contractayadty revenues, will be adequate to
satisfy our capital needs for the foreseeable éutls of December 31, 2000, we were entitled tateiél cash payments of up to $11.6
million from Roche if and when Roche achieves dpeadditional Tamiflu developmental and regulatamifestones. We are also entitled to
additional cash payments from EyeTech of up toG2illion if and when EyeTech reaches certain N88 8evelopment milestones. We
cannot assure you that any of these milestoneswithet. Our future capital requirements will depen many factors, including:

- the progress of our research and development®ffo

- the scope and results of preclinical studiesdimital trials,
- the cost, timing and outcome of regulatory redew

- the rate of technological advances,
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- determinations as to the commercial potentiawfproducts under development,

- the commercial performance of AmBisome and angusfproducts in development that receive markediogyroval,
- administrative expenses,

- the status of competitive products,

- the establishment of manufacturing capacity odtparty manufacturing arrangements,

- the expansion of sales and marketing capabilities

- our possible geographic expansion, and

- the establishment of additional collaborativatieinships with other companies.

We may in the future require additional funding,iethcould be in the form of proceeds from equitydebt financings or additional
collaborative agreements with corporate partnéisidh funding is required, we can not assure hatiit will be available on favorable tern
if at all.

PROSPECTIVE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.(ISEAS 133"), ACCOUNTING

FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIESas amended by SFAS 137, ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES--DEFERRAL OF THEEFFECTIVE DATE OF FASB STATEMENT NO. 133, and SFAS
138, ACCOUNTING FOR CERTAIN DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENT&ND CERTAIN HEDGING ACTIVITIES, is effective for Geéad as
of January 1, 2001. The standards require thakeaegnize all derivatives as either assets or itesimeasured at fair value. If the derivative
is designated as, and meets the definition ofiravédue hedge, the changes in the fair value efdé@rivative and of the hedged item
attributable to the hedged risk are recognizedamiags. If the derivative is designated as, andtethe definition of, a cash flow hedge, the
effective portions of changes in the fair valuataf derivative are recorded in other compreherisis@me and are recognized in the income
statement when the hedged item affects earning&ebitive portions of changes in the fair valueash flow hedges are recognized in
earnings immediately. SFAS 133 also requires wisrinpurchase capital stock of a non-public corgpaimich include a net settlement
feature to be recorded in the balance sheet atdhie, with an offsetting amount recorded in thsuits of operations. The fair value of the
warrants are required to be remeasured at eachdeeddneet date, with changes in the fair valub®ftarrants recorded in results of
operations. We have cash flow hedges and warnamisvate companies with a net settlement featoveied by SFAS 133. Upon adoptior
SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001, we will recognizeggregate credit to results of operations, recoeted cumulative change in accounting
principle, of approximately $1.1 million; an incezain net assets of approximately $1.7 million; andncrease in other comprehensive
income of approximately $0.6 million.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURES
FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK

Our operations include manufacturing and salesiies in the United States as well as sales aig#/in Europe and Australia. As a result,
our financial results could be significantly affedtby factors such as changes in foreign currerclgange rates or weak economic conditions
in the foreign markets in which we distribute ovoglucts. Our operating results are exposed to @wimexchange rates between the U.S.
Dollar and various foreign currencies, the mostigicant of which are the Euro, the British Poumdidhe Australian Dollar. When the U.S.
Dollar strengthens against these currencies, théwe value of sales made in the respective foreigrrency decreases. Conversely, when the
U.S. Dollar weakens, the relative amounts of sadéssincrease. Overall, we are a net
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receiver of foreign currencies and, therefore, liefrem a weaker U.S. Dollar and are adverselgetiéd by a stronger U.S. Dollar relative to
those foreign currencies in which we transact icgmt amounts of business.

To mitigate the impact of changes in currency ergearates on cash flows from our foreign curreradgsstransactions, we enter into foreign
exchange forward contracts to hedge our foreigreoal-denominated accounts receivable. Additionatlynitigate the impact of currency
rate fluctuations on our cash outflows for certaireign currency-denominated raw materials purchase enter into foreign exchange
forward contracts to hedge our foreign currencyeseinated accounts payable.

The following table summarizes the notional amouat®rage currency exchange rates and fair vafuesr@pen foreign exchange forward
contracts at December 31, 2000. The contracts imaterities of one year or less with one except@ne hedge contract intended to hedge
raw materials purchases in the first quarter of20@th a notional amount of $4.1 million and faalue of $0.2 million, has a maturity of 13
months. Average rates are stated in terms of tleuatrof foreign currency per U.S. Dollar. Fair vedurepresent estimated settlement ami
at December 31, 2000 (notional amounts and fairesin $U.S. thousands):

FAIR VALUE

CURRENCY NOTIONAL AMOUNT AVERAGE RATE DECEMBER 31, 2000
Australian Dollar................. $1,499 1.8021 $ (11)

British Pound..................... 5,314 0.6893 (155)

Danish Krone...................... 6 8.1678 (6)

BUMO...coiiiiiiiie e 37,152 1.1026 (1,451)

Norwegian Krone................... 187 9.2359 (10)

Swedish Krona............cc...e.. 235 9.5820 4)

Swiss FranC.......cccccceeeven. 305 1.7233 (21)

French Franc..........ccccc...... 9,062 7.3891 558

INTEREST RATE RISK

Our portfolio of available-for-sale investment setteis and our fixed-rate liabilities create an espre to interest rate risk. With respect to the
investment portfolio, we adhere to an investmetitpdhat requires us to limit amounts investedéturities based on maturity, industry
group, investment type and issuer, except for sesiissued by the U.S. government. The goalsiofrorestment policy, in order of priority,
are as follows:

1. Safety and preservation of principal and diaaiion of risk;
2. Liquidity of investments sufficient to meet cdkiw requirements; and
3. Competitive after-tax rate of return.
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The following table summarizes the expected ma#sriind average interest rates of our interesifigpassets and fixed-rate liabilities at
December 31, 2000 (dollars in thousands).

YEAR S ENDING DECEMBER 31, FAIR VALUE
----------------- DECEMBER 31,
2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 THEREAFTER TOTAL 2000
ASSETS
Available-for-sale securities... $311,023 $116,6 93 $25,426 -- -- - $453,142  $453,142
Average interest rate........... 6.43% 6. 54% 6.18%
LIABILITIES
Minimum litigation settlement,
including current portion..... $ 1,178 $ 1,2 81 $1,394 $1,516 $1,649 $ 435 $ 7,453 $ 7,453
Discount rate................... 8.50% 8. 50% 8.50% 8.50%  8.50% 8.50%
Long-term obligations, including
current portion(1)............ $ 3,420 $ 2,0 22 $ 334 -- -- -- $ 5776 $ 5,776
Average interest rate........... 9.58% 9. 95% 11.50%
Convertible subordinated
debentures.........ccccueune -- - - - - $250,000 $250,000  $211,597
Interest rate............cuee 5.00%

(1) Long-term obligations consist of capital leaaad debt secured by property, plant and equipriémt.interest portion of payments due is
included.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES A BOUT MARKET RISK

Quantitative and qualitative disclosure about miarisk is included under the caption "Market Risis@osures" in Item 7.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this itemsateforth beginning at page 58 of this report.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTAN TS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
Not applicable
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PART 1lI
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE RE GISTRANT

The information required by this Item concerning directors and executive officers is incorporatgdeference to the sections of our
Definitive Proxy Statement filed with the SEC puastito Regulation 14A in connection with the 200inAal Meeting (the "Proxy
Statement”) under the headings "Nominees", "Exeeuifficers" and "Compliance with Section 16(a}jla# Securities Exchange Act of
1934."

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to the sections of our Proxy Statemnder the headings "Executive
Compensation" and "Compensation Committee Report."

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL O WNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by this Item is incorp@eby reference to the section of our Proxy Statgémeder the heading "Security
Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managgttie

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACT IONS

The information required by this Item is incorpedby reference to the sections of our Proxy Stat¢mnder the headings "Compensation
Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation,éftain Other Transactions" and "Executive Compemisat
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PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES AN D REPORTS ON FORM 8-K
(a) The following documents are filed as part @ fhorm 10-K:

(1) Schedule 1l is included on page 96 of this repsll other schedules are omitted because theynat required or the required information
is included in the financial statements or notesdto.

(2) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated by reference:

EXHIBIT EXHIBIT
FOOTNOTE NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT
3.1 Amended and Rest ated Certificate of Incorporation of the
Registrant, as a mended.

1) 32 Bylaws of the Re gistrant, as amended and restated March 30,
1999.

4.1  Reference is mad e to Exhibit 3.1 and Exhibit 3.2.

(4) 4.2 Amended and Rest ated Rights Agreement dated as of
October 21, 1999 between the Registrant and ChaseMellon
Shareholder Serv ices, LLC.

(10) 4.3 Agreementand PI an of Merger dated February 28, 1999 by and
among Registrant , Gazelle Acquisition Sub, Inc. and NeXstar
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

(24) 4.4  Indenture dated as of December 18, 2000 between the
Registrant and C hase Manhattan Bank and Trust Company,
National Associa tion, including therein the forms of the
notes.

(24) 45 Registration Rig hts Agreement dated as of December 18, 2000
between the Regi strant and J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.,

Chase Securities Inc., Lehman Brothers Inc. and Morgan
Stanley & Co. In corporated.

(5) 10.1  Form of Indemnit y Agreement entered into between the
Registrant and i ts directors and executive officers.

(5) 10.2 Form of Employee Proprietary Information and Invention
Agreement entere d into between Registrant and certain of its
officers and key employees.

(5) 10.3 Registrant's 198 7 Incentive Stock Option Plan and related
agreements.

(5) 10.4 Registrant's 198 7 Supplemental Stock Option Plan and related
agreements.

(22) 10.5 Registrant's Emp loyee Stock Purchase Plan, as amended
March 30, 1999.

10.6  Registrant's 199 1 Stock Option Plan, as amended and restated
April 5, 2000.
(5) 10.7 Form of Non-Qual ified Stock Option issued to certain

®)

Q)

10.8

10.9

executive office

Relocation Loan
among Registrant

Vintage Park Res
between Registra
27, 1992 for pre
Drive, Foster Ci
exhibits and ame
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ty, California with related addendum,
ndments.



EXHIBIT

FOOTNOTE

EXHIBIT
NUMBER

®)

Q)

@)

(22)

)

(21)

®)

®)

®

©)

©)

(22)

®

(13)

(14

(14)

10.13

10.10  Letter Agreement
Registrant and |
confidential inf

10.11 Vintage Park Res
between Registra
September 16, 19
Drive, Foster Ci

10.12 Amendment Agreem

Registrant and |
and exhibits wit

Registrant and |

10.14 Patent Rights Pu
Pharmaceuticals,
confidential inf

10.15 Loan Agreement,
and Mark L. Perr

10.16 Registrant's 199
as amended Janua
option grant.

10.17 Vintage Park Res
Registrant and W
June 24, 1996 fo
Foster City, Cal

10.18 Amendment No. 1
Lease by and bet
Partnership date
Lakeside Drive,

10.19 Amendment No. 2
Lease by and bet
Partnership date
344B, 346 and 35

10.20 License and Supp
Pharmacia & Upjo
confidential inf

10.21 Development and
Hoffmann-La Roch
September 27, 19
omitted.

10.22 Amendment No. 3
Lease by and bet
dated August 14,
Drive, Foster Ci

10.23 NeXstar Pharmace
adopted February

10.24 NeXstar Pharmace
adopted July 25,

10.25 Vestar, Inc. 198

10.26 Lease, dated Mar
Majestic Realty
Amendment No. 1
as of June 8, 19

Amendment Agreem
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DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT
, dated as of September 23, 1991 between
OCB/ REGA, with exhibits with certain
ormation omitted.

earch and Development Net Lease by and
nt and Vintage Park Associates dated

93 for premises located at 335 Lakeside
ty, California with related exhibits.

ent, dated October 25, 1993 between
OCB/ REGA, and related license agreements
h certain confidential information omitted.

ent, dated December 27, 2000 between
OCB/ REGA.

rchase Agreement between Registrant and Isis
Inc. dated December 18, 1998 with certain
ormation omitted.

dated as of October 1, 1994 among Registrant
y and Melanie P. Pena.

5 Non-Employee Directors' Stock Option Plan,
ry 26, 1999, and related form of stock

earch and Development Lease by and between
CB Sixteen Limited Partnership dated

r premises located at 333 Lakeside Drive,
ifornia.

to Vintage Park Research and Development
ween Registrant and WCB Seventeen Limited
d June 24, 1996 for premises located at 335
Foster City, California.

to Vintage Park Research and Development
ween Registrant and WCB Seventeen Limited
d June 24, 1996 for premises located at

3 Lakeside Drive, Foster City, California.

ly Agreement between Registrant and
hn S.A. dated August 7, 1996 with certain
ormation omitted.

License Agreement between Registrant and F.
e Ltd. and Hoffmann-La Roche Inc. dated
96 with certain confidential information

to Vintage Park Research and Development
ween Registrant and Spieker Properties, L.P.
1998 for premises located at 355 Lakeside
ty, California.

uticals, Inc.'s 1993 Incentive Stock Plan,
8, 1993, as amended.

uticals, Inc.'s 1995 Director Option Plan,
1995.

8 Stock Option Plan.

ch 26, 1987, between Vestar, Inc. and

Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc. and
thereto and Amendment No. 2 thereto, dated
92.



EXHIBIT
FOOTNOTE

EXHIBIT
NUMBER

(12)

(15)

(12)

(14

(13)

(12)

(14)

(12)

(16)

1)

(11)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(23)

211

23.1

23.2

10.27  Third Amendment,
Realty Co. and P
Registrant, to L
Inc. and Majesti

10.28 Assignment and R
effective as of
of Hope National

10.29 License Agreemen
Vestar, Inc. and
California.

10.30 Agreement by and
Inc., dated Augu
dated as of May

10.31 Amendment No. 2
Vestar, Inc., da
USA, Inc. and Ve
information omit

10.32 Amendment No. 3
the Registrant,
between Fujisawa
August 9, 1991.

10.33 Lease, dated Apr
Majestic Realty

10.34  First Amendment
Majestic Realty
Vestar, Inc. ame
Majestic Realty
Vestar, Inc.

10.35 Industrial Real
between Wilderne
Inc.

10.36  Sublease Agreeme
Inc. and NeXstar

10.37 License and Dist
1997, by and bet
NeXstar Pharmace
information omit

10.38 Settlement Agree
NeXstar Pharmace
Liposome Company
omitted.

10.39 Amended and Rest
Proligo L.L.C.,
Pharmaceuticals
NeXstar Pharmace

10.40 Amendment, dated
Pharmaceuticals
to the License a
26, 1996, betwee

10.41 Office/Light Man
Limited Partners

Subsidiaries of
Consent of Ernst

Consent of Price
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DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

dated January 11, 1996, between Majestic
atrician Associates, Inc. and the
ease, dated March 26, 1987, between Vestar,
¢ Realty Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc.

oyalty Agreement, dated December 21, 1990,
June 2, 1989, between Vestar, Inc. and City
Medical Center.

t, effective as of August 12, 1986, between
The Regents of the University of

between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and Vestar,
st 9, 1991, and Amendment No. 1 thereto,
17, 1994.

to agreement between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and
ted as of April 3, 1995, between Fujisawa
star, Inc. with certain confidential

ted.

to Agreement between Fujisawa USA, Inc. and
dated March 4, 1996, to the Agreement by and
USA, Inc. and Vestar, Inc., dated

il 13, 1992, between Vestar, Inc. and
Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc.

to Lease, dated April 10, 1993, between
Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc. and
nding Lease, dated April 13, 1992, between
Co. and Patrician Associates, Inc. and

Estate Lease, dated July 1, 1996, by and
ss Place, Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,

nt, dated July 31, 1996, between Sybase,
Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

ribution Agreement, dated September 26,
ween Sumitomo Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. and
uticals, Inc. with certain confidential

ted.

ment, dated August 11, 1997, by and among
uticals, Inc., Fujisawa U.S.A., Inc. and The
, Inc. with certain confidential information

ated Limited Liability Company Agreement of
dated August 15, 1998, by and among NeXstar
International, Inc., SKW Americas, Inc. and
uticals, Inc.

April 30, 1998, between Sumitomo

Co., Ltd. and NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

nd Distribution Agreement, dated September

n Sumitomo and NeXstar Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

ufacturing Lease between THW Partners
hip and Registrant dated January 25, 2000.

the Registrant.
& Young LLP, Independent Auditors.

waterhouseCoopers LLP, Independent Auditors.



EXHIBIT EXHIBIT
FOOTNOTE NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

24.1  Power of Attorne y. Reference is made to Signature Page.

(1) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Annual Repa Form 10-K/A for the fiscal year ended Decentti 1998, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(2) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quartergp®&t on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Decembget 394, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(3) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutidals,s Quarterly Report on Form T@for the quarter ended June 30, 1997, and incatpc
herein by reference.

(4) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Currentdtepn Form 8-K filed on October 22, 1999, and mpooated herein by reference.
(5) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Registraidatement on Form S-1 (No. 33-55680), as amerathellincorporated herein by reference.

(6) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterp®t on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septe®bet993, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(7) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Annual Répa Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended March B394, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(8) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterip®t on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 386,1and incorporated herein by
reference.

(9) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Quarterp®t on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septe®bet996, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Currenpéteon Form 8-K filed on March 9, 1999, and inamgted herein by reference.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdats's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen8i, 1996, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen8i, 1995, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(13) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endegt®mber 30, 1995, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(14) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdats's Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decen8i, 1994, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(15) Filed on March 22, 1991 as an exhibit to NeX$§tharmaceuticals, Inc.'s Registration Statemeftosm S-2 (File No. 33-39549), and
incorporated herein by reference.

(16) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endedel30, 1996, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(17) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endegt®mber 30, 1996, and incorporated
herein by reference.

(18) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarterly period endegt®mber 30, 1997, and incorporated
herein by reference.
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(19) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended Septer88e998, and incorporated herein by
reference.

(20) Filed as an exhibit to NeXstar Pharmaceutjdals's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 998 land incorporated herein by
reference.

(21) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 18-Kdr the year ended December 31, 1998, and incatpd herein by reference.

(22) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 1fKthe year ended December 31, 1998, and incomgmbizerein by reference.

(23) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Form 1fKthe year ended December 31, 1999, and incomgmbizerein by reference.

(24) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant's Registrattatement on Form S-3 (No. 338350), as amended, and incorporated herein byerefe
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On December 12, 2000, the Registrant filed a CtiRe@port on Form 8-K relating to its intention &lsonvertible subordinated notes. On

December 14, 2000, the Registrant filed a Curreagd® on Form 8-K relating to entering into an agnent to sell convertible subordinated
notes. On January 12, the Registrant filed a CuReport on Form 8-K relating to entering into ameement with Cubist Pharmaceuticals,
Inc.
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REPORT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Gilead Sciences, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of Gilead Sciences, Inc. and subsidiasie$ December 31, 2000 and 1999,
and the related consolidated statements of opestgtockholders' equity, and cash flows for eddhethree years in the period ended
December 31, 2000. Our audits also included thenfifal statement schedule listed in Item 14(ahisf Annual Report on Form 10-K. These
financial statements and schedule are the resplitysitd the management of Gilead Sciences, Incr @gponsibility is to express an opinion
on these financial statements and schedule basedraudits. We did not audit the financial statetaef Proligo L.L.C., a limited liability
company, the investment in which is reflected m élsccompanying consolidated financial statementguke equity method of accounting.
The investment in Proligo L.L.C. represents 1.0% &17% of consolidated total assets at Decembe2@®1Q and 1999, respectively, and the
Company's equity in the net loss of Proligo L.Li<C$2,858,000, $4,656,000, and $1,101,000 in 20999 and 1998, respectively. The 2000,
1999 and 1998 financial statements of Proligo L.lh&ve been audited by other auditors whose réparbeen furnished to us; insofar as our
opinion on the 2000, 1999 and 1998 consolidateahfiral statements relates to data included foridgdrdl.L.C., it is based solely on their
report.

We conducted our audits in accordance with audi&tagdards generally accepted in the United Statesse standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabgut whether the financial statements are fregaterial misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence stipgdhe amounts and disclosures in the finarstatements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well asatirgj the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits and thertef other auditors provide a reasonable basisdir opinion.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the repioother auditors, the consolidated financial steets referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial posibf Gilead Sciences, Inc. and subsidiaries ateb®er 31, 2000 and 1999, and the
consolidated results of their operations and tb&sh flows for each of the three years in the pegicded December 31, 2000, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted i thmited States. Also in our opinion, the finansi@tement schedule referred to above,
when considered in relation to the basic finansiatements taken as a whole, presents fairly] imaterial respects, the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated findrst&ements, effective January 1, 2000, the Comphanged its method of accounting for
non-refundable up-front fees received in connectiith collaboration agreements.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Palo Alto, California
January 23, 2001
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

To the Board of Directors and
Members of Proligo LLC:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzdasheets and the related consolidated statemieopi@tions, of members' equity and of
cash flows present fairly, in all material respette financial position of Proligo LLC and its sidiaries at December 31, 2000 and
November 30, 1999 and 1998, and the results of tpairations and their cash flows for the thir-months ended December 31, 2000, the
year ended November 30, 1999, and the period Audyst998 to November 30, 1998, respectively, mf@onity with accounting principle
generally accepted in the United States of Amefitese financial statements are the responsilofithe Company's management; our
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements based on our audits. We cordloateaudits of these statements in
accordance with auditing standards generally aedeiptthe United States of America, which requirat wve plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether thecfal@tatements are free of material misstatenf@ntaudit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and digelssn the financial statements, assessing theuatiog principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating dralbfinancial statement presentation. We belignag our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Broomfield, Colorado
January 12, 2001
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AND PER SHARE AMOUNTYS)

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents..............c.c.......
Marketable securities.........ccccccceeeeernnn.
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtfu
accounts of $2,300 in 2000 and $2,333 in 1999..
INVENLONIES....vvviieieeeeeee e
Prepaid expenses and other

Total current assets........c.ccoeeverveneennnnns
Property, plant and equipment, net.................
Other noncurrent assets...........coceeeceereene.

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable..........ccccccceveriennnnnn.
Accrued clinical and preclinical expenses........
Accrued compensation and employee benefits.......
Other accrued liabilities........................
Deferred revenue...........ccccceeevvreeeennnes
Long-term obligations due within one year........

Total current liabilities.............ccccceeveenee
Long-term deferred revenue..............cc.eue.
Accrued litigation settlement expenses due after on
Long-term obligations due after one year...........
Convertible subordinated debt......................
Commitments and contingencies (see accompanying not
Stockholders' equity:
Preferred stock, par value $.001 per share, issua
series; 5,000,000 shares authorized; none outst
Common stock, par value $.001 per share; 100,000,
shares authorized; 94,287,602 shares issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2000 and 88,185,558
issued and outstanding at December 31, 1999....
Additional paid-in capital.......................
Accumulated other comprehensive loss.............
Deferred compensation.............cccoeuveeenn.
Accumulated defiCit..........ccocveerviineeenne

Total stockholders' equity.............cccuveeenne

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Revenues:

Product sales, net.......ccocoevvvvviceenees $149,709 $139,890 $114,176

Royalty revenue, net.......cccccoevvveeevnceeee. Ll 24,591 10,431 7,305

Contract revenue.................... e 18,315 18,658 29,638

Contract revenue--SAB 101.......ccccceevvcceee. 2,940 - -
Total revenues.......ccccovvciieeeincieeeeeeeeee 195,555 168,979 151,119
Expenses:

Costof goods sold........cevvvevvveeveeeeenens 33,512 29,546 23,357

Research and development........cccccccoeeeeeeee. Ll 131,568 110,212 124,827

Selling, general and administrative............. ... 82,793 100,080 82,447
Total costs and eXpenses........cccecvvvvvveeees 247,873 239,838 230,631
Loss from operations.........ccoceevvvvvveeenneees . (52,318) (70,859) (79,512)
Gain on sale of a majority interest in a subsidiary ... -- - 22,132
Interest iNCOMe......ccoovvvvveviciieciiceeeee 17,634 16,435 21,765
Interest eXPense.....cccoccvvevviiiieeeeiicees (4,365) (6,518) (7,183)
Loss before provision for income taxes, equity in | oss of

unconsolidated affiliate and cumulative effect of change

in accounting principle.......ccccovvvieennee. (39,049) (60,942) (42,798)
Provision for income taxes.......ccccccoevvceees L 1,199 888 859
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliate......... . ... (2,858) (4,656) (1,101)
Loss before cumulative effect of change in accounti ng

PrNCIPIE. oo (43,106) (66,486) (44,758)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ... (13,670) -- --
NELIOSS..viiieiiiiii e $(56,776) $(66,486) $(44,758)
Basic and diluted net loss per common share:

Loss before cumulative effect of change in accoun ting

PrNCIPIE. oo $ (0.47) $ (0.78) $ (0.55)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting princip le....... (0.15) - -
NEtIOSS..cviiiiieiie e $ (0.62) $ (0.78) $ (0.55)

Pro forma amounts assuming the change in accounting
principle had been applied retroactively:

NEtIOSS..coviiiiiciie e $(43,106) $(62,826) $(40,098)

Basic and diluted net loss per common share...... ... $ (0.47) $ (0.73) $ (0.49)
Common shares used to calculate basic and diluted n et loss

per common share.........ccocoeevveveeeeeenns 91,050 85,652 82,030

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT SHARE AMOUNTS)

ACCUMULATED
OTHER
COMMON STOCK ADDITIONAL COMPREHENSIVE
PREFERRED - e PAID-IN INCOME DEFERRED ACCUMULATED
STOCK SHARES AMOUNT CAPITAL (LOSS) COMPENSATION  DEFICIT
Balance at December 31, 1997........ $1 8 0,850,434 $81 $696,119 $ (50) $(437) $(337,988)
NetloSs.....cccvverieeiiiennns -- - - -- - -- (44,758)
Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale investments,
- - - - (301) - -

Foreign currency translation

adjustment..........ccoceeven -- - - -- 14 - -
Comprehensive loss................ -- - - -- - - -
Private issuance of common

StOCK. ..cveiviiiiiiceie -- 728,514 1 9,982 - -- --
Employee stock purchase plan...... - 266,808  -- 2,879 - - -
Option exercises.................. -- 1,279,918 1 7,509 - - --
Amortization of deferred

COmMpensation............c....... - - - - - 212 -
Compensatory stock transactions...  -- - - 434 -- - -

Balance at December 31, 1998........ 1 8 3,125,674 83 716,923 (337) (225) (382,746)
Net 10SS......c.covvevvirieiianns - E— - - - (66,486)

Unrealized loss on

available-for-sale investments,

Nt - - - - (1,602) - -
Foreign currency translation

adjustment..........c.cceeeens -- - - -- (588) - -
Comprehensive l0ss................ -- -- - -
Employee stock purchase plan...... - 200,332 -- 3,075 - - -
Option exercises, net - 2,506,446 3 26,137 -- - -
Warrant exercises, net.. - 64,604 - 80 -- - -
Conversion of 1,133,786 shares of

preferred stock................. ) 2,267,572 2 1) - - -
Conversion of convertible

subordinated debentures......... - 20,930 - 467 - - -
Amortization of deferred

compensation.................... -- - - -- -- 151 --
Compensatory stock transactions...  -- - - 2,356 - - --

Balance at December 31, 1999........ - 8 8,185,558 88 749,037 (2,527) (74) (449,232)
Net l0ss.......coccvvviirinnns - - - - - - (56,776)
Unrealized gain on

available-for-sale investments,

1= O - - - - 2,071 - -
Foreign currency translation

adjustment........ . -- -- -- - (445) - .
Comprehensive loss................ -- - - -- - - -
Employee stock purchase plan...... - 203,800 - 3,942 - - -
Option exercises, net............. - 2,316,996 2 26,507 - - -
Warrant exercises, net............ -- 12,550  -- --
Conversion of convertible

subordinated debentures......... - 3,568,698 4 77,943 - - -
Amortization of deferred

COmMpensation............c....... - - - - - 71 -
Compensatory stock transactions...  -- - - 513 -- - -

Balance at December 31, 2000........ $- 9 4,287,602 $94  $857,942  $ (901) $ (3)  $(506,008)

TOTAL
STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY

Balance at December 31, 1997........ $357,726

Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale investments,

NEL...oiiiiiiiieeieeeieee (301)
Foreign currency translation
adjustment..........ccoceeves 14
Comprehensive loss................ (45,045)
Private issuance of common
StoCK..oveeeeieiiiiee, 9,983
Employee stock purchase plan...... 2,879
Option exercises.................. 7,510
Amortization of deferred
compensation.... 212
Compensatory stock transactions... 434
Balance at December 31, 1998........ 333,699
Net loss (66,486)

Unrealized loss on
available-for-sale investments,



NeL.eeiiieiiereee e (1,602)
Foreign currency translation

adjustment..........c.cceeeens (588)
Comprehensive 10ss................ (68,676)
Employee stock purchase plan...... 3,075
Option exercises, net............. 26,140
Warrant exercises, net
Conversion of 1,133,786 shares of

preferred stock................ -
Conversion of convertible

subordinated debentures......... 467
Amortization of deferred

compensation.................... 151
Compensatory stock transactions... 2,356

Balance at December 31, 1999........ 297,292

Unrealized gain on
available-for-sale investments,
Nttt 2,071
Foreign currency translation
adjustment..........ccoceerees (445)

Comprehensive loss................ (55,150)
Employee stock purchase plan...... 3,942
Option exercises, net............. 26,509
Warrant exercises, net............ -
Conversion of convertible

subordinated debentures......... 77,947
Amortization of deferred

COmpensation............c....... 71
Compensatory stock transactions... 513

$351,124

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NEtIOSS. i $ (56,776) $ (66,486) $ (44,758)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash u sed in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization................ .. 12,008 12,623 13,231
Net effect of change in accounting principle. ... 10,730 -- --
Compensation expense from stock option transa ctions... 513 2,356 434
Gain on sale of a majority interest in a subs idiary... - - (22,483)
Equity in loss of unconsolidated affiliate... ... 2,858 4,656 1,101
Litigation settlement charges.....cccccoc.... . L. 667 754 827
Net provision for doubtful accounts.......... . ... 30 888 (407)
Reduction in allowance for note receivable... ... - - (550)
Net unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currenc y
transactionS......cccccvvveveeeeeeeveneeeee (1,615) 2,846 (1,628)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable.........ccccccveeeeee. (3,942) (7,041) (6,523)
INVENLONES...cvvvveeeeeeieieie 397  (4,409) 860
Prepaid expenses and other assets........... ... 766 (349) 5,298
Long-term prepaid royalties............... .~ ... (11,367) - -
Accounts payable.........ccoccevvceeeeeee. 2,232 1,443 (502)
Accrued liabilities.......cccccceeveeeeee. L 5,775 (11,389) 10,159
Deferred revenue (excluding net effect of ¢ hange in
accounting principle)......cccoeeeeeeeee. L (478) 1,558  (6,383)
Net cash used in operating activities..............~ ... (38,202) (62,550) (51,324)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of marketable securities................ ... (229,862) (186,997) (488,407)
Sales of marketable securities - 29,490 101,943 390,426
Maturities of marketable securities... 134,240 83,677 166,129

Capital expenditures...........cccceeevuveeenn. (15,621) (12,475) (11,010)
Proceeds from sale of a majority interest in a su bsidiary,
net of closing costS........covevvvvvvveeees -- - 14,652
Investment in unconsolidated affiliate........... . ... (2,450) (2,450) (4,900)
Payments received on note receivable............ . ... - - 550
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activites ... (84,203) (16,302) 67,440
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from issuances of common stock.......... ... 30,451 29,295 20,372
Payments on short-term borrowings, net........... ... -- - (5,102)
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt......... ... -- 74 4,478
Repayments of long-term debt............ccocec.. . L (3,156) (5,394) (6,606)
Proceeds from issuance of convertible subordinate d notes,
net of issuance costs......cccccoevvceveeeneee L 241,750 - --
Net cash provided by financing activities........... ... 269,045 23,975 13,142
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash........... . ... 3,641 752 573
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent Serrerens 150,281 (54,125) 29,831
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year..... ... 47,011 101,136 71,305
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year.......... . ... $197,292 $ 47,011 $ 101,136

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)

(IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
$ 5417 $ 6,234 $ 6,793

Interest paid.......ccocvevevvceieiiiie
Income taxes paid.......cccccovvveieevicceee. 493 527 790
DISCLOSURES OF GAIN ON SALE OF A MAJORITY INTEREST IN A
SUBSIDIARY:
Cash receipts, net of closing costs.......c....... ... - $ - $ 14,652
Receipt of 49% interest in manufacturing facility ... - - 5,500
Net present value of guaranteed payments......... . ... -- -- 2,668
Other. i -- - 63
Net book value of 51% interest sold............. ... - - (751)
- $ - $22132
NON-CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of equipment and leasehold improvements through
accounts payable........coceevveevcieeene. 48 $ 124 $ 757
Common stock issued upon conversion of debentures ... 79,533 467 --
Reclassification of deferred debt issuance costs to
additional paid-in capital upon conversion of
1,586 - -

subordinated debentures...............cc......

See accompanying notes
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2000
1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES
OVERVIEW

Gilead Sciences, Inc. (the "Company" or "Gileaddsvincorporated in Delaware on June 22, 1987,sad independent biopharmaceutical
company that seeks to provide accelerated soluf@rzatients and the people who care for them.Cbmpany discovers, develops,
manufactures and commercializes proprietary thertsgeefor challenging infectious diseases (virahdal and bacterial infections) and
cancer. Gilead also has expertise in liposomal deliyery technology. Currently, the Company mask&mBisome-Registered Trademark-
((amphotericin B) liposome for injection), an aatifjal agent, DaunoXome-Registered Tradem@&unorubicin citrate liposome injection’
drug approved for the treatment of Kaposi's Sarc@md VISTIDE-Registered Trademark- (cidofovir ittjen) for the treatment of
cytomegalovirus ("CMV") retinitis. Hoffmann-La Roehinc. markets Tamiflu-TM- (oseltamivir phosphdi®) the treatment of influenza,
under a collaborative agreement with Gilead. Initamit] Gilead is developing products to treat dissacaused by human immunodeficiency
virus ("HIV") and hepatitis B virus ("HBV"), bacti infections and cancer.

As more fully described in Note 3, on July 29, 19G8ead entered into a business combination (herer"”) with NeXstar Pharmaceuticals,
Inc. ("NeXstar"). The business combination was aoted for as a pooling of interests and the histédiconsolidated financial statements of
Gilead for all years prior to the business combamahave been restated to include the financiaitipos results of operations and cash flows
of NeXstar. No material adjustments were necedsacpnform the accounting policies of the two conipa. Costs of the Merger were
charged to operations in 1999.

The accompanying consolidated financial statemiantade the accounts of the Company and its whentigt majority-owned subsidiaries.
Significant intercompany transactions have beeniehited. Certain prior period amounts have beelassified to be consistent with the
current presentation.

STOCK SPLIT

On February 22, 2001, Gilead completed a two-far-stock split, effected in the form of a stock deuid, to stockholders of record as of
February 2, 2001. Accordingly, all share and parslamounts for all periods presented have beésiedgo retroactively reflect the split.

CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

In the year ended December 31, 2000, Gilead addp&8ecurities and Exchange Commission's Stafbeting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB
101"), "REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS resulting in a cumulative effect of a changeadatounting principle.
See Note 2.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conftymiith generally accepted accounting principleguiees management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the amounts reporttteigonsolidated financial statements and accogipgmotes. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) REVENUE RECOGNITION

Product sales revenue is recognized upon passdggabtitle of the inventory and satisfaction dfad the Company's performance
obligations. The Company does not provide its qusis with a general right of product return. Howetege Company will accept returns of
product that has expired or is deemed to be damageefective. Provisions are made for doubtfuloaits, estimated product returns, cash
discounts and government discounts and rebates.

In connection with most of its European producesathe Company prices its products in the currefitlye country into which they are sold
("Payment Currencies"). A significant majority betCompany's manufacturing costs are in U.S. DollBnerefore, any decline in the value
of the Payment Currencies relative to the U.S. @af likely to negatively impact gross marginscsithe Company's manufacturing costs
would remain approximately the same while its rexeem terms of U.S. Dollars would decline. Periadlic the Company's gross margin is
adversely affected by such currency fluctuations.

Contract revenue for research and development@ded as earned based on the performance requitgfehe contract. Nonrefundable
contract fees for which no further performance gdtiions exist, and there is no continuing involvatriey Gilead, are recognized on the
earlier of when the payments are received or windleation is assured.

Revenue from non-refundable up-front license felksre we continue involvement through developmehilsoration or an obligation to
supply product, is recognized as the manufactulggation is fulfilled or ratably over the developnt period or the period of the
manufacturing obligation, as appropriate based subatantive risk assessment.

Revenue associated with substantive performancsstaiies is recognized based upon the achievem# afilestones, as defined in the
respective agreements. Revenue under researcteaabbpment cost reimbursement contracts is recedras the related costs are incurred.

Advance payments received in excess of amountedane classified as deferred revenue.

Royalty revenue from sales of AmBisome is recogthinethe month following that in which the corresgiang sales occur. Royalty revenue
from sales of VISTIDE and Tamiflu is recognized wheceived, which is the quarter following the daaim which the corresponding sales
occur.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS
All R&D costs, including those funded by third pest, are charged to expense as incurred.
STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

In accordance with the provisions of Statementin&fcial Accounting Standards ("SFAS") No. 123, AQUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED
COMPENSATION, the Company has elected to follow édwating Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25, SOUNTING FOR STOCK
ISSUED TO EMPLOYEES, and related interpretationadnounting for its employee stock option plansd&mAPB 25, if the exercise price
of the Company's employee and director stock optemuals or exceeds the fair value of the
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) underlying stock on the elaif
grant, no compensation expense is recognized. &1 for pro forma disclosures of stock-basedpmamsation pursuant to SFAS 123.

In March 2000, the Financial Accounting Standardaf8 ("FASB") issued Interpretation No. 44 ("FIN"A4'Accounting for Certain
Transactions Involving Stock Compensation--an pretation of APB Opinion No. 25." FIN 44 clarifilse application of APB 25 with
respect to stock-related compensation. Gilead'ptamoof FIN 44 on July 1, 2000, did not have aenial effect on the financial position or
results of operations of Gilead.

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

For all periods presented, both basic and diluted per common share are computed based on theteec@verage number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Convertibles) stock options and warrants could potentgillyte basic earnings per share in the
future, but these instruments, as well as the atible debentures that were previously outstandiveye excluded from the computation of
diluted loss per share as their effect is antitli@ufor the periods presented. All share and paresamounts for all periods presented have
been restated to retroactively reflect the twodoe stock split of February 22, 2001.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers highly liquid investmentditignificant interest rate risk and a remainingturity of three months or less at the
purchase date to be cash equivalents. Gilead ntay iato overnight repurchase agreements underhwhjmurchases securities with an
obligation to resell them the following day. Setigs purchased under agreements to resell aredetat face value and reported as cash anc
cash equivalents. Under the Company's investmdityp@ may enter into repurchase agreements @s&pwith major banks and authorized
dealers provided that such repos are collateraliged.S. government securities with a fair valuableast 102% of the fair value of securi
sold to Gilead.

MARKETABLE SECURITIES

Management determines the appropriate classifitatidGilead's marketable debt securities at the tifnpurchase and reevaluates such
designation at each balance sheet date. All o€ttrapany's marketable debt securities are classfiealvailable-for-sale and carried at
estimated fair values and reported in either caglivalents or marketable securities. At Decembe2B0DO0, cash and cash equivalents include
$137.6 million of securities designated as avadldbt-sale ($14.3 million at December 31, 1999)ré#tized gains and losses on available-
for-sale securities are excluded from earningsrapdrted as a separate component of stockholdgrityelnterest income includes interest,
dividends, amortization of purchase premiums asdalints, and realized gains and losses on satexofities. The cost of securities sold is
based on the specific identification method.

CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Gilead is subject to credit risk from its portfotid cash equivalents and marketable securitiepdigy, the Company limits amounts inves
in such securities by maturity, industry group,d@stment
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) type and issuer, exceptdecuritie:
issued by the U.S. government. Gilead is not exghts@ny significant concentrations of credit riskm these financial instruments. The
goals of the Company's investment policy, in omfegriority, are as follows: safety and preservatid principal and diversification of risk;
liquidity of investments sufficient to meet casbvil requirements; and competitive after-tax ratestdirn.

Gilead is also subject to credit risk from its atats receivable related to product sales. A mgjarfithe Company's trade accounts receivable
arises from sales of AmBisome, primarily througlesdo the Company's European subsidiaries andreggles to its distributors in Europe.
The Company performs credit evaluations of its@uwglrs' financial condition and generally has nquieed collateral. To date, the Company
has experienced only modest credit losses withetdp its accounts receivable.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are recorded at the lower of cost arketawith cost determined on a first-in, first-dagsis. Management periodically reviews the
composition of inventory in order to identify obstd, slow-moving or otherwise unsaleable itemsuth items are observed and there are no
alternate uses for the inventory, the Companynedbrd a write-down to net realizable value inplkeod that the units are identified as
impaired. Historically, inventory write-downs haleen insignificant and consistent with managemexpectations.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment is stated at costdesumulated depreciation and amortization. Dégtien and amortization are recognized
using the straight-line method. Estimated usefiddiare as follows:

DESCRIPTION ESTIMATED USEFUL LIFE (IN YEARS)
BUildiNgS....ccvveveeeeeeeieiieiiieeee 20
Laboratory and manufacturing equipment............. 4-10
Office and computer equipment...................... 2-6

Office and computer equipment includes capitalieethputer software. All of the Company's capitaliseftware is purchased. The Company
has no internally developed computer software. &kalsl improvements and capitalized leased equipareramortized over the shorter of
the lease term or the item's useful life.

OTHER NONCURRENT ASSETS

Other noncurrent assets at December 31, 2000 iesldti1.4 million (including withholding taxes offapximately $0.4 million) of prepaid
royalties paid to the Institute of Organic Chenyistnd Biochemistry of the Academy of Sciences ef@zech Republic and Rega Stichting
("IOCB/REGA"), as discussed under the "IOCB/REGAptGon of Note 5. Also included in other noncurragssets at December 31, 2000 are
deferred debt issuance costs of $8.2 million rdlawethe $250.0 million 5% subordinated convertiiées Gilead issued in December 2000.
Other noncurrent assets at
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) December 31, 1999 includid4
million of deferred debt issuance costs relateith¢06.25% subordinated convertible debenturesaGitalled the debentures for redemptic
August 2000, at which time they were converted iledd common stock. Upon the conversion, the reimgibalance of the deferred debt
issuance costs of the debentures was charged itioadtpaid in capital.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The carrying value of long-lived assets is reviewad regular basis for the existence of factdroumstances both internally and externally
that may suggest impairment. Specific potentialdatbrs of impairment include:

- a significant decrease in the fair value of esegs

- a significant change in the extent or mannerliictv an asset is used or a significant physicahghan an asset;

- a significant adverse change in legal factoris dhe business climate that affects the valuencdsset;

- an adverse action or assessment by the U.S. &mb&®rug Adminstration or another regulator;

- an accumulation of costs significantly in excesthe amount originally expected to acquire orstarct an asset; and

- operating or cash flow losses combined with aohnysbf operating or cash flow losses or a projetto forecast that demonstrates contint
losses associated with an income-producing asset.

Should there be indication of impairment, the Conypaill confirm this by comparing the estimatedute cash flows expected to result from
the use of the asset and its eventual dispositithe carrying amount of the asset. In estimatimge future cash flows, assets are grouped at
the lowest level for which there are identifiabésk flows that are largely independent of the ¢asts generated by other asset groups. If the
sum of the expected future cash flows (undiscouatebiwithout interest changes) is less than thegjicaramount of the asset, an impairment
loss, measured as the excess of the carrying wéline asset over its fair value, will be recogdiz€he cash flow estimates used in such
calculations are based on management's best essinuging appropriate and customary assumptionprafettions at the time.

OTHER CURRENT ACCRUED LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2000 and December 31, 1999, ottened liabilities included $2.4 million of accrukiibation settlement costs. See the
Legal Proceedings discussion in Note 11.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION, TRANSACTIONS AND CONT RACTS

Adjustments resulting from translating the finahsiatements of the Company's foreign subsidianiesU.S. dollars are excluded from the
determination of net income and are accumulatedseparate component of stockholders' equity. dieign exchange transaction losses are
reported
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) as a selling, general and
administrative expense in the consolidated stat&rafroperations. Such losses were $0.5 millio2GA0, $0.5 million in 1999 and $0.3
million in 1998.

The Company hedges certain of its foreign currangosures related to outstanding trade accoungévedate and firmly committed purchase
transactions with foreign exchange forward congralet general, these contracts do not expose thep@oy to market risk because gains and
losses on the contracts offset gains and losséiseainansactions being hedged. The Company's esptseredit risk from these contracts
function of changes in interest and currency exgbaates and, therefore, varies over time. Gilenaitd the risk that counterparties to these
contracts may be unable to perform by transactirig with major U.S. banks. The Company also lint#sisk of loss by entering into
contracts that provide for net settlement at matufiherefore, the Company's overall risk of lasshie event of a counterparty default is
limited to the amount of any unrecognized and uired gains on outstanding contracts (i.e., thaseracts that have a positive fair value) at
the date of default. The Company does not enterspéculative foreign currency transactions and caé write options.

In accounting for hedges of accounts receivabkebmpany's aggregate net foreign currency traiesaghin or loss is reported as a selling,
general and administrative expense. The Compamgrezes the net unrealized gain or loss on outgtgrfdrward contracts based on the
difference between the contract exchange ratetendhairket exchange rate at each balance sheewdittierespect to hedges of firmly
committed purchase transactions, unrealized gaiddasses on the underlying forward contracts aferded and reported as a component of
the related transaction in the period in whichciturs. At December 31, 2000, the Company has netlired losses on its open foreign
exchange forward contracts of $1.1 million.

The Company had forward exchange contracts outistguad $53.8 million at December 31, 2000 and $48ilion at December 31, 1999.
These contracts have maturities of one year omithsone exception. One hedge contract intenddbtiye raw materials purchases in the
first quarter of 2002, with a notional amount of B#illion, and fair value of $0.2 million, has aturity of thirteen months.

The Company presently does not hedge its net imeggtin any of its foreign subsidiaries or its frasted foreign currency denominated
sales.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company's financial instruments consist prialtypof cash and cash equivalents, marketable gesjraccounts receivable, certain other
non-current assets, forward foreign exchange cotstraccounts payable, long-term obligations amyedible subordinated notes. Cash and
cash equivalents, marketable securities and forfamedgn exchange contracts that hedge accountsvedale are reported at their respective
fair values on the balance sheet. Forward foreiga&nge contracts that hedge firmly committed pasels are recorded at fair value, net of
the related deferred gain or loss, resulting in@orted net balance of zero. Management beliewegethaining financial instruments, with the
exception of the convertible subordinated notes raported on the balance sheet at amounts thebapgte current fair values. The fair
value of the convertible subordinated notes at B 31, 2000 was $211.6 million, and the carryialyie was $250 million. The fair value
of notes
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1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTNG POLICIES (CONTINUED) was determined by multipigithe
number of shares into which the notes can be ctedigy the per share market price of Gilead's comstock at December 31, 2000, plus
accrued interest. The fair value of Gilead's pcimnvertible subordinated debentures, which wereertkd and converted to Gilead common
stock in the third quarter of 2000, was $101.8iomllat December 31, 1999, and the carrying valug $78.5 million at that date. The fair
value of the debentures at December 31, 1999 waswi@ed by obtaining a quote from a market makette debentures.

PROSPECTIVE ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENT

Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No.(IS8AS 133"), ACCOUNTING

FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIESas amended by SFAS 137, ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE
INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES--DEFERRAL OF THEEFFECTIVE DATE OF FASB STATEMENT NO. 133, and SFAS
138, ACCOUNTING FOR CERTAIN DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTAND CERTAIN HEDGING ACTIVITIES, is effective for ta
Company as of January 1, 2001. The standards ectinsit the Company recognize all derivatives dgee#issets or liabilities measured at fair
value. If the derivative is designated as, and mtiet definition of, a fair value hedge, the chanigehe fair value of the derivative and of the
hedged item attributable to the hedged risk aregeized in earnings. If the derivative is desigdais, and meets the definition of, a cash
hedge, the effective portions of changes in thevidiue of the derivative are recorded in other pmrhensive income and are recognized in
the income statement when the hedged item affectérays. Ineffective portions of changes in the Yaiue of cash flow hedges are
recognized in earnings immediately. SFAS 133 adsire warrants to purchase capital stock of apudslic company which include a net
settlement feature to be recorded in the balaneetstt fair value, with an offsetting amount reeafih the results of operations. The fair
value of the warrants are required to be remeasiredch balance sheet date, with changes initheafae of the warrants recorded in results
of operations. Gilead has cash flow hedges andamtwin private companies with a net settlemerttfeacovered by SFAS 133. Upon
adoption of SFAS 133 on January 1, 2001, Gileatretlognize an aggregate credit to results of djmers, recorded as a cumulative change
in accounting principle, of approximately $1.1 maitl; an increase in net assets of approximately #illion; and an increase in other
comprehensive income of approximately $0.6 million.

2. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Cessioniissued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (BBA01"), "REVENUE
RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS." Among otheihings, SAB 101 describes the SEC Staff's positiothe recognition of
certain nonrefundable up-front fees received imeation with collaboration agreements. The Compgamyiously recognized nonrefundable
technology access fees received in connectionauilaboration agreements as revenue when receiveti@n collectibility was probable,
and when the technology had been transferred. iféedanuary 1, 2000, Gilead changed its methatobunting for these fees to recognize
them as the related manufacturing obligation iglfedl or on a straight-line basis over the ternttod related research and development
collaboration, manufacturing or supply arrangemastappropriate, as this method best matches fitve pfovided. Management believes the
change in accounting principle is preferable baseduidance provided in SAB 101.
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2. CUMULATIVE CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE (CONTNUED) The cumulative effect of the change in acamgprinciple

was recorded in the fourth quarter of 2000, retivaly effective as of January 1, 2000, as deferexe@nue that will be recognized as contract
revenue over the remaining term of the researchdamdlopment, manufacturing or supply arrangemastgppropriate. For the year ended
December 31, 2000, the net impact of the changedpunting principle was to increase the net lgs$1).7 million, or $0.12 per share. The
loss consists of a $13.7 million cumulative effetthe change as of January 1, 2000, net of $2l®&mof related deferred revenue that was
recognized as contract revenue during the year.Z0@®remainder of the $10.7 million related defdrrevenue balance as of December 31,
2000, is expected to be recognized as revenusdalfyears 2001 through 2012. The pro forma regwdtaded in the Consolidated Stateme

of Operations reflect amounts that would have reported if the change in accounting principle badn applied retroactively.

3. ACQUISITION OF NEXSTAR

On July 29, 1999, the Company acquired all of thstanding common stock of NeXstar, a Delawarea@aon, under an agreement dated
as of February 28, 1999. As a result, NeXstar becamvholly owned subsidiary of Gilead. In connattidth the Merger, Gilead issued a
total of 22.4 million shares of Gilead common stamk0.1893 of a share of Gilead common stock &mheshare of NeXstar common stock, to
NeXstar's stockholders as consideration for alteshaf common stock of NeXstar. In addition, hotédef options and warrants outstandiny
the time of the Merger to purchase an aggregasgpfoximately 2.2 million shares of NeXstar comnstock would receive, upon exercise
such options and warrants, the same fraction bheesof Gilead common stock. Holders of $80.0 wrillprincipal amount of 6.25%
convertible subordinated debentures of NeXstarivedehe right to convert the debentures into apipnately 3.6 million shares of Gilead
common stock. The Merger qualified as a tax-fregganization and was accounted for as a poolingtefests.

The table below presents the separate resultseshtipns for Gilead and NeXstar for the periodsipid the merger and combined results
after the merger (in thousands):

MERGER-RELATED
GILEAD NEXSTAR ADJUSTMENTS TOTAL

Year ended December 31, 1999

REVENUES........ceccvveeiiecciecee $ 24,659 $144,320 $ -- $168,979

Net income (10SS)........ccceevvvvvreeennnns (73,534) 25,351 (18,303)(a) (66,486)
Year ended December 31, 1998

REVENUES.........ecvvveeiieccieecee $ 32,570 $118549 $ -- $151,119

Net income (10SS)........ccoeevvvvvvvienenns (56,075) 10,920 397(b) (44,758)

(a) Merger-related costs

(b) Adjustment required to conform accounting palideXstar's policy was to capitalize certain patard trademark costs, while it was
Gilead's policy to charge such items to sellingiegal and administrative expense in the periodrirecl The accompanying financial
statements have been restated for all periodstbattall patent and trademark costs are expenset@ased.
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3. ACQUISITION OF NEXSTAR (CONTINUED) As a resulf iis merger with NeXstar, the Company incurred geefrelated costs
consisting of transaction costs (primarily professil fees, filing fees, printing costs and othdaitesl charges), employee severance costs and
the write-down of certain NeXstar assets that wawdtibe used in continuing operations. The follagpiable shows the details of the merger-
related costs and accruals at December 31, 1998dusands):

CHARG ED TO EXPENSE THROUGH DECEMBER 31, 199 9
D ECEMBER 31, 1999 UTILIZED ACCRUAL BALANCE
Merger transaction costs.................... $12,214 $12,196 $ 18
Employee severance................ccccueee 5,309 2,821 2,488
Write-down of NeXstar assets................ 536 N/A N/A
Other.....coooiiiiiieiiieee e 244 244 -
Total...oooeeeieeiee e $18,303 $15,261 $2,506

All employees for which severance costs were acchael been terminated as of December 31, 1999t&uladly all remaining accrued
severance costs were paid to former employees bgrbiger 31, 2000. All merger transaction costs wéleed by December 31, 2000.

4. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES

The following is a summary of available-for-salessties. Estimated fair values of available-folessecurities are based on prices obtained
from commercial pricing services (in thousands).

GROSS GROSS
AMORTIZED UNREALIZED UNREALIZED ESTIMATED
COST GAINS LOSSES FAIR VALUE

DECEMBER 31, 2000
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government agencies............cccceeeevveeennenn. . $57,938 $93 $ (125) $57,906
Certificates of deposit........ 132 1 - 133
Corporate debt securities.. . 190,604 504 (252) 190,856
Asset-backed securities..... . 43,752 349 (58) 44,043
Other debt securities...........cccceeevneeenne . 160,204 -- -- 160,204

Total.eeeiieeee e . $452,630 $947 $ (435) $453,142
DECEMBER 31, 1999
U.S. treasury securities and obligations of U.S.

government agencies.........ccccoveereeenennn. . $133,444 $512 $(1,243) $132,713
Certificates of deposit........ 5,309 1 - 5,310
Corporate debt securities.. . 70,726 19 (583) 70,162
Asset-backed securities..... . 39,554 2 (266) 39,290
Other debt securities..........ccccceeeeriveeennne . 14,256 - - 14,256
Total oo . $263,289 $534 $(2,092) $261,731




GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
4. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
Other debt securities consist primarily of moneykeafunds.
The following table presents certain informatiolated to sales of available-for-sales securitiegi{ousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Proceeds from sales..........cccccceveueenne. $2 9,490 $101,943 $390,426
Gross realized gains on sales.................. $ 62 $ 92 $ 1,127
Gross realized losses on sales................. $ (146) $ (475) $ (654)

At December 31, 2000, $267.0 million of the Compaupprtfolio of marketable securities (excludingt®million of asset-backed securities)
has a contractual maturity of less than one yed1$dd2.1 million of the portfolio has a contractoeturity greater than one year but less
three years. None of the estimated maturities@Qbmpany's asset-backed securities exceed thaeg ye

5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
EYETECH

In March 2000, Gilead entered into an agreemerit jteTech Pharmaceuticals, Inc. relating to Gikepbprietary aptamer NX 1838.
Currently in early clinical trials, NX 1838 is anmhibitor of vascular endothelial growth factor \EGF, which is known to play a role in the
development of certain ophthalmic diseases. Urttetdrms of the agreement, EyeTech received wadlelwghts to all therapeutic uses of
NX 1838, and, if the product is successfully comeiadized, EyeTech will pay Gilead royalties on welwide sales of the product. EyeTe

also will be responsible for all research and dewedent costs. Gilead will provide clinical suppl@ghe product to EyeTech through March
2001. Gilead received a $7.0 million up-front liserg fee from EyeTech in April 2000, which is beiegognized as revenue ratably over the
one-year supply agreement period. Accordingly, $3ilBon of the license fee was recorded as comntraeenue under the agreement in 2000,
and the remainder of the license fee will be recogghas revenue in the first quarter of 2001. Gilisaalso entitled to additional cash
payments from EyeTech of up to $25.0 million if amiden EyeTech reaches certain NX 1838 developméestones. Additionally, Gilead
received a warrant to purchase 833,333 shares@fdth series B convertible preferred stock, exabdésat a price of $6.00 per share, the
price at which the stock was issued to other irorssGilead is obligated to transfer 5% of the shaubject to the warrant to the Universit
Colorado at Boulder under a collaborative agreemthtthe university, and Gilead expects to rethmremaining 791,667 shares. Gilead
not recognize revenue related to the warrant ag theas no readily determinable fair value at theetbf the transaction. See the Prospective
Accounting Pronouncement caption under Note 1 fdescription of the future accounting treatmenthefwarrant.
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5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (CONTINED) FUJISAWA

The Company's rights to market AmBisome are sultjeah agreement between the Company and Fujisaatitdare, Inc., as successor to
Fujisawa USA, Inc. ("Fujisawa"). Under the termglué Fujisawa agreement, as amended, Fujisawehanddmpany co-promote AmBisome
in the United States, Fujisawa has sole marketgigs to AmBisome in Canada and the Company hdsigxe marketing rights to
AmBisome in the rest of the world, provided the Qamy pays royalties to Fujisawa in connection gdles in most significant Asian
markets, including Japan. In connection with Uees, Fujisawa purchases AmBisome from the Compangst. For sales in Canada,
Fujisawa purchases AmBisome at cost plus a spdgiecentage. Fujisawa collects all payments fioensele of AmBisome in the United
States and Canada. The Company receives 20% sblgis gross profits from the sale of AmBisoménaWnited States. Gross profits
include a deduction for cost of goods sold, givimg Company a current effective royalty rate ofragpnately 17% of Fujisawa's net sales of
AmBisome in the United States. In connection with agreement between the Company and Fujisawad3iorded royalty revenue of
$13.5 million in 2000, $8.3 million in 1999 and $4million in 1998.

SUMITOMO

In September 1996, the Company and Sumitomo Phautiaals Co., Ltd. ("Sumitomo") entered into anesgmnent ("Sumitomo License")
pursuant to which Sumitomo agreed to develop antteb@dAmBisome in Japan. Under the terms of the Samb License, Sumitomo paid t
Company an initial $7.0 million licensing fee (legghholding taxes of $0.7 million) in October 1986d a $3.0 million milestone payment
(less withholding taxes of $0.3 million) in MarcB98. Sumitomo also is required to make additiomaghpents to the Company if certain
clinical and commercial milestones are met andatpthe Company royalties on all Japanese AmBisates sUnder the Sumitomo License,
Gilead is obligated to provide a certain quantibAmBisome to Sumitomo at no charge. AmBisome isy&t approved for marketing in
Japan.

Subsequent to the cumulative effect of the changecounting principle that was recorded effecitivéhe first quarter of 2000 resulting from
the adoption of SAB 101, Gilead is recognizingitiigal license fee over the remaining free supgilsangement period, which is currently
expected to be over the next five years. The npaonof the change in accounting principle for $umitomo License was to increase the net
loss in 2000 by $3.4 million. The cumulative effe€the change in accounting principle was a chafdgks.0 million. Contract revenue of
$1.6 million related to the initial licensing femin Sumitomo was recognized as contract reven@8®. The remaining $3.4 million of
related deferred revenue at December 31, 2000bwitecognized as contract revenue over the rengafrée supply obligation period.

HOFFMANN-LA ROCHE

In September 1996, Gilead entered into a collamoratgreement with F. Hoffmann-La Roche Ltd. andfidannLa Roche Inc. (collectivel
"Roche") to develop and commercialize therapiesedat and prevent viral influenza (the "Roche Agneat"). Under the Roche Agreement,
Roche received exclusive worldwide rights to Gilegatoprietary influenza neuraminidase inhibitdns1996, Roche made an initial license
fee payment to Gilead of $10.3 million. Upon aclmgvcertain
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5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (CONTINED) developmental milestones in 1997, Gilead edoash
payments of $6.0 million. During 1999, Gilead resizgd a total of $12.8 million of additional milese payments due to the commencement
of certain clinical trials in Japan, the filing af application to market Tamiflu in the Europeanddnand the filing and subsequent approval
to market Tamiflu in the United States. During 20G@ead recognized $9.6 million of contract reverfitom milestone payments from Roche
related to Tamiflu milestones achieved during teary The milestones included filing for regulatapproval in Japan for treatment of
influenza, the Japanese approval of the applicatienfiling for U.S. regulatory approval for theegention of influenza, and the receipt of
such approval in the U.S.

Subsequent to the cumulative effect of the changecounting principle that was recorded effecitivéhe first quarter of 2000 resulting from
the adoption of SAB 101, Gilead recognized thaahiicense fee over the remaining research anéldpment period, which ended in the 1
quarter of 2000. The net impact of the change aoawcting for the initial license fee was zero. Thenulative effect of the change in
accounting principle related to the Roche licersevias a $0.7 million charge to results of openatiand was offset by additional contract
revenue of $0.7 million also recognized in thetfigarter of 2000. There is no remaining defermenue related to the Roche initial license
fee as of December 31, 2000.

As of December 31, 2000, Gilead is entitled to tiddal cash payments from Roche of up to $11.6onilupon Roche achieving additional
developmental and regulatory milestones. In addlitiRoche is required to pay Gilead royalties onpnetiuct sales. Gilead began receiving
royalties from Roche's sales of Tamiflu in thetfgaarter of 2000, and recorded a total of $9.6i@nilof Tamiflu royalties in the year 2000.
No Tamiflu royalties were recorded in 1999. The @amy recognizes royalty revenue from Roche in thetgr following the quarter i
which the related Tamiflu sales occur.

Under the Roche Agreement, Roche also reimburge€dmpany for its related R&D costs under the mogby funding such costs quarterly
and generally in advance, based on an annual huggmhbursements are included in contract revesube@Company incurs the related

R&D costs. Amounts incurred by the Company in egagfsamounts funded may also be reimbursed, sutgjdebche's approval. In this

event, revenue is not recognized until such appioambeen obtained. Conversely, if amounts futdeRoche exceed the Company's related
R&D costs, the Company may be required to repais sucess funding to Roche. The Company recordetlaminnevenue for R&D
reimbursements related to the Roche Agreementmrbapnately $0.9 million in 2000, $2.1 million irP29 and $16.4 million in 1998. The
$16.4 million recorded as revenue during 1998 idetlu$5.2 million attributable to R&D expenses imedrin the fourth quarter of 1997,

which were subject to Roche's approval as of Deeer@b, 1997. Such expenses were approved for regament and recognized in contract
revenue in 1998. Except for this $5.2 million, R&Dsts related to the Roche Agreement approximatesimbursement revenue in each year
presented and are included in R&D expenses.

PHARMACIA

In August 1996, the Company and Pharmacia CormordtPharmacia”) entered into a License and Supghgement ("Pharmacia
Agreement”) to market VISTIDE in all countries ddesthe United States. Under the terms of the PaaiamAgreement, Pharmacia paid
Gilead an initial license fee of $10.0 million.
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5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (CONTINED) Subsequent to the cumulative effect of thenglean
accounting principle recorded effective in thetfgaarter of 2000, Gilead is recognizing the iniizense fee on a straight-line basis over the
supply arrangement period, which is sixteen yeanms the agreement date. The net impact of the éhamgccounting principle for the
Pharmacia Agreement was to increase the net |d&300 by $7.3 million. The cumulative effect of #tgange in accounting principle related
to the initial license fee from Pharmacia was ®$iillion charge to results of operations, and &ddal contract revenue of $0.6 million was
recognized in 2000 subsequent to the accountinggehdl' he remaining $7.3 million of related deferredenue is expected to be recognized
on a straight-line basis as contract revenue dwerémaining supply period, or twelve years.

During the second quarter of 1997, VISTIDE was appd for marketing in the European Union by thedpean Commission, which
triggered an additional cash milestone paymentlof@million by Pharmacia to the Company. Also assailt of achieving this milestone, in
the second quarter of 1997 the Company issued hadfacia purchased 1,133,786 shares of Series Be@dne Preferred Stock for
approximately $40.0 million, or $35.28 per sharee preferred stock automatically converted int®2,372 shares of common stock in 1€
For additional information about the preferred ki@eze Note 12.

Under the terms of the Pharmacia Agreement antecelgreements covering expanded access prograMSoIDE outside of the United
States, Gilead is responsible for maintaining fdefovir patent portfolio and for supplying to Phaacia bulk cidofovir used to manufacture
the finished VISTIDE product. Gilead is entitledrazeive a royalty based upon Pharmacia's sal¢tSafIDE. Gilead receives a portion of
the royalty upon shipping either bulk drug substaocVISTIDE to Pharmacia, and the remainder upweriacia's sale of VISTIDE to third
parties. Any royalties that Gilead receives betbeeproduct is sold to third parties are recordedeferred revenue until such thjpdrty sale:
occur. At December 31, 2000, the Company has redood its balance sheet approximately $2.2 mikibsuch deferred revenue ($3.7
million at December 31, 1999). The Company recagphioyalty revenue from sales of VISTIDE outsidele United States by Pharmacia of
$1.5 million in 2000, $2.0 million in 1999 and $idllion in 1998.

SOMALOGIC

In November 1999, Gilead and Somalogic, Inc. ("Slogiia") entered into an agreement whereby Gileaigagd to Somalogic under a sole
and exclusive license certain intellectual propestated to the SELEX process for diagnostic pugppsicluding patents and patent
applications. Under the terms of the agreement,gbamgic was required to pay Gilead a total of $2illion in two nonrefundable
installments. The first $1.5 million was paid inWmnber 1999 and was included in contract revenuthéoyear ended December 31, 1999.
The remaining $1.0 million, which was reported afeded revenue at December 31, 1999, was recaivedecorded as contract revenue in
2000. Gilead has no ongoing research or fundinyatibns under the agreement.

SCHERING A.G.

In 1993, the Company entered into a collaboratdsearch agreement ("Schering Research Agreemeat'ljcense agreement ("Schering
License Agreement”) with Schering A.G. Under thbe&8ing Research Agreement, Schering
A.G. has funded research at Gilead for the disgoaad
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5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (CONTINED) development of aptamers as IN VIVO diagnoatients.
The level of funding under this agreement varieduatly, from a high of $2.4 million to $0.3 milliareceived and recorded as contract

revenue in 1999. The Schering Research Agreemeireelxin 1999 and the Company does not expectciive any additional payments
thereunder.

Under the Schering License Agreement, Schering Ads.the right to develop and commercialize aptaragiN VIVO diagnostic agents or
radiotherapeutics discovered and developed undesthering Research Agreement. Schering A.G. isnetjto make milestone and royalty
payments to the Company upon commercializationsael of any products developed under the collalooratith the Company. The
milestone payments for any one product total $6lom and are triggered by the filing of an Invigsttional New Drug application, the
initiation of Phase Il clinical trials, the filingf an NDA and approval of a product for commersile. The Schering License Agreement,
which was still in effect as of December 31, 208€rmits the Company to develop and commercializanaprs discovered under the Sche
Research Agreement outside the field of IN VIVOgtiastic agents or radiotherapeutics, subject taltppayments to Schering A.G.

ISIS PHARMACEUTICALS

In December 1998, Gilead and Isis Pharmaceutiiads("Isis") entered into an agreement under wi@dlead sold to Isis certain intellectual
property, including patents and patent applicatimmgering antisense chemistry and antisense dringdesystems. Under the terms of the

agreement, Isis is required to pay to Gilead d tft$6.0 million in four nonrefundable installmeniThe first installment of $2.0 million was
paid to Gilead in December 1998, the second imstait of $1.0 million was paid in December 1999, ttied installment of $1.0 million was

paid in December 2000, and remaining $2.0 mill®payable in December 2001. The total sale prié6di million was included in contract
revenue for the year ended December 31, 1998. @liaa no ongoing research or funding obligatiordeuthe agreement.

GLAXOSMITHKLINE

In December 2000, Gilead entered into an agreemi#miGlaxo Wellcome, now GlaxoSmithKline ("Glaxaj)ving Gilead the rights to GS
7904L, a novel anti-tumor compound. Gilead is depiglg GS 7904L in a liposome and is evaluating prieclinical studies. Under this
agreement, Gilead has exclusive worldwide rightdeeelop and commercialize GS 7904L for all indmag other than malaria. Gilead paid
Glaxo an upfront fee which was included in R&D esxpe in 2000, and may be required to make additipaainents to Glaxo if certain
developmental goals related to regulatory appraxalachieved. Additionally, if the product is suesfelly commercialized, Gilead would be
required to pay Glaxo a percentage of the prodoetsales. The agreement expires ten years héidirst commercial sale of the product or
the date the last related patent expires.

In May 1998, Gilead entered into a three-part @atation with Glaxo in which (a) Glaxo receivedanrexclusive right to use Gilead's
proprietary SELEX process for target validation); @lead received the exclusive rights (subjedBtaxo's right to elect to participate in such
activities) to develop and commercialize NX 211lipasomal formulation of Glaxo's proprietary topmiserase | inhibitor (lurtotecan); and
Glaxo acquired 728,514 shares of Gilead commork$tc$10.0 million in a private offering. In Decé®r 2000, the collaboration and
license agreement was
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5. COLLABORATIVE ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS (CONTINED) modified. Under the revised terms of agreem@idaxo
waived its right to participate in the developmant commercialization of NX 211 and its right tog®e royalties, giving Gilead exclusive
rights to the compound. In exchange, Gilead agteétcrease milestone payments to Glaxo upon attgesertain regulatory approvals.

In July 1990, Gilead entered into a collaboratiesearch agreement with Glaxo with respect to Gieantisense technology. Under the terms
of the Glaxo agreement, as amended over time, tinep@ny received $1.8 million in 1998, which wasar@d as contract revenue, to fund
research. The R&D costs reimbursed by Glaxo appraté the related revenue and are included in R&izesge. This agreement and the
related funding were terminated in June 1998.

IOCB/REGA

In 1991 and 1992, Gilead entered into agreemertstive Institute of Organic Chemistry and Biochdryisf the Academy of Sciences of the
Czech Republic and Rega Stichting ("IOCB/REGA"atiglg to certain nucleotide compounds discoverdtese two institutions. Under the
agreements, Gilead received the exclusive rightdaufacture, use and sell these nucleotide comoand Gilead is obligated to pay
IOCB/REGA a percentage of net revenues receivad Bales of products containing the compounds, stifijeninimum royalty payments.
The compounds covered by the agreement includéasitipadefovir dipivoxil and tenofovir DF, but ekle Tamiflu or other compounds tl
Gilead has in clinical development. Gilead curnentiakes quarterly payments to IOCB/REGA based pereentage of VISTIDE sales. If
marketing approval is received from the FDA forfadé dipivoxil or tenofovir DF, Gilead would be &tiated to pay additional amounts to
IOCB/REGA upon future sales of these products.

In December 2000, the agreements with IOCB/REGAeveenended to provide for a reduced royalty ratbuture sales of adefovir dipivoxil
or tenofovir DF, in return for a upfront paymerarr Gilead of $11.0 million (plus withholding taxesapproximately $0.4 million) upon
signing the agreement. This payment was recorded@sy-term prepaid royalty and is classified thes noncurrent assets on the balance
sheet at December 31, 2000. It will be recognizetbgalty expense over the expected commerciabfithe related products when and if
FDA approval is obtained and sales of the prodoatsmence.

SOUTHERN RESEARCH INSTITUTE

In December 2000, Gilead entered into an agreemi#miSouthern Research Institute giving Gilead waitle rights to develop and
commercialize GS 7836, an anti-tumor compound@iketad is evaluating in preclinical studies. Unthe terms of the agreement, Gilead
paid Southern Research Institute anfigmt fee, which is included in R&D expense in 208Ad may be required to make additional payn
to Southern Research Institute if Gilead achiewstam development and regulatory goals. Gileadlgvalso be required to pay Southern
Research Institute royalties on net sales of G% &Be product is successfully commercialized.
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6. INVENTORIES

Inventories are summarized as follows (in thousgnds

DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999
Raw materialS....cccccvevvevcvnieiiieieseenee $9,647 $10,703
WOrK in ProCessS.....ccceevevvviiicciiiiiieeeeees 7,781 6,793
Finished goods.......cccccoviiiiviiiinaeeneee 3,134 3,463

$20,562 $20,959

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment consist of the foilga(in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999
Building and improvements (including leasehold
IMProvements).....cccoevevvveeieeieeaeee L $ 55,877 $ 46,597
Laboratory and manufacturing equipment.............. ... 34,167 27,204
Office and computer equipment.........ccceeeveeeeee. L 21,511 20,127
Capitalized leased equipment.... — 13,530 16,042
Construction in progresS.......ccoeveeevscieeeene . 2,961 5,540

128,046 115,510
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization..... ... (72,872) (64,112)

$55,174 $51,398

8. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATE

In late 1997, the Company established its NeXstmhiology Products division which included the Camys proprietary technology called
Product Anchored Sequential Synthesis ("PASS")ethod of synthesizing the oligonucleotides thatthesbasis for the products being
developed using the SELEX process. In July 1988 Qbmpany established Proligo L.L.C., a Delawarétdid liability company ("Proligo™),
as a wholly owned subsidiary and transferred alhefassets of the NeXstar Technology Productsidivito Proligo. Proligo supplies nucleic
acid and peptide synthesis products to the phammiaaéand biopharmaceutical industry for sale ase as laboratory research reagents and

in therapeutic and diagnostic products.

On August 15, 1998, the Company sold a 51% intétlest"Interest") in Proligo to SKW Americas, IftSKW"). As payment for the Intere
the Company received $15.0 million in cash and% #&terest in PerSeptive Biosystems GmbH, a compahkiamburg, Germany (the
"Hamburg Company"), which specializes in the maaufiee of nucleoside phosphoramidite monomers. B¢ ihterest in the Hamburg
Company had a fair market value of approximately $8illion. In addition, SKW agreed to pay the Canp $3.0 million in guaranteed
payments (discounted at 8.5% for gain recognitiarppses) and up to $20.5 million in performancechasilestones over the next
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8. INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATE (CONTINUBD) four years. Gilead received $0.1 million of thearanteed
payments from SKW in 2000, and $2.6 million in 19891999, Gilead also received a performance-baskzstone payment of $1.0 million
which was included in contract revenue. As patheforiginal transaction, the Company contributé®$nillion and its 49% interest in the
Hamburg Company to Proligo. The Company record$®@2al million gain in connection with this salelif98. SKW contributed $5.1 millic
and the remaining 51% interest in the Hamburg Compa Proligo. Also in connection with this transan, the Company and Proligo agr¢
that Proligo would manufacture oligonucleotidesuieegd by the Company at cost plus a fixed percentdie Company purchased
oligonucleotides from Proligo for a total of $0.1llan in 2000 and $0.4 million in 1999. The purclea were charged to R&D expense.

The Company accounts for its investment in Proligmg the equity method of accounting. The net baale of its investment was $6.9
million at December 31, 2000 and $7.6 million atBaber 31, 1999, and is reported in other nonctiegsets on the Company's consolid
balance sheets. In 2000, Gilead recognized $2l®méquity in Proligo's net loss, representing 48% share of Proligo's loss for the
thirteen-month period ended December 31, 2000.Agutie fourth quarter of 2000, Proligo changedistsal year end to December 31 from
November 30. In 1999, Gilead recorded $4.7 milkguity in the loss of Proligo for Proligo's fisgedar ended November 31, 1999. In 1¢
the Company recorded its equity in the loss ofiBoobf $1.1 million for the period from August 18998 through November 30, 1998.

In January 2000, Gilead made an additional casestmvent in Proligo of $2.5 million to maintain #8% ownership interest in Proligo. In
October 1999, Gilead also made a $2.5 million ¢agbstment in Proligo to maintain its 49% ownershigrest. Gilead has no commitments
to provide additional funding to Proligo.

9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations consist of the following (lmusands):

DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999

Capital lease obligations: Monthly installments; in terest

rates ranging from 6.89% to 11.50%................ . ... $3,512  $5,681
Fixed rate debt: Monthly installments through 2003; secured

by equipment; interest rates ranging from 11.49% to

12.56%0. i, 1,760 2,763
Total long-term obligations.........cccccceeeeeee. L 5,272 8,444
Less current portion........ccceeeeevvceeneenneees (3,034) (3,191)
Long-term obligations due after one year......... ... $2,238  $5,253
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9. LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Maturities of long-term obligations, including ctgdilease obligations, are as follows (in thousgnds

YEAR

The terms of the various debt agreements requér€timpany to comply with certain financial and epieig covenants. At December 31,
2000, the Company was in compliance with all sumreaants.

10. CONVERTIBLE SUBORDINATED NOTES AND DEBENTURES

On December 13, 2000, Gilead issued $250 millioB%fconvertible subordinated notes due Decembe2d®/ in a private offering to J.P.
Morgan & Co., Lehman Brothers and Morgan StanlegD@/hitter, which resold the notes to private stonal investors. The notes are
convertible into a total of up to 5,089,058 shae&ilead common stock at $49.125 per share. TBel®4 conversion price is higher than
Gilead's common stock price on the note's issue ddte notes are redeemable in whole or in patheapption of the Company, at any time
on or after December 20, 2003, at specified rediemprices plus accrued interest. Debt issuancts afs$8.2 million incurred in connection
with the issuance of the notes were recorded a3 ottncurrent assets, and are being amortizeddrest expense on a straidime basis ove
the contractual term of the notes.

During the third quarter of 1997, Gilead issued.88qillion of 6.25% convertible subordinated delees due 2004 in a private offering to
SBC Warburg Inc. and Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., whig$pld the debentures to a group of private imresThe debentures were issued
pursuant to an indenture and were convertibleartimtal of up to 3,589,688 shares of Gilead comstook at $22.285 per share. The
debentures were redeemable in whole or in pattheapption of the Company, at any time on or aftegust 10, 2000, at specified redemption
prices plus accrued interest. Gilead called theedilves for redemption on August 15, 2000 at a pask of $1,030 per $1,000 principal
amount of debentures outstanding, plus accruecestievhich was the redemption price provided athie original debenture indenture. The
entire $79.5 million in principal amount of the @slures outstanding at that time was converted3ri67,578 newly issued shares of Gilead
common stock prior to August 15, 2000. Deferredt defuance costs of $1.6 million related to theetiéres were charged to additional paid
in capital in connection with the conversion of tebentures into common stock.
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LEASES ARRANGEMENTS

The Company has entered into various long-term awocelable operating leases for facilities in Fo€ligy and San Dimas, California and
Boulder, Colorado. Leases in Foster City and SanaBiexpire on various dates in 2003 and 2006;easkk in Boulder expire in 2001 and
2005. Each of the leases has two five-year reneptadns, with the exception of one lease in Foigr that expires in 2003 and contains no
renewal options. The Company has operating leasesafes, marketing and administrative facilitie&€urope and Australia with various
terms, and miscellaneous equipment leases.

Rent expense net of sublease income under the QuyfspEperating leases totaled approximately $8I6omiin 2000, $7.9 million in 1999
and $6.8 million in 1998.

The Company has entered into capital leases tadmaquipment purchases and facilities improvema@8iitte to assets acquired under lease
lines of credit resides with the lessor. The Comypaas the option to purchase the assets at thefehd lease terms at fair market value. The
leases have remaining terms of up to three yea®esember 31, 2000, no additional amounts weréadbla under these agreements.

Aggregate noncancelable future minimum rental paytsiender operating and capital leases, net okegage future minimum rentals to be
received by the Company under noncancelable siddease as follows (in thousands):

OPERAT ING LEASES, NET OF
YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31, NONCAN CELABLE SUBLEASES CAPITAL LEASES
2001 $ 7,675 $ 2,450
2002, 9,149 1,296
2003, 9,060 23
2004.....cccoiiieee e 5,875 -
2005, 5,808
Thereafter.........coocveeviiiieeeninnn. 1,817

$39,384 3,769

Less amount representing interest.......... (257)
Total capital lease obligations............ 3,512
Less current portion.............cceceeee (2,228)

Capital lease obligations due after one

The Company has placed $0.5 million in a bank egcleposit to secure aggregate future payments dderwne of its facilities leases. At
December 31, 2000, a total of $0.5 million was sedwnder this deposit.

CONTINGENT LIABILITY

In connection with the August 1998 sale of a mé&jdriterest in its Proligo subsidiary, as describetlote 8, the Company transferred certain
property and equipment with a net book value of
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) $4 &illion to Proligo. The majority of such propertgcequipment is
financed or leased by the Company in accordandethvit capital leases described above. Concurrehttiis transfer of property and
equipment, the Company transferred the underlyetg tb Proligo pursuant to various Sublease, CdresmhAssignment Agreements
(collectively, the "Sublease Agreements"). As allteshe Company is required to pay the debt firanend lease liabilities to the financial
institutions and lessors directly for Proligo'srghaf the liabilities. Proligo is required to reimise the Company for these amounts and is
bound by the same terms and conditions as thabe iGompany's agreements with the financial insits and lessors. If Proligo were to
default on its obligations under the Sublease Agmgs, the Company would continue to be liableafopunts outstanding as of the date of
the default. However, in this event, SKW would liigated to reimburse the Company for 51% of sunlounts paid. At December 31, 20
Proligo was current with respect to its reimburseta¢o the Company and the balance of Proligolgéutase and debt obligations under the
Sublease Agreements was $1.1 million.

Additionally, the Company and Proligo entered iABsignment, Assumption and Consent Agreements @é&mgents”) with the landlords of
two laboratory facilities Proligo occupies. Undee tAgreements, Proligo has assumed the obligatiotie landlords, but the Company
remains contingently liable in the event of defalilie total unpaid amount of such operating leasensitments as of December 31, 2000
approximately $0.2 million.

Gilead has subleased certain of its facilitiegparily in California, through 2003. If any of thaldessees default on their obligations under
these subleases, the Company would be primarlielieo the original lessor. The total amount dudesrthese subleases as of December 31,
2000 is $2.1 million.

LINE OF CREDIT

In September 1997, the Company entered into arcunse bank line of credit for $10.0 million. Undbe terms of the line of credit, the
Company is required to maintain certain financéias and was in compliance with all required &b December 31, 2000. There are also
limitations on the Company's ability to incur aduiital debt or to engage in certain significant sastions. The Credit Agreement, which
includes a foreign exchange facility, was renegetiaas of December 31, 1999 and was subsequendigded until April 2001. There were
amounts outstanding under this agreement as adrditacember 31, 2000 or 1999.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

On August 11, 1997, the Company and Elan Corporagite ("Elan”, the successor company to The Lipes&@€ompany, Inc.) reached a
settlement ("Settlement Agreement") in which batinpanies agreed to dismiss all legal proceedingshimg AmBisome, Gilead's

liposomal formulation of amphotericin B. In the &hent Agreement, Elan granted the Company imngdrom suit in connection with the
worldwide production and sales of AmBisome and advade right to use two of their patents. Under tarms of the Settlement Agreement,
Gilead made an initial payment to Elan of $1.8 imilland was required to make payments beginnin®@8 based on AmBisome sales over
the next several years. Because the payments lajexsto certain minimum and maximum amounts, then@any recorded accounting
charges in 1997 of $11.8 million, of which $10.0limn represented
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED) theet present value of all future minimum payments &h@ million
represented the initial cash payment. BeginnintPi®8, Gilead records an expense each quarter basihe difference between all future
minimum payments and the expense recorded in 18%ddition, beginning in 1998, the Company is ggdning as cost of goods sold the
difference between the minimum and maximum payméasiy. Gilead does not expect the differencevieen its future minimum and
maximum payments to Elan to be material.

The Company is involved from time to time in legabceedings arising in the ordinary course of itsitbess. In the opinion of management,
none of these matters is expected to have a mlaaeriarse effect on the financial position or opierss of the Company based on factors
currently known to management.

12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
STOCK SPLIT

On February 22, 2001, Gilead completed a two-far-stock split, effected in the form of a stock deuid, to stockholders of record as of
February 2, 2001. Accordingly, all share and parslamounts for all periods presented have beéatedso retroactively reflect the split.

PREFERRED STOCK

The Company has 5,000,000 shares of authorizedrpeefstock issuable in series. The Company's Bafairectors ("Board") is authorized
to determine the designation, powers, preferenedsights of any such series. The Company hasvwede&00,000 shares of preferred stock
for potential issuance under the Preferred Shareh@ee Rights Plan.

In June 1997, the Company issued 1,133,786 shafari@s B Convertible Preferred Stock ("Prefei®aick") to Pharmacia for
approximately $40.0 million, or $35.28 per shara.Joly 15, 1999, the average of the closing prig8itead's common stock for the thirty
days then ended was $24.90. This event triggeeeddtomatic conversion of the Preferred Stock owsyeBharmacia into the Company's
common stock. Accordingly, the Preferred Stock @sted into 2,267,572 shares of common stock aica pf $17.64 per share on July 16,
1999. There was no preferred stock outstandindg Becember 31, 2000.

EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

Under Gilead's Employee Stock Purchase Plan ("ESBRIployees can purchase shares of Gilead comtook lsased on a percentage of
their compensation. The purchase price per shast equal at least the lower of 85 percent of theketavalue on the date offered or the date
purchased. A total of 3,160,000 shares of commackdtave been reserved for issuance under the E&R#.December 31, 2000, 1,966,
shares of the total shares reserved had been iagsged the ESPP (1,762,566 shares as of Decemp2839).

Emerging Issues Task Force ("EITF") Issue No. 97ACCOUNTING FOR
INCREASED SHARE AUTHORIZATIONS IN AN IRS SECTION &2EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN UNDER APB OPINION
NO. 25, provides that new shares authorized unxstimg Section 423 employee stock purchase plamggive rise tc
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12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED) compensatiaxpense under circumstances specified in that a¢itmustandard. During
1998, Gilead recognized compensation expense dfiillion related to an ESPP share authorizatigereyed in 1998 in accordance with
provisions of EITF Issue No. 97-12. In future yedine Company will not be required to recognizeitialthl compensation expense related to
the 1998 share authorization.

STOCK OPTION PLANS

In December 1987, Gilead adopted the 1987 Ince@ivek Option Plan and the Supplemental Stock @®lan for issuance of common
stock to employees, consultants and scientificsdsi In April 1991, the Board approved the graptificertain additional nonqualified stock
options with terms and conditions substantiallyikinto those granted under the 1987 Supplementak3Option Plan. None of the options
described above had exercise prices that werd¢Haashe fair value of the underlying stock ondla¢e of grant. The options vest over five
years pursuant to a formula determined by the Baatbexpire after ten years. No shares are avaifablgrant of future options under any
these plans.

In November 1991, Gilead adopted the 1991 Stocko@fRlan ("1991 Plan") for issuance of common stimckmployees and consultants.
Options issued under the 1991 Plan shall, at theretion of the Board, be either incentive stockoms or nonqualified stock options. In May
1998, the 1991 Plan was amended such that theisxgmice of all stock options must be at leasaétmuthe fair value of Gilead's common
stock on the date of grant. The options vest averyfears pursuant to a formula determined by tbar8 and expire after ten years. In May
2000 the shareholders approved an Amendment t6d®& Plan that increased the total number of aitbdishares under the plan from
20,000,000 to 21,500,000. At December 31, 2000etivere 5,918,370 shares available for grant afrubptions under the 1991 Plan.

In November 1995, Gilead adopted the 1995 Non-Eygadirectors' Stock Option Plan ("Directors' P)diot issuance of common stock to
non-employee Directors pursuant to a predetermioedula. The exercise price of options granted uilde Directors' Plan must be at least
equal to the fair value of Gilead's common stockhendate of grant. The options vest over five gdaom the date of grant in quarterly five
percent installments and expire after ten year®edember 31, 2000, there were 390,000 sharesablafor grant of future options under
Directors' Plan.

NeXstar's stock plans include the 1988 Stock Olam ("1988 Plan™), the 1993 Incentive Stock Péarg the 1995 Director Option Pl
(collectively, "NeXstar Plans"). Options pursuamthe 1988 Stock Option Plan and the 1993 Incer8teek Plan that were issued and
outstanding as of July 29, 1999 have been convértedptions to purchase Gilead common stock @salt of the Merger and remain
subject to their original terms and conditions. i@ outstanding under the 1995 Director OptiomPlacame fully vested at the close of the
Merger and are exercisable for a period of 24 metiiereafter. No shares are available for graftafe options under any of the NeXstar
Plans.

NeXstar's 1988 Plan allows certain option holderexXecute cashless exercises of options. In aesskkercise transaction, the option ho
specifies how many shares will be exercised an€tirapany issues the specified number of sharesthesnumber that would be required to
cover the
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12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED) exercise pribased on the fair value of the stock on the egerdate. During 2000 and
1999, several option holders performed cashlesxiers. As a result, such option awards are coreid®e be variable and, therefore, the
Company recognized compensation expense of $0l®miih 2000 and $2.3 million in 1999. Of the 20&Mount, $0.4 million relates to
exercised options and the remaining $0.1 millidates to options that remain outstanding unded #88 Plan at December 31, 2000.

The following table summarizes activity under alle@d and NeXstar stock option plans for each efttiiee years in the period ended
December 31, 2000. All option grants presentethéntéble had exercise prices not less than thedhie of the underlying stock on the grant
date (shares in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998
WEIGHTED WEIGHTED WEIGHTED
AVERAGE AVERAGE AVERAGE
EXERCISE EXERCISE EXERCISE
SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE SHARES PRICE
Outstanding, beginning of year................... 11,262 $16.68 11,312 $12.19 10,492 $11.18
Granted........coeeeiiiiieiieiiiee e 3,032 34.37 3,338 27.42 2,856 13.75
Forfeited........cccovvviieicicncnce, (1,104) 21.98 (742) 16.81 (756 ) 15.60
EXErcised.......cccceveninininieienens (2,354) 1158 (2,646) 10.76 (1,280 ) 5.87
Outstanding, end of year.............ccccce.... 10,836 $22.18 11,262 $16.68 11,312 $12.19
Exercisable, end of year..............cc......... 4,226 $14.63 4,552 $11.28 5,036 $10.26
Weighted average fair value of options granted... $22.50 $16.77 $7.73

The following is a summary of Gilead options outstiag and options exercisable at December 31, 208bns in thousands):

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING OPTIONS EXE RCISABLE

WEIGHTED

AVERAGE  WEIGHTED

REMAINING AVERAGE WEIGHTED

OPT IONS  CONTRACTUAL EXERCISE OPTIONS AVERAGE
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES OUTST ANDING LIFEIN YEARS PRICE EXERCISABLE E XERCISE PRICE
$0.30-$13.06......ccccvererereni 3 ,226 5.39 $9.99 2,142 $9.18
$13.13-$22.12....ccciin 2 ,668 5.92 $16.85 1,554 $16.80
$22.13-$29.63....cciiiiiiee 2 ,882 8.71 $28.73 348 $28.54
$30.03-$49.38....ceiiiiiiiiieee 2 ,060 9.24 $39.01 182 $33.66
Total.....ocoviiiiiiii 10 ,836 7.14 $22.18 4,226 $14.63

PRO FORMA DISCLOSURES

The table below presents the combined net losdasid and diluted net loss per common share if emsation cost for the Gilead and
NeXstar stock option plans and the ESPP had
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED) determined bdson the estimated fair value of awards underetipdens on the grant or
purchase date.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Pro forma net loss (in thousands)..........ccc...... L $(91,775) $(93,816) $(61,444)
Pro forma basic and diluted net loss per share..... ... $ (1.01) $ (1.10) $ (0.75)

Fair values of awards granted under the stock ngtians and ESPP were estimated at grant or pwadwss using a Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The Company used the multiple opaipproach and the following assumptions:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Expected life in years (from vesting date):

Stock OptioNS.......ccovvveeeeiiiieeeenne 1.88 1.86 1.44t01.7 8

ESPP...oiiiiieeeee 1.45 1.21 15 1
Discount rate:

Stock optionS........vevvevveveeeeiininnns 6.3% 5.6% 4.7%t0 5.5 %

ESPP..cooiiiiiiiiiee 5.5% 5.0% 5.2 %
Volatility(L)....coevovreeiieeiiieiiiaens 84% 67% 66 %
Expected dividend yield..................... 0% 0% 0 %

(1) NeXstar's volatility rate for 1998 was 61%.
The weighted average estimated fair value of ESRRes purchased was $12.12 for 2000, $8.11 for 48€6%5.99 for 1998.
PREFERRED SHARE PURCHASE RIGHTS PLAN

In November 1994, the Company adopted a Prefemade3Purchase Rights Plan. The plan provides éodigtribution of a preferred stock
purchase right as a dividend for each share ofa@immmon stock held of record at the close ofrtass on December 14, 1994. The
purchase rights are not currently exercisable. Undgain conditions involving an acquisition ooposed acquisition by any person or group
of 15% or more of the Company's common stock, tirelmse rights permit the holders (other than 8% holder) to purchase Gilead
common stock at a 50% discount from the markeepaicthat time, upon payment of an exercise pricespecified exercise price per
purchase right. In addition, in the event of certaiisiness combinations, the purchase rights pénepurchase of the common stock of an
acquirer at a 50% discount from the market prichatt time. Under certain conditions, the purchégiets may be redeemed by the Board in
whole, but not in part, at a price of $.005 perchasse right. The purchase rights have no votingleges and are attached to and
automatically trade with Gilead common stock.

In October 1999, the Board of Directors approvedmendment to the purchase rights plan. The amamdmnevided, among other things,
an increase in the exercise price of a right utitker
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000

12. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (CONTINUED) plan from $30 $200 and an extension of the term of the plamfNovember 21, 2004 to
October 20, 2009.

13. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The following reclassification adjustments are fieggito avoid double-counting net realized gainsges) on sales of securities that were
previously included in comprehensive income priothie sales of the securities (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Net gain (loss) on sales of securities included in
interest iNCOMe.........ccocoeeviiieiinene, . $(84) $ (383) $473

Other comprehensive income:
Net unrealized gain (loss) arising during the
. $1,987 $(1,985) $172
84 383  (473)

Net unrealized gain (loss) reported in other
comprehensive iNCOMe............ccceeeeeenen. . $2,071 $(1,602) $(301)

The balance of accumulated other comprehensivealssported on the balance sheet consists obllegving components (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999
Net unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale
SECUNMLES.coeeiiii e $ 512 $(1,559)
Cumulative loss on foreign currency translation.... ... (1,413)  (968)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss............. . ... $ (901) $(2,527)
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GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
14. DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AIRELATED INFORMATION

The Company has determined that it has only onertaiple segment because management has organizbddimess along its functional
lines.

Product sales revenues consisted of the followim¢hpusands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2 000 1999 1998
AMBISOME.....covviiiieieieiieieicciiis $14 1,118 $129,177 $103,430
DaunoXome...........couvvvieiieeineeniennnnns 4,354 4,775 4,672
VISTIDE.....ooiiiiiiiieeieiieieicciiies 4,237 5,938 6,074

$14 9,709 $139,890 $114,176

The following table summarizes revenues from extecostomers and collaborative partners by geogeaphion. Revenues are attributed to
countries based on the location of the customeplhaborative partner (in thousands).

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2 000 1999 1998
United States.........cccocveeriiienieenns $3 7,476 $ 28,389 $ 23,601
United Kingdom...........cccccvvvvivvenennn. 2 3,827 19,259 17,241
Switzerland...........cccoooiiiiii. 2 1,531 15,763 16,400
GEIMANY.....ccceeiiieaiiieeiee e 2 1,340 21,647 22,254
alY. e 1 6,978 16,293 13,420
SPAIN...ceeiiiiie e 1 5,074 14,625 11,934
France.......cccoovveviieeiiee e 9,528 8,347 4,993
Other European countries............c.cc.uue. 3 2,063 31,500 27,036
Other countries.........ccccoecvveeernnnnnn. 1 7,748 13,156 14,240
Consolidated total............cccceevuernnne $19 5,555 $168,979 $151,119

At December 31, 2000, the net book value of the ganmg's property, plant and equipment was $55.2anillApproximately 95% of such
assets were located in the United States. At DeeeBSih 1999, the net book value of property, ptardt equipment was $51.4 million, and
approximately 93% of such assets were locateddruthited States.

Product sales to one distributor accounted for@pprately 12% of total revenues in 2000, 11% ind.88d 10% in 1998. Total revenues
from Fujisawa Healthcare, Inc., which included proidsales and royalties, were approximately 13%btaf revenues in 2000, 11% in 1999
and less than 10% in 1998. Revenues from Rochledimg royalties, milestone payments and reimbuesgrof research and development
expenses, accounted for approximately 11% of tetanues in 2000, 9% in 1999 and 11% in 1998.

91



GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
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15. INCOME TAXES
The Company has no deferred provision for incorregaThe current provision for income taxes coedisif the following (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Current provision:

Federal .. $ - $65 $160
State......c...... 21 30 21

1,178 793 678

$1,199  $888 $859

Foreign pre-tax (loss) income was $(40.3) millior2D00, $2.0 million in 1999 and $0.1 million in9®

The difference between the provision for taxesmmoine and the amount computed by applying the &d&atutory income tax rate to inca

before provision for income taxes, equity in lofsieconsolidated affiliate and the cumulative efffeica change in accounting principle is
explained below (in thousands):

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999 1998

Loss before provision for income taxes, equity
in loss of unconsolidated affiliate and the
cumulative effect of a change in accounting

principle......ccocooieieiee $( 39,049) $(60,942) $(42,798)
Tax at federal statutory rate.................. $( 13,277) $(20,720) $(14,552)
Unbenefitted l0sses.........cccoevvveeernnns 13,617 21,074 14,698
Other.....ccoiiiiiieie e 859 534 713
$ 1,199 $ 888 $ 859

At December 31, 2000, the Company had U.S. fed@iabperating loss carryforwards of $484.3 millaord state net operating loss
carryforwards of $33.0 million. The federal net mgiing loss carryforwards will expire at variougetabeginning in 2002 through 2020, if |
utilized. The state net operating loss carryfornsasill expire at various dates from 2001 through 20f not utilized. Utilization of net
operating losses may be subject to an annual limitalue to ownership change limitations providedhe Internal Revenue Code and similar
state provisions. This annual limitation may resulthe expiration of the net operating losses enedits before utilization.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettemporary differences between the carrying amoohassets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for in¢arme
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15. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED) purposes. Significaadmponents of the Company's deferred tax assetkadnilities as of December
31, 2000 and 1999 are as follows (in thousands):

DECEMBER 31,

2000 1999

Net operating loss carryforwards................... ... $166,500 $ 144,600
Research and other credits.............cccccee.. ... 35,400 27,400
Capitalized R&D for California..................... ... 17,100 14,800
Other, Net.......coocvvveiiiies 9,600 7,400

Total deferred tax assets..........ccceeeennne ... 228,600 194,200
Valuation allowance.............cccocoovevvvnnnnns ... (228,600) (194,200)
Net deferred tax assets recognized................. . -8 -

The valuation allowance increased by $34.4 milfiamthe year ended December 31, 2000, and by $88li6n for the year ended December
31, 1999. Approximately $42.5 million of the valigat allowance at December 31, 2000 relates togkhdeénefits of stock option deductions,
which will be credited to additional paid-in capitehen realized.

16. RETIREMENT SAVINGS PLAN

As of December 31, 2000, Gilead maintained two s#paetirement savings plans under which eligéntgployees may defer compensation
for income tax purposes under Section 401(k) ofternal Revenue Code of 1986. One plan primadlyers NeXstar employees ("NeXstar
Plan"), and the other plan primarily covers Gileadmaining eligible employees ("Gilead Plan"). &nthe NeXstar Plan, employee
contributions may not exceed 15% of eligible anragahpensation. In addition, the NeXstar Plan inetud Company match of 50% of
employee contributions up to a maximum of 6% dafible annual compensation up to an annual maximomg&ny match of $2,500. At
December 31, 2000, approximately $0.6 million, esyenting 13,857 shares of Gilead common stockhetasby the NeXstar Plan in trust |
plan participants. Effective February 1995, conttitins to the NeXstar Plan may not be investetiénGompany's common stock. Under the
Gilead Plan, employees may contribute up to 15%heaif eligible annual compensation. Effective Japuda 2000, Gilead began making
matching contributions under the Gilead Plan. ThenfGany contributes up to 50% of an employee's 6i¥6tof contributions up to an annual
maximum Company match of $2,500. The Company's$ nagdching contribution for the NeXstar Plan and @Gilead Plan was $0.9 million
2000. The Company's matching contribution relatetthé NeXstar Plan was $0.5 million in 1999 andb$8illion in 1998. In January 2001,
the NeXstar Plan was terminated and combined \wih3ilead Plan.

17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During 2000, Gilead paid an aggregate of $10.2ionilto PharmaResearch Corporation, a contract refs@aganization, for services rende
in connection with clinical studies. The ChairmdrGdead's Board of Directors is a senior advigoah investment fund that owns a
controlling interest
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17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) in PhaaResearch Corporation. Gilead's payments to PhagstaiRch
Corporation were $6.7 million in 1999 and $4.7 ioillin 1998.

18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
CUBIST COLLABORATION

In January 2001, Gilead entered into an agreemihtQubist Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Cubist") relgtio Cubist's antibacterial compound
daptomycin, including Cidecin, an intravenous folation of the compound which is currently in Ph#selinical trials for treatment of
bacterial infections. Under the terms of the agmeimGilead paid Cubist an upfront license feeld.8 million and received exclusive
commercial rights to the compound in sixteen Euampeountries ("Gilead's territory™). Cubist williiinue to be responsible for worldwide
clinical development of Cidecin, while Gilead wikk responsible for both regulatory filings and nedilg and sales of the product within
Gilead's territory. Gilead may make additional pays to Cubist of up to $31.0 million if certaifinatal and regulatory milestones are
reached. Additionally, if Cidecin is successfulgnemercialized in Gilead's territory, Gilead willyp@ubist a royalty on net sales of the
product.

INCREASE IN AUTHORIZED SHARES OF COMMON STOCK

On February 2, 2001, at a special meeting of stoicldns, the stockholders approved an amendmenitéad3 certificate of incorporation to
increase the number of authorized shares of comstomk from 100,000,000 to 500,000,000.

19. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

The following table is in thousands, except persl@nounts:

1 ST QUARTER 2ND QUARTER 3RD QUARTER 4TH QUARTE R
( RESTATED) (RESTATED) (RESTATED)
2000(1)(2)
Total reVeNUES........coeveeeiiiieiieeen. $47,712 $50,129 $45239 $52,475
Total costs and expenses.............cccuvvenee 52,163 55,764 66,030 73,916
Loss before cumulative effect of change in
accounting principle.........ccccoccveeeene (3,271) (4,036) (17,414) (18,385 )
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
PriNCIPlE. ..o (13,670) -- -- --
Net 10SS....ccviiiiiiieiiee e (16,941) (4,036) (17,414) (18,385 )

Basic and diluted amounts per share:
Loss before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle..........cccoceene.. $ (0.04) $ (0.04) $ (0.19) $ (0.20 )
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

PrinCiple.......ccovevvveeeiieecieeenee. $ (0.15)

Net 10SS.....cooiiiiiiiieieeiiee e, $ (0.19) $ (0.04) $ (0.19) $ (0.20 )

94



GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINU ED)
DECEMBER 31, 2000
19. QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

AS PREVIOUSLY REPORTED

1 ST QUARTER 2ND QUARTER 3RD QUARTER
2000 as previously reported:

Total reVenues.........ccceeeveeenineennee. $45,222 $49,979 $45,089

Total costs and expenses..............cc..... 52,163 55,764 66,030

Net 10SS......coovviiieiiecieieeeee (5,761) (4,186) (17,564)

Basic and diluted net loss per share.......... $ (0.06) $ (0.05) $ (0.19)

1 ST QUARTER 2ND QUARTER 3RD QUARTER 4TH QUARTE R

1999(2)
Total revenues.........ccoevevvereenieenne. $38,276 $43,537 $38,390 $48,776
Total costs and expenses.............cccuvvenne 54,828 55,900 69,608 59,502
Net 10SS....ccvevierieieieece e (15,476)  (11,691) (30,365) (8,954 )
Basic and diluted net loss per share............ $ (0.19) $ (0.14) $ (0.35) $ (0.10 )

(1) In the year ended December 31, 2000, GileagtaddSAB 101 and reported the change as the curmikffect of a change in accounting
principle. The accounting change was adopted ifidhgh quarter of 2000, effective as of the fostarter of 2000, and the first three quarters
of 2000 were restated to retroactively reflect¢thange. Quarterly information as originally repdrig presented under the caption "2000 as
previously reported."

(2) On February 22, 2001, Gilead completed a twesfte stock split, effected in the form of a stalitkidend, to stockholders of record as of
February 2, 2001. Accordingly, all share and parslamounts for all periods presented have beéatedso retroactively reflect the split.
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SCHEDULE II: VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(IN THOUSANDS)

ADDITIONS
BALANCE AT e BALANC EAT
BEGINNING OF CHARGED TO CHARGED TO END OF
PERIOD EXPENSE OTHER DEDUCTIONS PERI oD
Year ended December 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....... $ 2,33 3 $ 30 $ - $ 63 $ 2, 300
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
ASSELS....vvvreeiiiiiee e 194,20 0 - 34,400(3) - 228, 600
$196,53 3 $ 30 $34,400 $ 63  $230, 900
Year ended December 31, 1999:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....... $ 1,48 0 $1,059 $ - $206 $ 2, 333
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
ASSELS...vveieeieiiiee e, 170,61 1 - 23,589(3) - 194, 200
$172,09 1 $1,059 $23,589 $ 206  $196, 533
Year ended December 31, 1998:
Allowance for doubtful accounts....... $ 1,88 3 $(294)(1) $ - $109 $1, 480
Allowance for other noncurrent
ASSELS...vvvieeieiiieee e 1,73 7 (550)(2) - 1,187(2) -
Valuation allowance for deferred tax
ASSELS..iiiiiiiiiiiiee e 136,41 1 -- 34,200(3) - 170, 611
$140,03 1 $(844) $34,200 $1,296  $172, 091

(1) In August 1996, a major customer of the Compfday for bankruptcy protection under Chapter £the U.S. Bankruptcy Code. The tc
outstanding receivable of $0.6 million from thastamer as of December 31, 1996 was reserved. [, 188 Company collected
approximately $0.1 million of this amount by assimits claim to a third party. In 1998, the Compaeversed that portion of the allowance
for doubtful accounts no longer deemed necessary.

(2) The Company accepted $550,000 in full settleéméan outstanding note receivable that was fidserved on the balance sheet.
(3) Charged to deferred tax benefit.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f{(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyigsthas duly caused this Report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatp authorized.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

BY: /S JOHN C. MARTIN

John C. Martin
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

POWER OF ATTORNEY KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESEBThat each person whose signature appears belwstitates and
appoints John C. Martin and Mark L. Perry, and azfdhhem, as his true and lawful attorneys-in-faatl agents, with full power of
substitution and resubstitution, for him or her &amtis or here name, place, and stead, in anyal@pacities, to sign any and all
amendments to this Report, and to file the samid, ali exhibits thereto, and other documents imemtion therewith, with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, granting unto said attorneyfadt and agents, and each of them, full poweraartority to do and perform each and
every act and thing requisite and necessary tmhe th connection therewith, as fully to all inteand purposes as he might or could do in
person, hereby ratifying and confirming that altisatorneys-in-fact and agents, or any of thertheir or his substitute or substitutes, may
lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue hereaf.sRant to the requirements of the Securities Bxgaahct of 1934, this Report has been
signed below by the following persons on behalhef Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdaticated.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgl Act of 1934, this Report has been signed bbipothe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities and on thesdatlicated.

SIGNATURE TITLE DATE
/sl JOHN C. MARTIN P resident and Chief Executive
Officer, Director (Principal March 16, 2001
John C. Martin Executive Officer)
\% ice President, Chief
/sl SHARON SURREY-BARBARI Financial Officer (Principal
Financial and Accounting March 16, 2001
Sharon Surrey-Barbari Officer)
/sl JAMES M. DENNY C hairman of the Board of
Directors March 16, 2001
James M. Denny
/sl PAUL BERG D irector
March 16, 2001
Paul Berg
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SIGNATURE

/s/ ETIENNE F. DAVIGNON

Etienne F. Davignon

/s/ GORDON E. MOORE

Gordon E. Moore

/sl GEORGE P. SHULTZ

George P. Shultz

SIGNATURES (CONTINUED)

TITLE
D irector
D irector
D irector
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Exhibit 3.1
RESTATED

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC., a corporation organized a&xésting under the General Corporation Law of theteSof Delaware, does hereby
certify as follows:

FIRST: The name of the Corporation is Gilead Sasntnc.
SECOND: The Corporation's original Certificate n€brporation was filed with the Secretary of StateJune 22, 1987.

THIRD: The amended and Restated Certificate ofripoi@tion of the Corporation, in the form attachedeto as Exhibit A, has been duly
adopted in accordance with the provisions of Sesti228, 242 and 245 of the General Corporation dfihe State of Delaware by the Board
of Directors and stockholders of the Corporation.

FOURTH: The amended and Restated Certificate afrpraration so adopted reads in full as set fortBxhibit A attached hereto and hereby
incorporated by reference.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Gilead Sciences, Inc. has cautisis Restated Certificate of Incorporation tosigned by its President and attested
to by its Secretary this 24th day of January, 1992.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

By /s/ Mchael L. Riordan

M CHAEL L. RI ORDAN
Pr esi dent

ATTEST:

/sl James C. Gaither

JAMES C. GAlI THER
Secretary



EXHIBIT A

RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

l.
The name of the Corporation is Gilead Sciences, Inc
Il.

The address of the registered office of the Cotpmman the State of Delaware is 1209 Orange Stieghe City of Wilmington, County of
New Castle, Delaware 19801, and the name of thistezgd agent of the Corporation in the State daWare at such address is 1
Corporation Trust Company.

The purpose of the Corporation is to engage inlawful act or activity for which a Corporation mhg organized under the General
Corporation Law of Delaware.

V.

(&) The liability of the directors of the Corpomatifor monetary damages shall be eliminated tdulest extent permissible under Delaware
law.

(b) The Corporation is authorized to provide indéioation of agents (as defined in Section 145haf Delaware General Corporation Law)
for breach of duty to the Corporation and its stadlers through bylaw provisions, through agreesaiith the agents, and/or through
stockholder resolutions, or otherwise, in exceghefindemnification otherwise permitted by Sectld® of the Delaware General
Corporation Law, subject to the limitations on seslcess indemnification set forth in Section 102hef Delaware General Corporation Law.

(c) Any repeal or modification of this Article IVhall be prospective and shall not affect the righder this Article IV in effect at the time of
the alleged occurrence of any act or omission t@iang rise to liability or indemnification.

V.

A. The Corporation is authorized to issue two @ass stock to be designated, respectively, "Com8tork" and "Preferred Stock." The tc
number of shares which the corporation is authdripassue is forty million (40,000,000) sharesirfiafive million (35,000,000) shares shall
be Common Stock, each having a par value of orntix-te#frone cent ($.001). Five million (5,000,000a8s shall be Preferred Stock, each
having a par value of one-tenth of one cent ($.001)

B. The Preferred Stock may be issued from timénte in one or more series. The Board of Directsiisareby authorized, by filing a
certificate pursuant to the Delaware General Cafpom Law, to fix or alter from time to time thegignation, powers, preferences and rights
of the shares of each such series and the quélifisa limitations or restrictions thereof, incladiwithout limitation the dividend rights,
dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rightghtis and terms of redemption (including sinkingdiymmovisions), redemption price or prices,
and the liquidation preferences of any wholly unéss series of Preferred Stock, and to establigh fame to time the number of shares
constituting any such series and the designatieretif, or any of them (a "Preferred Stock Desigméli and to increase or decrease the
number of shares of any series subsequent to the



issuance of shares of that series, but not belemtimber of shares of such series then outstanidigse the number of shares of any series
shall be decreased in accordance with the foregegntence, the shares constituting such decreaeetume the status that they had pric
the adoption of the resolution originally fixingetmumber of shares of such series.

VI.

For the management of the business and for theuobiod the affairs of the Corporation, and in fentliefinition, limitation and regulation of
the powers of the Corporation, of its directors ahis stockholders or any class thereof, as #se¢enay be, it is further provided that:

SECTION 1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS.

() MANAGEMENT OF CORPORATION. The management af usiness and the conduct of the affairs of thga@ation shall be vested
in its Board of Directors. The number of directassich shall constitute the whole Board of Directshall be fixed exclusively by one or m
resolutions adopted from time to time by the Baafr®irectors.

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Céctife of Incorporation, each director shall sermgltnis successor is duly elected ¢
qualified or until his death, resignation or remlowo decrease in the number of directors constiguthe Board of Directors shall shorten the
term of any incumbent director.

(b) REMOVAL.

(i) Prior to the Qualifying Record Date and subj@cany limitations imposed by law, the Board ofdgtors, or any individual director, may
be removed from office at any time, with or with@atuse, by the affirmative vote of the holders afaority of the outstanding Voting Stock
(as hereinafter defined).

(i) On and after the Qualifying Record Date andjeat to any limitations imposed by law, Sectiob){ij of this Article VI shall no longer
apply and the Board of Directors or any individdakctor may be removed from office at any time (ith cause by the affirmative vote of
the holders of a majority of the outstanding VotBigck; or (B) without cause by the affirmative &/aff the holders of at least 66-2/3% of the
outstanding Voting Stock.

(c) VACANCIES. Any vacancies on the Board of Dilastresulting from death, resignation, disqualtfima, removal or other causes shall be
filled by either (i) the affirmative vote of the lders of a majority of the Voting Stock voting talger as a single class; or (ii) by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining elitors then in office, even though less than aumaf the Board of Directors. Newly
created directorships resulting from any increashé number of directors shall, unless the Boafdiectors determines by resolution that
any such newly created directorship shall be filgdhe stockholders, be filled only by the affitima vote of the directors then in office, e
though less than a quorum of the Board of Directary director elected in accordance with the pdétg sentence shall hold office for the
remainder of the full term of the class of direstor which the new directorship was created owtd@ancy occurred and until such director's
successor shall have been elected and qualified.

SECTION 2. CUMULATIVE VOTING.

(a) Prior to the date upon which the Corporationddonger subject to Section 2115 of the Califar@brporations Code (the "Qualifying
Record Date"), every stockholder entitled to votamy election of directors of the Corporation nsaynulate such stockholder's votes and
give one candidate a number of votes equal to tingber of directors to be elected multiplied by tlaenber of votes to which the
stockholder's shares are otherwise entitled, driloige the stockholder's votes on the same pri@@mong as many candidates as such
stockholder thinks fit. No stockholder, however yncamulate such stockholder's votes for one or maralidates unless

(i) the names of such candidates have been proplkadgd in nomination, in accordance with the Bydak

3.



the Corporation, prior to the voting, (ii) the stbolder has given advance notice to the Corporaifdhe intention to cumulate votes in
accordance with the Bylaws, and (jii) the stockleoldas given proper notice to the other stockhsldéthe meeting, prior to voting, of such
stockholder's intention to cumulate such stockhtddemtes. If any stockholder has given properasgtall stockholders may cumulate their
votes for any candidates who have been propertedl&n nomination. The candidates receiving théédég number of votes of the shares
entitled to be voted for them up to the numbericdators to be elected by such shares shall bed=tklected.

(b) On and after the Qualifying Record Date, curtivdavoting shall no longer be available to thecktwlders of the Corporation.
SECTION 3. GENERAL.

(a) The Bylaws may be altered or amended or newByladopted by the affirmative vote of at leasPf% of the voting power of all of the
then-outstanding shares of the Voting Stock. Ithierance and not in limitation of the power corddrby statute, the Board of Directors is
expressly authorized to adopt, amend, supplemempaal the Bylaws. The Board of Directors may fitinre to time make, amend,
supplement or repeal the Bylaws; provided, howethext, the stockholders may change or repeal angvBgldopted by the Board of Directors
by the requisite affirmative vote of stockholdesssat forth in the Bylaws; and, provided furthbgattho amendment or supplement to the
Bylaws adopted by the Board of Directors shall vargonflict with any amendment or supplement thdspted by the stockholders.

(b) The directors of the Corporation need not leeteld by written ballot unless the Bylaws so previd

(c) No action shall be taken by the stockholderthefCorporation except at an annual or speciatimgef stockholders called in accordance
with the Bylaws, and no action shall be taken lg/stockholders by written consent.

(d) Advance notice of stockholder nominations fo election of directors and of business to bedbby stockholders before any meeting
of the stockholders of the Corporation shall beegiin the manner provided in the Bylaws of the @oaion.

VII.

No holder of shares of stock of the Corporationidtae any preemptive or other right, except ahgights are expressly provided

contract, to purchase or subscribe for or receiweshares of any class, or series thereof, of stbtlhe Corporation, whether now or hereafter
authorized, or any warrants, options, bonds, delpestor other securities convertible into, exchabtgefor or carrying any right to purchase
any share of any class, or series thereof, of stmaksuch additional shares of stock and suchamsr options, bonds, debentures or other
securities convertible into, exchangeable for arytag any right to purchase any shares of anys¢lasseries thereof, of stock may be issued
or disposed of by the Board of Directors to suctsges, and on such terms and for such lawful cenatibn, as in its discretion it shall deem
advisable or as the Corporation shall have by eshtgreed.

VIII.
The Corporation is to have perpetual existence.
IX.

(a) The Corporation reserves the right to amendr,athange or repeal any provision containedism@ertificate of Incorporation, in the
manner now or hereafter prescribed by statute,paeprovided in paragraph
(b) of this Article IX, and all rights conferred omp the stockholders herein are granted subjettisa¢servation.

4.



(b) Notwithstanding any other provisions of thigieate of Incorporation or any provision of lashich might otherwise permit a lesser \
or no vote, but in addition to any affirmative vatethe holders of any particular class or serfethe Voting Stock required by law, this

Certificate of Incorporation or any Preferred St@dsignation, the affirmative vote of the holdefsibleast 66-2/3% of the voting power of
all of the then-outstanding shares of the Votingct voting together as a single class, shall baired to alter, amend or repeal Article VI,

Article VII or Article IX.



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT OF
RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF
GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

JOHN C. MARTIN and MARK L. PERRY hereby certify &dlows:
ONE: The name of the corporation is Gilead Scienlces

TWO: The Restated Certificate of Incorporation é&d Sciences, Inc. was filed with the Secretdr$tate of the State of Delaware on
January 29, 1992.

THREE: That they are the duly elected and actiregielent and Secretary, respectively, of Gileadri®eis, Inc., a Delaware corporation.

FOUR: The Board of Directors of Gilead Sciences,,lacting in accordance with the provisions oft®es 141 and 242 of the General
Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, adope=wiutions to amend its Restated Certificate obipcration as follows:

Article V shall be amended and restated to reat$ ientirety as follows:
"V,

A. The Corporation is authorized to issue two aassf stock to be designated, respectively, "Com8iock" and "Preferred Stock." The tc
numbers of shares which the corporation is autkdrip issue is one hundred five million (105,000)0¢hares. One hundred million
(100,000,000) shares shall be designated Commak,Stach having a par value of one-tenth of oné (#h001). Five million (5,000,000)
shares shall be designated Preferred Stock, eawhghe par value of one-tenth of one cent ($0.001).

B. The Preferred Stock may be issued from timénte in one or more series. The Board of Directsiisareby authorized, by filing a
certificate pursuant to the Delaware General Cafpom Law, to fix or alter from time to time thegignation, powers, preferences and rights
or the shares of each such series and the qutibfisa limitations or restrictions thereof, incladiwithout limitation the dividend rights,
dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rightghtis and terms of redemption (including sinkingdiymmovisions), redemption price or prices,
and the liquidation preferences of any wholly unéxsseries of Preferred Stock, and to establigh fame to time the number of shares
constituting any such series and the designatiereti, or any of them (a "Preferred Stock Desigmé)i and to increase or decrease the
number of shares of that series then outstandmgase the number of shares of any series shdkdreased in accordance with the foregoing
sentence, the shares constituting such decreabeeshane the status that they had prior to theptido of the resolution originally fixing the
number of shares of such series."

FIVE: Thereafter, pursuant to a resolution of tteaRl of Directors, this Certificate of Amendmentsvaubmitted to the stockholders of the
Corporation for their approval, and was duly addpteaccordance with the provisions of Section 8fthe General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware.

SIX: All other provisions of the Restated Certifieaf Incorporation shall remain in full force aeffect.

6.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Gilead Sciences, Inc. has caulsis Certificate of Amendment to be signed byPitesident and attested to by its
Secretary this 17th day of July, 1999.

/'s/ John C. Martin

John C. Martin
Presi dent

/sl Mark L. Perry

Mark L. Perry
Secretary



CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE
AMENDED AND RESTATED
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION
OF
GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

John C. Martin and Mark L. Perry do hereby cergigyfollows:
ONE: The name of the corporation is Gilead Scienlces

TWO: The date on which the Amended and RestatetifiCate of Incorporation of the corporation walefi with the Secretary of State of the
State of Delaware was January 29, 1992. A CertdichAmendment to the Amended and Restated Gatifiof Incorporation was filed with
the Secretary of State of the State of Delawardubyn29, 1999.

THREE: They are duly elected and acting PresidedtZecretary, respectively of Gilead Sciences, mBelaware corporation.

FOUR: The Board of Directors of the corporatiortjregcin accordance with the provisions of Sectidi2 &f the General Corporation Law of
the State of Delaware, adopted resolutions to arttenédmended and Restated Certificate of Incorjpamadf the corporation in the following
form:

Article V shall be amended and restated to reat$ ientirety as follows:
ny

A. This corporation is authorized to issue two stasof stock to be designated, respectively, "Com&tock’ and "Preferred Stock.' The total
number of shares which the corporation is authdrteassue is five hundred five million (505,00000@hares. Five hundred million
(500,000,000) shares shall be Common Stock, eadhdha par value of ontenth of one cent ($.001). Five million (5,000,088res shall t
Preferred Stock, each having a par value of onér+tihone cent ($.001).

B. The Preferred Stock may be issued from timénte in one or more series. The Board of Directsfisareby authorized, by filing a
certificate pursuant to the Delaware General Cafpom Law, to fix or alter from time to time thegignation, powers, preferences and rights
or the shares of each such series and the qu#bficalimitations or restrictions thereof, incladiwithout limitation the dividend rights,
dividend rate, conversion rights, voting rightghtis and terms of redemption (including sinkingdiymovisions), redemption price or prices,
and the liquidation preferences of any wholly unéss series of Preferred Stock, and to establigh fame to time the number of shares
constituting any such series and the designatieretif, or any of them (a "Preferred Stock Desigmél)i and to increase or decrease the
number of shares of that series then outstandmgase the number of shares of any series shdkdreased in accordance with the foregoing
sentence, the shares constituting such decreabeeshane the status that they had prior to theptido of the resolution originally fixing the
number of shares of such series."

FIVE: Thereafter, pursuant to a resolution of tteaRl of Directors, this Certificate of Amendmentsvgbmitted to the stockholders of the
corporation for their approval and was duly adoptedccordance with the provision of Section 242haf General Corporation Law of the
State of Delaware.

SIX: All stock provisions of the Amended and RestbCertificates of Incorporation shall remain ifi farce and effect.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Gilead Sciences, Inc. has caulsis Certificate of Amendment to be signed byPitesident and attested to by its
Secretary this day of February 02, 2001.

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

/'s/ John C. Martin

John C. Martin
PRESI DENT

ATTEST:

/sl Mark L. Perry

Mark L. Perry
SECRETARY



Exhibit 10.6

GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.
1991 STOCK OPTION PLAN

ADOPTED NOVEMBER 15, 1991
AMENDED APRIL 8, 1992
AMENDED APRIL 21, 1993

AMENDED OCTOBER 17, 1995
AMENDED AND RESTATED JANUARY 22, 1998
AMENDED MARCH 30, 1999
AMENDED AND RESTATED APRIL 5, 2000

TERMINATION DATE: APRIL 30, 2010
1. PURPOSES.

(&) The Plan initially was adopted on Novemberl@91 and amended through October 17, 1995 (thadliflan™). The Initial Plan was
amended and restated in its entirety effectivefdswouary 22, 1998 and amended through March 39.1Subject to the approval of
stockholders of the Company, the Plan hereby isnded and restated in its entirety, effective adpil 5, 2000. The terms of the Plan
(excluding the previously amended provision refatimthe exercise price of Nonstatutory Stock Qm)cshall apply to all options granted
pursuant to the Initial Plan.

(b) The purpose of the Plan is to provide a megnshich selected Employees and Directors of, andsGliants to, the Company and its
Affiliates may be given an opportunity to purchasack of the Company.

(c) The Company, by means of the Plan, seeks ainrtiie services of persons who are now EmployEes @onsultants to the Company, to
secure and retain the services of new Employee€andultants, and to provide incentives for suaisqes to exert maximum efforts for the
success of the Company.

(d) The Company intends that the Options issueeutige Plan shall, in the discretion of the Boardmmy Committee to which responsibility
for administration of the Plan has been delegatedyant to subsection 3(c), be either IncentivelS@ptions or Nonstatutory Stock Options.
All Options shall be separately designated Incen8tock Options or Nonstatutory Stock Options attime of grant, and in such form as
issued pursuant to Section 6, and a separateicatifor certificates will be issued for shareschased on exercise of each type of Option.

2. DEFINITIONS.

(a) "AFFILIATE" means any parent corporation or sigliary corporation of the Company, whether novinereafter existing, as those terms
are defined in Sections 424(e) and (f) respectjwaiyhe Code.

(b) "BOARD" means the Board of Directors of the Guamy.

(c) "CODE" means the Internal Revenue Code of 188@&mended.

(d) "COMMITTEE" means a Committee appointed by Buard in accordance with subsection 3(c) of thaPla
(e) "COMPANY" means Gilead Sciences, Inc., a Del@axarporation.

() "CONSULTANT" means any person, including an sdv, engaged by the Company or an Affiliate todesmservices and who is
compensated for such services, provided that tine *€onsultant” shall not include Directors who pegd only a director's fee by the
Company or who are not otherwise compensated bgdmepany for their services as Directors. The t&wnsultant” shall include a memi
of the Board of Directors of an Affiliate.

(g) "CONTINUOUS SERVICE" (formerly designated asONTINUOUS STATUS AS AN EMPLOYEE OR CONSULTANT") mea that
the Optionee's service with the Company or itslisties is not interrupted or terminated. The Optiga Continuous Service shall not be
deemed to have terminated merely because of a ehartlge capacity in which the Optionee rendergiserto the Company or i



Affiliates or a change in the entity for which t@ptionee renders such service, provided that fisere interruption or termination of the
Optionee's Continuous Service. For example, a éhangtatus from an Employee of the Company to asGibant or Director of the Compa
or a member of the Board of Directors of an Affiiavill not constitute an interruption of Continww8ervice. The Board or the chief
executive officer of the Company, in that partgkediscretion, may determine whether Continuousige shall be considered interrupted in
the case of any leave of absence approved by thedBw the chief executive officer of the Compangjuding sick leave, military leave, or
any other personal leave.

(h) "COVERED EMPLOYEE" means the chief executivéaafr and the four
(4) other highest compensated officers of the Camiar whom total compensation is required to heoreed to shareholders under the
Exchange Act, as determined for purposes of Sed@tm) of the Code.

() "DIRECTOR" means a member of the Board.

()) "DISABILITY" means total and permanent disabjlas defined in
Section 22(e)(3) of the Code.

(k) "EMPLOYEE" means any person, including Officared Directors, employed by the Company or anyliaté of the Company. Neither
service as a Director nor payment of a directaestfy the Company shall be sufficient to constitataployment" by the Company.

() "EXCHANGE ACT" means the Securities Exchangd 8£1934, as amended.
(m) "FAIR MARKET VALUE" means, as of any date, thalue of the common stock of the Company determaweftbllows:

(i) If the common stock is listed on any establilsock exchange or a national market system, dimoguwithout limitation the National

Market System of the National Association of Sd@siDealers, Inc. Automated Quotation ("NASDAQYs&m, the Fair Market Value of a
share of common stock shall be the closing sales por such stock (or the closing bid, if no saleve reported) as quoted on such system ot
exchange (or the exchange with the greatest vobhfrtrading in common stock) on the last marketitrgdiay prior to the day of
determination, as reported in the Wall Street Jaluon such other source as the Board deems reliable

(ii) If the common stock is quoted on the NASDAQs&m (but not on the National Market System thgrepfs regularly quoted by a
recognized securities dealer but selling pricemataeported, the Fair Market Value of a shareammon stock shall be the mean between
the high bid and high asked prices for the comntookson the last market trading day prior to thg didetermination, as reported in the
Wall Street Journal or such other source as thedd@ems reliable;

(iii) In the absence of an established marketliercommon stock, the Fair Market Value shall bemieined in good faith by the Board.

(n) "INCENTIVE STOCK OPTION" means an Option intexdto qualify as an incentive stock option withie tneaning of Section 422 of
the Code and the regulations promulgated thereunder

(0) "NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTOR" means a Director wheheir (i) is not a current Employee or Officer o tGompany or its parent or
subsidiary, does not receive compensation (direstipdirectly) from the Company or its parent absidiary for services rendered as a
consultant or in any capacity other than as a Birgexcept for an amount as to which disclosureld/mot be required under Item 404(a) of
Regulation S-K promulgated pursuant to the Seesrifict), does not possess an interest in any tHmesaction as to which disclosure would
be required under Item 404(a) of Regulation S-Ki mmot engaged in a business relationship asitchadisclosure would be required under
Item 404(b) of Regulation S-K; or (ii) is otherwisensidered a "non-employee director” for purpagdlule 16b-3.

(p) "NONSTATUTORY STOCK OPTION" means an Option imtended to qualify as an Incentive Stock Option.

(g) "OFFICER" means a person who is an officethef Company within the meaning of Section 16 offEkehange Act and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder.

(r) "OPTION" means a stock option granted purstaulhe Plan.

(s) "OPTION AGREEMENT" means a written agreemeriieen the Company and an Optionee evidencing thestand conditions of an
individual Option grant. The Option Agreement ibjget to the terms and conditions of the Plan.

(t) "OPTIONED STOCK" means the common stock of @wmpany subject to an Optic



(u) "OPTIONEE" means a person who holds an outstgn@ption.

(v) "OUTSIDE DIRECTOR" means a Director who eitl{gris not a current employee of the Company otafiliated corporation" (within
the meaning of the Treasury regulations promulgateter Section 162(m) of the Code), is not a foremeployee of the Company or an
"affiliated corporation” receiving compensation foior services (other than benefits under a talified pension plan), was not an officer of
the Company or an "affiliated corporation” at aimye, and is not currently receiving direct or irair remuneration from the Company or an
"affiliated corporation” for services in any caggaither than as a Director, or (ii) is otherwismsidered an "outside director" for purpose
Section 162(m) of the Code.

(w) "PLAN" means this 1991 Stock Option Plan.

(x) "RULE 16b-3" means Rule 16b-3 of the Exchan@e @t any successor to Rule 16b-3, as in effectmdigcretion is being exercised with
respect to the Plan.

3. ADMINISTRATION.
(a) The Board shall administer the Plan unlessuanitithe Board delegates administration to a Cotte®j as provided in subsection 3(c).
(b) The Board shall have the power, subject to,vaitidin the limitations of, the express provisiarfshe Plan:

(i) To determine from time to time which of the pens eligible under the Plan shall be granted @ptiwhen and how the Option shall be
granted; whether the Option will be an IncentivecRtOption or a Nonstatutory Stock Option; the fsmns of each Option granted (which
need not be identical), including the time or tirsash Option may be exercised in whole or in part the number of shares for which an
Option shall be granted to each such person.

(i) To construe and interpret the Plan and Optigresited under it, and to establish, amend andkeekdes and regulations for its
administration. The Board, in the exercise of gfosver, may correct any defect, omission or incaasisy in the Plan or in any Option
Agreement, in a manner and to the extent it stedhtinecessary or expedient to make the Plan fiidgtase.

(iii) To amend the Plan as provided in Section 11.

(iv) Generally, to exercise such powers and togrerfsuch acts as the Board deems necessary oriexptrpromote the best interests of the
Company.

(c) The Board may delegate administration of trenRb a Committee or Committees of one or more neesdf the Board. In the discretion
of the Board, a Committee may consist solely of twonore Outside Directors, in accordance with C8detion 162(m), or solely of two or
more Non-Employee Directors, in accordance witheRufib-3 of the Exchange Act. If administration édedjated to a Committee, the
Committee shall have, in connection with the adstiation of the Plan, the powers theretofore paeskby the Board (and references in this
Plan to the Board shall thereafter be to the Coteriit subject, however, to such resolutions, nmirigistent with the provisions of the Plan,
as may be adopted from time to time by the Boah& Board may abolish the Committee at any timerawdst in the Board the
administration of the Plan. Within the scope o$thauthority, the Board or the Committee may deke¢mt committee of one or more
members of the Board the authority to grant Optitonaligible persons who (1) are not then subje@&ection 16 of the Exchange Act and/or
(2) are either (i) not then Covered Employees ardat expected to be Covered Employees at thedfmecognition of income resulting
from such Option, or (ii) not persons with respecivhom the Company wishes to comply with Secti68(in) of the Code.

4. SHARES SUBJECT TO THE PLAN.

(a) Subject to the provisions of Section 10 retatim adjustments upon changes in stock, the statkntay be sold pursuant to Options shall
not exceed in the aggregate ten million seven hadfifty thousand (10,750,000) shares of the Comiigazommon stock. If any Option shall
for any reason expire or otherwise terminate, imlelor in part, without having been exercised ih the stock not purchased under such
Option shall revert to again become available $suance under the Plan.

(b) The stock subject to the Plan may be unisshatkes or reacquired shares, bought on the marlkatherwise.

5. ELIGIBILITY.



(a) Incentive Stock Options may be granted onlgntployees. Nonstatutory Stock Options may be gcattéEmployees, Directors and
Consultants.

(b) No person shall be eligible for the grant oflacentive Stock Option if, at the time of granick person owns (or is deemed to own
pursuant to Section 424(d) of the Code) stock ms$sg more than ten percent (10%) of the total édnatbvoting power of all classes of
stock of the Company or of any of its Affiliatesless the exercise price of such Option is at leasthundred ten percent (110%) of the Fair
Market Value of such stock at the date of granttedOption is not exercisable after the expiratibfive (5) years from the date of grant.

(c) Subject to the provisions of Section 10 relatio adjustments upon changes in stock, no petsalhlz eligible to be granted Options
covering more than Five Hundred Thousand (500,888jes of the Company's common stock in any cateyeda.

6. OPTION PROVISIONS.

Each Option shall be in such form and shall congaich terms and conditions as the Board shall dggaropriate. The provisions of separate
Options need not be identical, but each Optionl éhellide (through incorporation of provisions hefrby reference in the Option or
otherwise) the substance of each of the followirayisions:

(a) TERM. No Option shall be exercisable afterdkpiration of ten
(10) years from the date it was granted.

(b) PRICE.

(i) EXERCISE PRICE. The exercise price of each imiee Stock Option and each Nonstatutory Stock @pshall be not less than one
hundred percent (100%) of the fair market valuthefstock subject to the Option on the date théo@p$ granted.

(i) NO AUTHORITY TO REPRICE. Without the consertttbe stockholders of the Company, the Board dieale no authority to effect

(a) the repricing of any outstanding Options urttierPlan and/or

(b) the cancellation of any outstanding Optionsarrtte Plan and the grant in substitution therefarew Options under the Plan covering the
same or different numbers of shares of Common Stock

(c) CONSIDERATION. The purchase price of stock asegipursuant to an Option shall be paid, to thempermitted by applicable statutes
and regulations, either

() in cash at the time the Option is exercised, or

(i) at the discretion of the Board or the Comnaitat the time of the grant of the Option, (A) ®lidery to the Company of other common
stock of the Company, (B) according to a deferr@ghpent arrangement, except that payment of the @mstock's "par value" (as defined in
the Delaware General Corporation Law) shall notriaele by deferred payment or other arrangement fwhiry include, without limiting the
generality of the foregoing, the use of other comrstock of the Company) with the person to whomQipgion is granted or to whom the
Option is transferred pursuant to subsection &(djC) in any other form of legal considerationtthrey be acceptable to the Board.

In the case of any deferred payment arrangementeist shall be compounded at least annually aaltilsh charged at the minimum rate of
interest necessary to avoid the treatment as sttarader any applicable provisions of the Codgmyf amounts other than amounts stated to
be interest under the deferred payment arrangement.

(d) TRANSFERABILITY. An Incentive Stock Option shalot be transferable except by will or by the laafslescent and distribution, and
shall be exercisable during the lifetime of thesperto whom the Option is granted only by suchg®ré Nonstatutory Stock Option but not
an Incentive Stock Option, may be transferred éoaktent provided in the Option Agreement; provittet if the Option Agreement does not
expressly permit the transfer of a Nonstatutorycktption, the Nonstatutory Stock Option shall bettransferable except by will, by the
laws of descent and distribution and shall be égabte during the lifetime of the person to whora @ption is granted only by such person.
The person to whom the Option is granted may, liyeténg written notice to the Company, in a foratisfactory to the Company, designate
a third party who, in the event of the death of@ionee, shall thereafter be entitled to exertigeOption.

(e) VESTING. The total number of shares of stodijact to an Option may, but need not, be allottegdriodic installments (which may, but
need not, be equal). The Option Agreement may geothat from time to time during each of such ilstant periods, the Option may
become exercisable ("vest") with respect to somalaf the shares allotted to that period, and tagxercised with respect to some or all of
the shares allotted to such period and/or any peoiod as to which the Option became vested bstneafully exercised. During the
remainder of the term of the Option (if its termands beyond the end of the installment periotig) option may be exercised from time to
time with respect to any shares then remainingesiltp he Option. The Option may be subject to stbkr terms and conditions on the time
or times when it may be exercised (which may betas performance or other criteria) as the Boaagl deem appropriate. The provisions
of this subsection 6(e) are subject to any Optimvigions governing the minimum number of sharetbasghich an Option may be exercised.

(f) SECURITIES LAW COMPLIANCE. The Company may réaqany Optionee, or any person to whom an Opsdnainsferred unde



subsection

6(d), as a condition of exercising any such Opt{@hto give written assurances satisfactory toGbenpany as to the Optionee's knowledge

and experience in financial and business mattetfato employ a purchaser representative reaspisatisfactory to the Company who is
knowledgeable an



experienced in financial and business matterstfaaiche or she is capable of evaluating, alonegether with the purchaser representative,
the merits and risks of exercising the Option; &)do give written assurances satisfactory toGbenpany stating that such person is
acquiring the stock subject to the Option for spehson’s own account and not with any presenttiotenf selling or otherwise distributing
the stock. These requirements, and any assuran@sursuant to such requirements, shall be iraiperif (i) the issuance of the shares
upon the exercise of the Option has been registarddr a then currently effective registrationestagnt under the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the "Securities Act"), or (ii) as to amytjgular requirement, a determination is made doynsel for the Company that such
requirement need not be met in the circumstancdsruhe then applicable securities laws. The Compaaly require the Optionee to provide
such other representations, written assurancésfamation which the Company shall determine isessary, desirable or appropriate to
comply with applicable securities and other lawa @sndition of granting an Option to such Optionegermitting the Optionee to exercise
such Option. The Company may, upon advice of cdungbe Company, place legends on stock certiéigadsued under the Plan as such
counsel deems necessary or appropriate in orammply with applicable securities laws, includibgt not limited to, legends restricting the
transfer of the stock.

(9) TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT OR CONSULTING RELATI®SHIP. In the event an Optionee's Continuous Sernéominates
(other than upon the Optionee's death or Disahilibe Optionee may exercise his or her Optiondoly within such period of time as is
determined by the Board, and only to the exterttttheOptionee was entitled to exercise it at thie @f termination (but in no event later |
the expiration of the term of such Option as sethfn the Option Agreement). In the case of areftive Stock Option, the Board shall
determine such period of time (in no event to edasaety (90) days from the date of terminationewhhe Option is granted. If, at the date
of termination, the Optionee is not entitled toreige his or her entire Option, the shares covbyeithe unexercisable portion of the Option
shall revert to the Plan. If, after terminatiore thptionee does not exercise his or her Optionimvitie time specified in the Option
Agreement, the Option shall terminate, and theesheovered by such Option shall revert to the Plan.

(h) DISABILITY OF OPTIONEE. In the event an Optiais Continuous Service terminates as a resulteoDiptionee's Disability, the
Optionee may exercise his or her Option, but orithiw twelve (12) months from the date of such teation (or such shorter period
specified in the Option Agreement), and only toelxeent that the Optionee was entitled to exeilitigethe date of such termination (but in
event later than the expiration of the term of sQ@gition as set forth in the Option Agreement)atfthe date of termination, the Optionee is
not entitled to exercise his or her entire Optibe, shares covered by the unexercisable portidimeo®ption shall revert to the Plan. If, after
termination, the Optionee does not exercise hiseoOption within the time specified herein, thetiop shall terminate, and the shares
covered by such Option shall revert to the Plan.

(i) DEATH OF OPTIONEE. In the event of the deathaof Optionee, the Option may be exercised, atiamy within twelve (12) months
following the date of death (or such shorter pespdcified in the Option Agreement) (but in no évater than the expiration of the term of
such Option as set forth in the Option Agreemént)the Optionee's estate or by a person who aatjtheeright to exercise the Option by
bequest or inheritance, but only to the extenQb&onee was entitled to exercise the Option atitte of death. If, at the time of death, the
Optionee was not entitled to exercise his or hére@®ption, the shares covered by the unexeraspbition of the Option shall revert to the
Plan. If, after death, the Optionee's estate @ragn who acquired the right to exercise the Ogtipbequest or inheritance does not exercise
the Option within the time specified herein, theti®p shall terminate, and the shares covered bly &ation shall revert to the Plan.

() EARLY EXERCISE. The Option may, but need nolude a provision whereby the Optionee may eleahg time while an Employee or
Consultant to exercise the Option as to any paatl@f the shares subject to the Option priohi® full vesting of the Option. Any unvested
shares so purchased may be subject to a repundghsen favor of the Company or to any other riesion the Board determines to be
appropriate.

(k) WITHHOLDING. To the extent provided by the tesraf an Option Agreement, the Optionee may sadisfyfederal, state or local tax
withholding obligation relating to the exercisesoich Option by any of the following means or byoabination of such means: (1) tendering
a cash payment; (2) authorizing the Company tohwiith shares from the shares of the common stoarwibe issuable to the Optionee as a
result of the exercise of the Option; or (3) ddiing to the Company owned and unencumbered shatee common stock of the Company.

7. COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY.

(a) During the terms of the Options, the Comparsgll#eep available at all times the number of shafestock required to satisfy such
Options.

(b) The Company shall seek to obtain from eachlatgry commission or agency having jurisdiction otree Plan such authority as may be
required to issue and sell shares of stock uporcisesof the Options; provided, however, that thsdertaking shall not require the Company
to register under the Securities Act either thenPday Option or any stock issued or issuable fansto any such Option. If, after reasonable
efforts, the Company is unable to obtain from amghsregulatory commission or agency the authortyctv counsel for the Company deems
necessary for the lawful issuance and sale of stadler the Plan, the Company shall be relieved fagnliability for failure to issue and sell
stock upon exercise of such Options unless andiautdh authority is obtaine



8. USE OF PROCEEDS FROM STOCK.
Proceeds from the sale of stock pursuant to Opsba#i constitute general funds of the Company.
9. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) The Board shall have the power to acceleratdinte at which an Option may first be exercisethertime during which an Option or any
part thereof will vest pursuant to subsection Gtejwithstanding the provisions in the Option stgtihe time at which it may first be
exercised or the time during which it will vest.

(b) Neither an Optionee nor any person to whom ptio@ is transferred under subsection 6(d) shatldemed to be the holder of, or to have
any of the rights of a holder with respect to, ahgres subject to such Option unless and until pacdon has satisfied all requirements for
exercise of the Option pursuant to its terms.

(c) Nothing in the Plan or any instrument execude®ption granted pursuant thereto shall confenugrty Employee, Consultant or Optiot
any right to continue in the employ of the Companywany Affiliate (or to continue acting as a Coniant) or shall affect the right of the
Company or any Affiliate to terminate the employmenrelationship as a Consultant of any Employ&msultant or Optionee with or
without cause.

(d) To the extent that the aggregate Fair Markéu&éetermined at the time of grant) of stock wéhkpect to which Incentive Stock Options
are exercisable for the first time by any Optiodeeng any calendar year under all plans of the @amy and its Affiliates exceeds one
hundred thousand dollars ($100,000), the Optiormodions thereof which exceed such limit (accogdim the order in which they were
granted) shall be treated as Nonstatutory Stoclo®qt

10. ADJUSTMENTS UPON CHANGES IN STOCK.

() If any change is made in the stock subjedh¢oRtlan, or subject to any Option (through mergensolidation, reorganization,
recapitalization, stock dividend, dividend in prayedther than cash, stock split, liquidating didi, combination of shares, exchange of
shares, change in corporate structure or otherwttse)Plan will be appropriately adjusted in thess(es) and maximum number of shares
subject to the Plan pursuant to subsection 4(a}t@daximum number of shares subject to awardygarson during any calendar year
period pursuant to subsection 5(d), and the oustgrOptions will be appropriately adjusted in thass(es) and number of shares and price
per share of stock subject to such outstandingoDsti

(b) In the event of: (1) a dissolution or liquidatiof the Company;

(2) a merger or consolidation in which the Companyot the surviving corporation; (3) a reverse geeiin which the Company is the
surviving corporation but the shares of the Comfgmogmmon stock outstanding immediately precediegnerger are converted by virtue of
the merger into other property, whether in the fofrsecurities, cash or otherwise; or (4) any ottagital reorganization in which more than
fifty percent (50%) of the shares of the Companijtled to vote are exchanged, then, at the solerelimn of the Board and to the extent
permitted by applicable law: (i) any surviving coration shall assume any Options outstanding utidePlan or shall substitute similar
Options for those outstanding under the Planth@&)time during which such Options may be exercg&wll be accelerated and the Options
terminated if not exercised prior to such evenyjigrsuch Options shall continue in full forcedeffect.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provisions of thisufto the contrary, if an event occurs as specifieibsection 10(b) (a "Change in Contr
and if within one (1) month before or thirteen (b3)nths after the date of such Change in Conteintinuous Service of an Optionee
terminates due to an involuntary termination (motuding death or Disability) without Cause (aststerm is defined below) or a voluntary
termination by the Optionee due to a Constructigarlination (as such term is defined below), thenvbsting and exercisability of all
Options held by such Optionee shall be accelerateany reacquisition or repurchase rights heldheyCompany with respect to an option
shall lapse, as follows. With respect to those @ystiheld by an Optionee at the time of such tertimnaone hundred percent (100%) of the
unvested shares covered by such Options shalbwelsbecome exercisable (or reacquisition or re@sehights held by the Company shall
lapse with respect to one hundred percent (100%)eoshares still subject to such rights, as apjatg) as of the date of such termination.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, however, if suchgmtial acceleration of the vesting and exercisghilf Options (or lapse of reacquisition
repurchase rights held by the Company with resige@ptions) would cause a contemplated Change mtrGiaransaction that would
otherwise be eligible to be accounted for as a lipgef-interests" transaction to become ineligifde such accounting treatment under
generally accepted accounting principles as detexdhby the Company's independent public accoun(drs'Accountants™) prior to the
Change of Control, such acceleration shall not nccu

For the purposes of this subsection 10(c) onlyu%8a means (i) conviction of, a guilty plea witlspect to, or a plea of NOLO
CONTENDERE to a charge that an Optionee has cordhitfelony under the laws of the United Statesf @ny state or a crime involving
moral turpitude, including, but not limited to, id, theft, embezzlement or any crime that resaoltriis intended to result in personal
enrichment at the expense of the Company or arigk#j (i) material breach of any agreement erdénéo between the Optionee and



Company or an Affiliate that impairs the Comparoy'she Affiliate's interest therein; (iii) willfuinisconduct, significant failure of the
Optionee to perform the Optionee's duties, or gnesgect by the Optionee of the Optionee's dutiegiv) engagement in any activity that
constitutes a material conflict of interest witle tBompany or any Affiliate.

For purposes of this subsection 10(c) only, "Carttive Termination" means the occurrence of anheffollowing events or conditions: (i)
(A) a change in the Optionee's status, title, pmsidr responsibilities (including reporting respginilities) which represents an adverse change
from the Optionee's status, title, position or eggibilities as in effect at any time within ningB80) days preceding the date of a Change in
Control or at any time thereafter; (B) the assignhie the Optionee of any duties or responsibditihich are inconsistent with the Optione
status, title, position or responsibilities as ffeet at any time within ninety (90) days precedthg date of a Change in Control or at any time
thereafter; or (C) any removal of the Optionee franfiailure to reappoint or reelect the Optioneany of such offices or positions, except in
connection with the termination of the Optioneemtihuous Service for Cause, as a result of théo®ge's Disability or death or by the
Optionee other than as a result of Constructivenireation; (ii) a reduction in the Optionee's anrb@e compensation or any failure to pay
the Optionee any compensation or benefits to wttiefOptionee is entitled within five (5) days oéttate due; (iii) the Company's requiring
the Optionee to relocate to any place outsidety {#0) mile radius of the Optionee's current wesitke, except for reasonably required travel
on the business of the Company or its Affiliatesalitis not materially greater than such travel iregqaents prior to the Change in Control;
(iv) the failure by the Company to (A) continuegffect (without reduction in benefit level and/eward opportunities) any material
compensation or employee benefit plan in whichQiptionee was participating at any time within nyng20) days preceding the date of a
Change in Control or at any time thereafter, unésh plan is replaced with a plan that providdstantially equivalent compensation or
benefits to the Optionee, or (B) provide the Optimmvith compensation and benefits, in the aggregateast equal (in terms of benefit levels
and/or reward opportunities) to those providedufioder each other employee benefit plan, progranpaactice in which the Optionee was
participating at any time within ninety (90) dayggeding the date of a Change in Control or atteng thereafter; (v) any material breach by
the Company of any provision of an agreement batwlee Company and the Optionee, whether pursuahtadlan or otherwise, other than
a breach which is cured by the Company within éift€15) days following notice by the Optionee aftsbreach; or (vi) the failure of the
Company to obtain an agreement, satisfactory t@ibttonee, from any successors and assigns to assuchagree to perform the obligations
created under this Plan.

(d) In the event that the acceleration of the wegstind exercisability of the Options or lapse afcgisition or repurchase rights held by the
Company with respect to Options provided for insmdiion 10(c) and benefits otherwise payable t@ptionee (i) constitute "parachute
payments" within the meaning of Section 280G (asay be amended or replaced) of the Code, anbuiijor this subsection 10(d) would be
subject to the excise tax imposed by Section 4899t(may be amended or replaced) of the Code'lgkeise Tax"), then such Optionee's
benefits hereunder shall be delivered to such lesgent which would result in no portion of suambfits being subject to the Excise Tax;
PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that the benefits hereunderldhalreduced only to the extent necessary afteragh amounts otherwise payable to
such Optionee and which constitute "parachute payshdéave been returned. Unless the Company arfd@ptionee otherwise agree in
writing, any determination required under this sdi®n 10(d) shall be made in writing in good faiththe Accountants. For purposes of
making the calculations required by this subsectidfd), the Accountants may make reasonable assum@End approximations concerning
applicable taxes and may rely on reasonable, gaithtihterpretations concerning the applicatiothaf Code. The Company and such
Optionees shall furnish to the Accountants sucbrmftion and documents as the Accountants may mahgorequest in order to make a
determination under this subsection 10(d). The Gayshall bear all costs the Accountants may redsgrincur in connection with any
calculations contemplated by this subsection 10(d).

11. AMENDMENT OF THE PLAN.

(a) The Board at any time, and from time to timeyramend the Plan. However, except as provide@atic® 10 relating to adjustments uj
changes in stock, no amendment shall be effectilesa approved by the stockholders of the Compathiniwelve (12) months before or
after the adoption of the amendment, where the dment will:

(i) Increase the number of shares reserved foongtiunder the Plan;

(i) Effect (a) the repricing of any outstandingt@ps under the Plan and/or (b) the cancellatioarmyf outstanding Options under the Plan and
the grant in substitution therefor of new Optiomsier the Plan covering the same or different numbéshares of Common Stock;

(iii) Modify the requirements as to eligibility fgrarticipation in the Plan (to the extent such rficdiion requires stockholder approval in
order for the Plan to satisfy the requirementsegifti®n 422 of the Code); or

(iv) Modify the Plan in any other way if such mddétion requires stockholder approval in ordertfa Plan to satisfy the requirements of
Section 422 of the Code or to comply with the regmients of Rule 16b-3 or any Nasdaq or securitiebange listing requirements.

(b) The Board may in its sole discretion submit athyer amendment to the Plan for stockholder amdrancluding, bu



not limited to, amendments to the Plan intendeshtisfy the requirements of
Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations ptgated thereunder regarding the exclusion of perémce-based compensation from the
limit on corporate deductibility of compensatiorigpto certain executive officers.

(c) Itis expressly contemplated that the Board rwaend the Plan in any respect the Board deemsseageor advisable to provide Option
with the maximum benefits provided or to be prodideder the provisions of the Code and the reguiatpromulgated thereunder relating to
Incentive Stock Options and/or to bring the Plad/anincentive Stock Options granted under it ibdonpliance therewith.

(d) Rights and obligations under any Option graritefibre amendment of the Plan shall not be alteréchpaired by any amendment of the
Plan unless
(i) the Company requests the consent of the pamsarinom the Option was granted and (ii) such pecssents in writing.

12. TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE PLAN.

(a) The Board may suspend or terminate the Planyatime. Unless sooner terminated, the Plan séraflinate on April 30, 2010, which is a
date within ten (10) years following stockholdepegval of the amended and restated Plan adoptéigebBoard on April 5, 2000. No Options
may be granted under the Plan while the Plan igended or after it is terminated.

(b) Rights and obligations under any Option grantéde the Plan is in effect shall not be alterednapaired by suspension or termination of
the Plan, except with the consent of the persavhtom the Option was granted.

13. EFFECTIVE DATE OF PLAN.

The Plan shall become effective as determined &yBtiard, but no Options granted under the Plari Beadxercised unless and until the
stockholders of the Company have approved the Plan.

(This page has been left blank intentional



EXHIBIT 10.13

Institute of Organic Chemistry and Rega | nstitute for Medical Research
Biochemistry of the Academy of Sciences  Kathol ieke Universiteit Leuven

of the Czech Republic Minder broedersstraat 10
Flemingovo nam.2 B-3000 Leuven

166 10 Praha 6 Belgiu m

Czech Republic Attent ion: Professor Dr. De Clercq

Attention: Dr. Antonin Holy

December 27, 2000

RE: License Agreement between Gilead Sciences('1@iead"), the Institute of Organic Chemistry aBidchemistry, as an integral part of
the Ceskoslovenska akademie ved ("IOCB"), and F&igating v.z.w. ("REGA") dated November 15, 198%,amended prior to the date of
this letter agreement (such Agreement, the "198&nse Agreement"), and License Agreement betweladSciences, Inc., IOCB and
REGA dated December 1, 1992, as amended prioetdate of this letter agreement (such Agreemeat, 1892 License Agreement"). The
1991 License Agreement and the 1992 License Agratare referred to collectively as the "License égnents".

Dear Drs. Holy and De Clercq:

We are writing to set forth the terms upon whichhaee agreed to amend the License Agreements saslukd below.
"Amendment Date" as used herein shall mean thethatiast signatory to this letter agreement sthissletter agreement.
We agree as of the Amendment Date as follows:

1. The following definition shall be added to Af&id of the 1991 License Agreement:

"Adefovir" shall mean adefovir dipivoxil, or 9-[2His[(pivaloyloxy)methyl]phosphinyl]-methoxy]ethydHenine.

2. The following definition shall be added to Atéd of the 1992 License Agreement:

"Tenofovir" shall mean (R) PMPA or tenofovir disopil fumarate or 9-[(R)-2-[[bis[[(isopropoxycarbolgxy]-methoxy]phosphinyl]
methoxy] propylladenine fumarate.

3. All capitalized terms used in this Section 3 hot defined herein shall have the meanings gimehe 1991 License Agreement. Section IV
A. b) and
Section IV A. c) of the 1991 License Agreement kbaldeleted and replaced in its entirety withfthilwing:

1



"b) five percent (5%) of NET SALES of LICENSED PRODRT other than LICENSED PRODUCT containing Adefoasa LICENSED
COMPOUND, and three percent (3%) of NET SALES cEENSED PRODUCT containing Adefovir as a LICENSEDMIOUND, sold
by GILEAD and its AFFILIATES and sublicensees, thanufacture, use or sale of which would, but fer thKCENSE, infringe a VALID
CLAIM of LICENSED PATENTS in the country of salexaept as set forth in the following sentence. Withpect to NET SALES which
would be royalty-bearing as set forth in the pregisentence, but as to which the same LICENSED COWNND or LICENSED PRODUCT
is being sold in such country by any THIRD PART Ytept under this Agreement, and as to which GILEADOCB/REGA is not seeking
diligently to enforce its LICENSED PATENTS, GILEAShall pay to IOCB/REGA a total of two and ohaH percent (2.5%) of NET SALE
if such LICENSED COMPOUND or LICENSED PRODUCT sty does not contain Adefovir as a LICENSED COMRMJ and one and
one-half percent (1.5%) if such LICENSED COMPOUNDL&CENSED PRODUCT is, or does contain AdefoviraasICENSED
COMPOUND.

¢) two and one-half percent (2.5%) of NET SALES.BEENSED PRODUCT not containing Adefovir as a Lised Compound and sold by
GILEAD and its AFFILIATES and sublicensees thah@ covered by LICENSED PATENTS but exploits theCHINICAL INFORMATION
and the KNOW-HOW and no royalties on LICENSED PRQADIUcontaining Adefovir as a LICENSED COMPOUND armddsby GILEAD
and its AFFILIATES and sublicensees that is noteted by LICENSED PATENTS but exploits the TECHNICMIFORMATION and the
KNOW-HOW."

4. All capitalized terms used in this Section 4 ot defined herein shall have the meanings ginghe 1992 License Agreement. Section IV
A. b) and
Section IV A. c) of the 1992 License Agreement kbaldeleted and replaced in its entirety withfthilwing:

"b) five percent (5%) of NET SALES of LICENSED PRODRT other than LICENSED PRODUCT containing Tenof@s a LICENSED
COMPOUND, and three percent (3%) of NET SALES dEENSED PRODUCT containing Tenofovir as a LICENSEOMPOUND, sold
by GILEAD and its AFFILIATES and sublicensees, thanufacture, use or sale of which would, but fer thCENSE, infringe a VALID
CLAIM of LICENSED PATENTS in the country of salexeept as set forth in the following sentence. Wibpect to NET SALES which
would be royalty-bearing as set forth in the pregisentence, but as to which the same LICENSED COWMND or LICENSED PRODUCT
is being sold in such country by any THIRD PARTYtept under this Agreement, and as to which GILEADOCB/REGA is not seeking
diligently to enforce its LICENSED PATENTS, GILEAghall pay to IOCB/REGA a total of two and ohaH percent (2.5%) of NET SALE
if such LICENSED COMPOUND or LICENSED PRODUCT istroy does not contain Tenofovir as a LICENSED COMUND, and one ar
one-half percent (1.5%) if such LICENSED COMPOUNDL&CENSED PRODUCT is, or does contain TenofovimadsiICENSED
COMPOUND.

¢) two and one-half percent (2.5%) of NET SALES.BEENSED PRODUCT not containing Tenofovir as a LIKEED COMPOUND and
sold by GILEAD and its AFFILIATES and sublicenseabat is not covered by LICENSED PATENTS but ex@dite TECHNICAL
INFORMATION and the KNOWHOW and no royalties on LICENSED PRODUCT containirenofovir as a LICENSED COMPOUND a
sold by GILEAD and its AFFILIATES and sublicensebkat is not covered by LICENSED PATENTS but ex@dite TECHNICAL
INFORMATION and the KNOW-HOW."



5. In consideration of your agreement to amendL88 License Agreement, GILEAD will pay for LICENBEPRODUCT containing
Adefovir as provided in

Section 3 above, to IOCB and REGA together a sipglenent of One Million Seven Hundred Seventy ThodsUnited States dollars
($1,770,000) as follows:

/I Gilead will pay $885,000 to REGA; and
/1 Gilead will pay $885,000 to IOCB.

6. In consideration of your agreement to amendL882 License Agreement, GILEAD will pay for LICENBEPRODUCT containing
Tenofovir as provided in

Section 4 above, to IOCB and REGA together a sipglenent of Nine Million Two Hundred Thirty Thoushbinited States dollars
($9,230,000) as follows:

/I Gilead will pay $4,615,000 to REGA; and
/ | Gilead will pay $4,615,000 to IOCB.

7. REGA, IOCB and Gilead each agree that SectiohANNEX 1 to the Agreement made by and between RHGCB and Gilead,
effective April 1, 1997 ("Section 1"), shall be amded such that IOCB and REGA shall each receive 860f8te amounts payable by Gilead
instead of 52% and 48%, respectively.

Section 1 shall otherwise remain unchanged.

8. The payments under Section 5 and 6 above shaléh and no deduction shall be made by Gileadspect of any withholding or other tax
payable in respect thereof imposed in the UnitedeStof America, which shall be the responsibditygilead for its own account. Gilead
hereby agrees to indemnify and hold harmless REGAI@CB against and to reimburse REGA and IOCBafbwithholding or other taxes
paid or payable in the United States of Americeespect of the payments under Section 5 and 6 alBilead shall make the payments
required under Section 5 and 6 above by wire teardfimmediately available funds within five (5)diness days of Gilead's receipt of a fi
countersigned copy of this letter agreement tddahewing accounts:

To REGA: Generale Bank
Account No. 230-0190070-67
Stichting REGA v.z.w., Minderbroedersstraat 10, Q@uven, Belgium

To IOCB: Ceska narodni banka Praha 1

Account No. 11338031/0710

Bank code 0710

Account holder: Ustav organicke chemie a biochefiaha 6, Flemingovo nam.2.
Czech Republic

9. I0CB and REGA each agree that no commissioraltpyr other obligation shall be owed by Gileadtty third party as a result of any
payments made under this letter agreement.

10. Except as expressly provided in this letteeagrent, the License Agreements shall remain uneting
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The offer contained in this letter agreement sbalalid until, and this letter agreement shalldme binding upon each of us only if Gilead
receives a executed counterpart of this lettereagent by facsimile from all of the signatoriesddbelow on or before, 11:59 p.m., Pacific
Standard Time on December 27, 2000. To indicate ggteement to amend the License Agreements ard ptovisions of this letter
agreement as specified above, please sign belowesunth to me one copy of this letter by facsinf@®0-522-5444). This letter agreement
may be executed in multiple counterparts, eachto€hvshall be an original and all of which shatjéther constitute the same document.

Yours sincerely,

Gilead Sciences, Inc.

By: /'s/ John C. Martin, Ph.D.
John C. Martin, Ph.D.
Presi dent and Chi ef Executive O ficer

Accepted and Agreed, Accept ed and Agreed,

Institute of Organic Chemistry and Rega S tichting v.z.w.
Biochemistry of the Academy of Sciences
of the Czech Republic

By: /s/ Dr. Antonin Holy By: /sl Professor Dr. De Clercq
Name: Dr. Antonin Holy Name: Professor Dr. De Clercq
Date: December 27, 2000 Date: December 27, 2000



EXHIBIT 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF GILEAD SCIENCES, INC.

NAME OF SUBSIDIARY COUNTRY OR STATE OF INCORPORATION
Gilead Sciences Limited Ireland

Gilead Sciences GmbH Germany
Gilead Sciences Sarl France

Gilead Sciences S.r.l. Italy

Gilead Sciences, S.A. Spain

Gilead Sciences, Lda. Portugal

Gilead Sciences Ltd. United Kingdom
Gilead Sciences International Ltd. United Kingdom
Gilead Sciences PTY Limited Australia

Gilead Sciences B.V. Netherlands
NeXstar Pharmaceuticals International, Inc. Delaware

Gilead Irish Holdings, Ltd. Ireland



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF ERNST & YOUNG LLP, INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-4752&ppeng to the Gilead Sciences, Inc.
1991 Stock Option Plan, the Registration Statertfemtm S-8 No. 33-46058) pertaining to the GileagéBeces, Inc. 1987 Incentive Stock
Option Plan, 1987 Supplemental Stock Option P18811Stock Option Plan, Employee Stock Purchase, Blzoh 1995 Non-Employee
Directors' Stock Option Plan, the Registration &tagnt (Form S-8 No. 333-84719) pertaining to thedsi Sciences, Inc. 1991 Stock Option
Plan, 1995 Non-Employee Directors' Stock OptiomRiad Employee Stock Purchase Plan, the Registratatement (Form S-8 No. 333-
84713) pertaining to the NeXstar Pharmaceuticats, 1993 Incentive Stock Plan, NeXstar Pharmacalgtitnc. 1995 Director Option Plan
and Vestar, Inc. 1988 Stock Option Plan, the Regjish Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-54350) of Gil8aknces, Inc. and in the related
Prospectus, and the Registration Statement (FoBMNS-33387167) of Gilead Sciences, Inc. and in the rel®@exspectus of our report dai
January 23, 2001, with respect to the consolidfiteshcial statements and schedule of Gilead Scignoe., included in this Annual Report
(Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2000.

ERNST & YOUNG LLP
Palo Alto, California

March 19, 200:



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

We hereby consent to the inclusion in the Annugld®eon Form 10-K (No. 0-19731) of Gilead Sciendas, of our report dated January 12,

2001 relating to the financial statements of Pwlid) C for the thirteen-month period ended Decen83er2000, which is incorporated in this
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Broomfield, Colorado

March 16, 2001

End of Filing
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